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 The City of McAllen is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the 
provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget’s 
Circular A-133, Audits of State and Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. 
Information related to this single audit, including a schedule of expenditures of federal awards, 
the independent auditors’ reports on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations, and a schedule of findings and questioned costs are included in the single audit 
section of this report. 
 
The financial reporting entity (the government) includes all the funds and account groups of the 
primary government (i.e., the City of McAllen as legally defined).  The City of McAllen 
provides a full range of services including police and fire protection, recreational and cultural 
activities, water, sewer, sanitation and recycling services, a municipal golf course, a civic center, 
an international airport, intermodal transit terminal and an international toll bridge operation. 
 
The City acts in the capacity of trustee for the Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund; therefore, 
this activity is included in the reporting entity.  However, the McAllen Independent School 
District (MISD), McAllen Chamber of Commerce (MCC), McAllen Economic Development 
Corporation (MEDC), McAllen Affordable Homes, Inc. (MAHI), and the Texas Municipal 
Retirement System (TMRS) do not meet the established criteria for inclusion in the reporting 
entity, and accordingly are excluded from this report. 

 
Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative 
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  This letter of transmittal is designed to 
complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  The City of McAllen’s MD&A 
can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 
 

 
The City, incorporated in 1911, is located in the southern part of the state, considered to be one 
of the top growth areas in the state and the country.  The City of McAllen is the largest city in 
Hidalgo County, located at the intersection of U.S. Highway 83 and State Highway 336.  The 
City’s population has grown since the 1990 census from 84,021 to 116,793 in 2001, an increase 
of 39%.  The City is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and business personal 
property located within its boundaries.  The City also has the power by state statute to extend its 
corporate limits by annexation, which it has done from time to time, as deemed appropriate by 
the City Commission. 
 
The City has operated under the council-manager form of government since 1911.  Policymaking 
and legislative authority is vested in the City Commission, which currently consists of a mayor 
and a six-member commission.  The City Commission is responsible, among other things, for 
passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees and hiring the City Manager, 
City Secretary, Police Chief, Fire Chief, the City Attorney and the Municipal Judges.  The City 
Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Commission, for 
overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City, and for appointing the heads of the City’s 
departments.  The City Commission is elected on a non-partisan basis.  In May 2000 the voters 
decided in favor of single member district representation.  City Commission members will be 
elected to four-year staggered terms with three elected every two years.  The Mayor was and will 
continue to be elected at large to four-year terms. 
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By almost any growth index, the City is experiencing, and indications are, will continue to 
experience substantial growth.  Contributors to the City’s growth include its position as a 
regional trade center and medical center, which covers the Lower Rio Grande Valley and 
Northern Mexico--almost 10 million people, its tourist trade consisting of “Winter Texans”--
mostly retired from the northern and Midwestern states escaping the cold grip of winter for 4-6 
months and visitors from Mexico, its maquiladora industry, and the effects of NAFTA. 
 
The City of McAllen’s partnership with the City of Reynosa, Mexico continues to flourish as we 
work together to recruit industry.  Through the efforts of the MEDC, over the last fourteen (14) 
years, between January 1988 and July 2002, 179 companies moved to McAllen and 224 
maquiladora operations set up facilities in Reynosa for a total of 403 new companies.  These new 
companies account for direct employment of 15,249 in McAllen and 47,504 in Reynosa.  
Expansion of existing companies have created 940 new jobs for McAllen; 6,333 for Reynosa. 
 

 
The City’s staff, following specific directives of the City Commission and the City Manager, has 
been involved in a variety of projects throughout the year.  These projects reflect the City’s 
commitment of ensuring that its citizens are able to live and work in a highly desirable community 
and include the following: 

 
Develop a Plan with McAllen Independent School District to Purchase New Voting 
System by December 2001 
Manager’s Response:  The City Commission placed this on hold until the new County 
Judge takes office. 
 
Develop a Heart of the City Plan Led by the Planning and Zoning Commission in 
Conjunction with MEDC and Others by March 2002 
Manager’s Response:  Partially Completed.  Meet with consultants and organized 
existing data and copies of reports on the target area. 
 
Develop and Implement Adopt-A-Tree Program with Keep McAllen Beautiful and the 
Parks Department by January 2002 
Manager’s Response:  We are currently working on a brochure for the tree program; it 
should be ready by December 2002. 
 
Meet with McAllen Independent School District and the Boys and Girls Club and 
Develop a Coordinated After School Program by April 2002 
Manager’s Response:  Several meetings were held with all parties, however, no final 
solution was reached. 
 
Start Sidewalk Enhancement Program by December 2001 
Manager’s Response:  The program began in November 2001. During this fiscal year, 
29,566 linear feet or 5.6 miles were constructed. 
 
Complete Design of New Convention Center 
Manager’s Response:  Partially Completed.  The new design is currently on hold 
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  because of the charter petition.  The plans are 35% complete. 
 
Complete Public Safety Building and Make Seamless Move into New Building 
Manager’s Response:  Partially Completed.  Progress on the building continues and 
the parking  lot in near completion. 
 
Construct Extensions to 29th Street, 2nd Street and Trenton Road 
Manager’s Response:  The status of the projects and sub-projects is as follows: 

 
29th Street, Business 83 to Gumwood – Right-of-way acquisition has been completed.  
This project is to be bid in late November/early December 2002. 

 
29th Street, Vine to Nolana – The design is 99% complete.  This project is to be bid in  
late November/early December 2002. 

 
29th Street, Xenops to 6 Mile – The project was awarded on March 11, 2002.  
Construction began in late May.  Currently the project is at the storm sewer and road 
sub-grade phase. 

 
2nd Street, Dove to Trenton Road – The design is 85% complete.  The project is to be 
bid in November 2002. 

 
Trenton, East City Limits to 10th Street – The project was awarded on May 13, 2002.  
Construction is in progress. 

 
Trenton, 23rd to Ware Road – The design is 40% complete.  We are in the process of 
purchasing right-of-way. 
 
Design and Start Construction of Bicentennial Boulevard and Benson Road 
Manager’s Response:  Partially Completed.  A public hearing was held, at which the 
City Commission approved the alignment.  Design is currently underway. 
 
Landscape the Existing Walking/Jogging Trails on 2nd Street and Bicentennial Boulevard 
Manager’s Response:  Partially Completed.  The design charettes have been completed.  
The consultants are waiting on the aerial photographs to complete the design work.  
The target date for accepting bids is February 2003. 
 
Start an Effective Composting Program by Spring 2002 
Manager’s Response:  Not Completed. 
 
Install a New Library Cataloging System by July 2002 
Manager’s Response:  Not Completed. 
 
Develop a 70-Unit Elderly Subdivision on Jordan and Ware Road in Conjunction with 
McAllen Affordable Homes, McAllen Housing Authority and the McAllen Housing 
Finance Corporation 
Manager’s Response: Construction of a 70-unit project is 10% complete with the 
estimated time of completion the summer of 2003. 
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 Build a Skate Park and De Leon Park 
Manager’s Response:  The bid has been awarded to Rampage, L.L.C. on July 22, 2002.   
It will be installed by October 2002. 
 
Make Various Park Improvements to Elementary School Grounds 
Manager’s Response:  Partially Completed.  Gonzalez, Jackson and Fields Elementary 
Schools projects were funded in the new FY 2002-2003 budget.  A request for a level of 
services and fee proposal has been requested of Terra Design so the City commission 
can consider a contract amendment.  No response has been received from MISD 
regarding the City Manger’s letter of August 28, 2002.  Letter of approval needed in 
order to proceed with projects. 
 
Develop a Plan for Structured Parking for Downtown Along with a Financing Plan by 
July 2002 
Manager’s Response:  This project was put on hold pending the completion of the 
Heart of the City study. 
 
Start Design of Anzalduas Bridge Project 
Manager’s Response:  Design for the Anzalduas Bridge and the related outbound 
facilities is about 60% complete.  It should be complete by the end of 2002. 
 
Develop and Complete Financing Plan for Anzalduas Bridge Project 
Manager’s Response:  Partially Completed.  The financial plan for the Anzalduas 
Bridge Project is currently on hold, until the correct time to proceed is determined. 
 
Establish Regular Scheduled Programming for the City’s Cable Channel – MCN 
Manager’s Response:  Completed.  We have established regular times for specific 
programs. 
 
Contract for the Development of a Drainage Masterplan 
Manager’s Response:  Freese & Nichols continues work on the update.  While 
awaiting data from the citywide aerial, it is currently reviewing our current subdivision 
regulations and FEMA requirements. 
 
Two additional goals were added by the Mayor and City Commission after the beginning 
of the fiscal year: 
 
Establish Program to Train Young Professionals Within the Organization to be Prepared 
to Assume Additional Responsibilities as Management Leaves Due to Aging: 
Manager’s Response:  Completed.  The Management Resource Program was 
implemented.  Fourteen employees have been attending a 12-month program. 
 
Prepare a Multi-Year Capital Improvement Program. 
Manager’s Response:  Completed.  Vision 2010 was prepared and submitted to the 
Mayor and City Commission in August 2002. 
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During the budget process, the City Commission identified the following goals and objectives for 
the coming fiscal year 2002-03: 
 

 
Plan Phase for New Central Library in Center City of McAllen 
 
Purchase of Regional Detention Facility/Parks 
 
Develop a Department Head Evaluation Process that Measures Performance and 
Completion of Goals 
 
Complete “Heart of the City” Planning Effort 
 
Develop a Priority List of Drainage Projects for City Commission Approval 
 
Develop a Report for City Commission on a Drainage Impact Fee and/or Drainage 
Utility District 
 
Contract for Additional Landscaping on Existing Hike & Bike Trails 
 
Extend Hike & Bike Trails – South Loop and 2nd Street – Nolana to Trenton 
 
Improve Efficiency of Building Permit Process 
 
Develop a Plan on Relocation of Fire Station(s) for Better Coverage of City of McAllen 
 
Develop a Plan for a New Center Fire Station 
 
Install 7 Linear Feet of Sidewalks for Safer Routes to Schools and Along Arterials 
 
Install Pilot Program to Monitor Traffic with Video Cameras for Major Intersections 
 
Begin Construction of Texas A&M School of Rural Public Health at South McColl and 
Vermont 
 
Complete Environmental Cleanup of Old Transfer Station Site at Uvalde & South  
Bicentennial 
 
Revise Current Developers’ Ordinance on Sign Regulation 
 
Complete New Parking Lot for Downtown at Ash and Broadway 
 
Complete Design and Begin Construction of City Hall Addition 
 
Complete Study on Having Paid Parking at the Airport 
 
Develop Monthly Report on Overtime – Control Overtime to Come Within Budget 
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Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control 
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse 
and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial 
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.  The internal control 
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are 
met.  The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost of a control should not 
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires 
estimates and judgments by management. 
 
As a recipient of federal, state and local financial assistance, the City is also responsible for 
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure and document 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to these programs.  This internal control 
structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management and the internal audit staff of the City. 
 
As part of the City’s single audit, described earlier, tests were made of the City’s internal control 
structure and of its compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including those related to 
federal and state financial assistance programs.  Although this testing was not sufficient to 
support an opinion of the City’s internal control system or its compliance with laws and 
regulations related to non-major federal financial assistance programs, the audit for the year 
ended September 30, 2002, disclosed no material internal control weakness or material violations 
of laws and regulations. 
 
In addition, the City maintains budgetary controls.  The objective of these controls is to ensure 
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the 
City Commission.  Activities of the general fund, certain special revenue funds, the debt service 
fund, and the proprietary funds are included in the annual appropriated budget.  Project-length 
budgets are prepared for the capital projects funds.  The level of budgetary control (i.e., the level 
at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is the departmental level 
within each fund.  The City also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one method of 
maintaining budgetary control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year-end.  However, outstanding 
encumbrances generally are reappropriated as part of the following year’s budget. 
 
As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, 
as well as the tables and discussion that follows, the City continues to meet its responsibility for 
sound financial management. 

 
At year-end, the City had nine debt issues outstanding.  These issues included $10,565,000 of 
general obligation bonds and $57,145,970 of revenue bonds--of which $33,175,970 related to the 
Water and Sewer Funds; $2,300,000, to the Bridge Fund; and $21,670,000 to the Development 
Corp and secured by sales tax receipts.  The City has maintained its A+ rating from Standard & 
Poor’s Corporation and has been assigned an A2 from Moody’s Investor Service on general 
obligation bond issues.  Texas statutes do not prescribe a debt limit; however, by custom, an 
economic debt of 5% of the assessed valuation on the tax roll is considered practical.   As of 
September 30, 2002, the City’s net general obligation bonded debt of $7,260,334 was well below 
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 the practical economic debt limit.  Net bonded general obligation debt per capita amounted to 
$63. 
 

 
In 1989 the City initiated a risk management program for workers’ compensation and general 
liability insurance.  Under this program, various risk control techniques, including employee 
accident prevention training, have been implemented to minimize accident-related losses.  Third-
party coverage is currently maintained for workers’ compensation claims in excess of  $250,000 
as the City self-funds the first $250,000 in claims.  Third-party coverage is also currently 
maintained for general liability claims in excess of  $10,000.  User funds provide revenues to this 
fund on the basis of what the state manual rates would otherwise be if the City purchased 
traditional level premium coverage. 

 

 
Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in interest-earning demand deposit accounts, 
certificates of deposit, obligations of the United States of America, its agencies and 
instrumentalities, all of which were authorized under the Public Funds Investment Act of 1987, 
as amended by the 76th Legislature, effective September 1, 1999, “the Act” (Chapter 2256 of the 
Local Government Code).  “The Act” requires cities and other political subdivisions, among 
other things, to adopt a written investment policy, conduct an annual review of the policy, have 
an annual compliance audit performed, require all those designed as investment officers to 
undergo training and prepare and submit quarterly reports to the governing body. 
 
The current bank depository agreement provides for rates on demand accounts, at the 91-day 
TBill rate minus 19 basis points; and certificate of deposits, at the treasury bill/note rate of equal 
maturities plus 0-26 basis points, depending the term ranging from 1 day to over a year. A 
significant amount of the City’s portfolio has been allocated to certificates of deposit.  The bank 
contract requires that any amount deposited with the bank, including accrued interest, be 110% 
collateralized by FDIC insurance, obligations of the United States of America, its agencies and 
instrumentalities.  Collateral securing the City’s funds is required to be kept at the Federal 
Reserve Bank of Dallas.  Collateral is valued weekly. 
 
As stated in the City’s investment policy, its objectives are safety, liquidity and yield, in that 
order. Investment maturities range from 1 day to 4 ½   years.  All investments held by the City 
during the year and at September 30, 2002 are classified in the category of lowest credit risk as 
defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  During the year, the City recognized 
$8,747,255 in investment earnings, net of the amount reported in the Firemen’s Relief & 
Retirement Fund, a decrease of $4,887,838 from prior year—of which $2,552,541 represents the 
change in the mark-to-market adjustment, leaving $2,335,297 due to lower yields and a decrease 
in cash available for investment due to increased fund balances/working capital as well as bond 
proceeds.  
 

 
Independent Audit 

 
State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants.  The firm of 
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The City has implementeda new financial reportingmodel, asrequiredby the provisions of
GASB StatementNo. 34, Basic Financial Statements— and Management‘s Discussion and
Analysis—forStateandLocalGovernments,asofSeptember30, 2002.

The management’sdiscussionand analysissectionis not a requiredpart of the basic financial
statements,but is supplementaryinformation required by the GovernmentalAccounting
StandardsBoard. We have appliedcertainlimited procedures,which consistedprincipally of
inquiriesof managementregardingthe methodsof measurementand presentationof therequired
supplementaryinformation. However,we did not audit the information and expressno opinion
on it.

In accordancewith GovernmentAuditing Standards,we have also issued our report dated
January17, 2003 on ourconsiderationof City ofMcAllen, Texas’ internal controlover financial
reportingand our testsof its compliancewith certainprovisionsof laws, regulations,contracts,
andgrants. Thatreportis an integralpart ofan audit performedin accordancewith Government
Auditing Standardsand should be readin conjunctionwith this report in consideringthe results
ofour audit.

TheaccompanyingScheduleofExpendituresof FederalandStateAwardsis presentedfor purposes
of additional analysisasrequiredby U.S. Office of Managementand Budget Circular A-l33,
AuditsofStates,Local Governments,andNonprofit Organizations,andthe Stateof TexasSingle
Audit Circular, issuedby theOfficeoftheGovernorof theStateofTexas,andis not arequiredpart
ofthebasicfinancialstatements.Such informationhasbeensubjectedto the auditingprocedures
applied in the audit of the basicfinancial statementsand, in ouropinion, is fairly stated,in all
materialrespects,in relationto thebasicfinancial statementstakenasawhole.

Our audit was performedfor the purposeof forming an opinion on the financial statementsthat
collectivelycompriseCity ofMcAllen, Texas’basicfinancialstatements.Theintroductorysection,
combining and individual nonmajorfund financial statementsand statistical data,as listed in the
TableofContentsarepresentedfor purposesofadditionalanalysisand arenotarequiredpartof the
basicfinancialstatements.Thecombiningandindividual nonmajorfundfinancialstatementshave
beensubjectedto theauditingproceduresappliedin theaudit ofthebasicfinancialstatementsand,
in our opinion,are fairly statedin all materialrespectsin relationto thebasicfinancialstatements
takenasa whole. Theintroductorysectionand statisticaldata,as listed in the Tableof Contents
herein,havebeensummarizedfrom City ofMcAllen, Texas’ recordsand werenot subjectedto the
audit proceduresapplied in the audit of the basic financial statements;accordingly, we do not
expressan opinion on suchdata. The accompanyingrequiredsupplementalinformation on the
TexasMunicipal RetirementSystemandtheFiremen’sReliefandRetirementFundis presentedfor
purposesofadditionalanalysisandis nota requiredpartofthebasicfinancial statements.Wehave
applied certain limited procedures,which consistedprincipally of inquiries of management
regardingthe methods of measurementand presentationof the supplementaryinformation.

However,wedid not auditthis informationandexpressno opinionon it.

~ ~
CertifiedPublicAccountants
January17,2003
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This discussion and analysis is intended to provide an overview of the City’s financial performance for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 and the related effect on the City’s financial condition.  Please 
read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on pages 3-11 and the City’s financial statements, which 
begin on page 41. 
 
 

 
 
City’s Change in Net Assets – Governmental and Business-Type Activities 
Total government-wide net assets increased $29M as a result of this year’s operations.  Governmental 
activities contributed $21M with the balance of $8M resulting from business-type activities. 
 
Since this is the City’s first year to implement the requirements of GASB No. 34, last year’s numbers for 
the government-wide level financial statements have not been audited and therefore are not available as a 
basis of comparison to the current year. Next year this information will be available and our discussion 
and analysis will address the following: 
 
• Governmental Activities – Revenues and Expenses Compared to Last Year 
 
• Business-Type Activities – Revenues and Expenses Compared to Last Year 
 
• City as a Whole – Revenues and Expenses Compared to Last Year 
 
 
General Fund Performance 
As a result of this year’s operations, the General Fund reported a $12M increase to fund balance before 
transfers out to the Capital Improvement Fund. After transferring $13M to that fund, a $1M planned 
decrease in fund balance resulted. The decrease was planned since it was deemed that fund balance was in 
a surplus position and the transfer would provide needed funding for capital projects on a pay-as-you go 
basis rather than incurring additional debt burden for the taxpayers.  Taxes and charges for services as 
well a other less significant revenue increases exceeded the amended budget by $1.5M, while 
expenditures and transfers-out were $3M under the amended budget—all of which resulted in fund 
balance settling in at $36M. 
  
 

 
The annual report consists of a series of financial statements.  The Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities (on pages 43 and 44-45) provide information about the activities of the City as a 
whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s finances.  Fund financial statements start on page 46.  
For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as 
well as what remains for future spending.  Fund financial statements also report the City’s operations in 
more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City’s most 
significant funds.  The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the 
City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government. 
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One of the central concerns in assessing any City’s finances could be summarized in the question, “Is the 
City as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?”  Our analysis addressing this 
question begins on page 22. The analysis includes a condensed summary of the government-wide 
financial statements—The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, which present 
information about the City in way that facilitates answering this question.  These statements are presented 
much like the private-sector companies—including all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of 
accounting. All revenues and expenses for the current year are reported without regard to when cash is 
received or paid. 
 
These government-wide financial statements report both net assets and changes thereto.  Net assets are 
reported in the Statement of Net Assets.  The City’s net assets, which is the difference between assets and 
liabilities, is one indicator of the City’s financial well-being or financial position at one point in time.  
Increases or decreases to net assets over a period of time is an indication whether its financial well-being 
is improving or deteriorating.  Of course, other non-financial considerations enter into the determination 
of the City’s overall health, which would include such things as changes in the City’s property tax base 
and the condition of its streets. 
 
Changes to net assets are reported in the Statement of Activities, which divides all City functions into two 
categories: 
 
Governmental activities—Most of the City’s basic services are reported in this category, which includes 
public safety (including police and fire), highways and streets, health and welfare, culture and recreation 
and general administration.  These activities are primarily supported by sales and property taxes and 
franchise fees. 
 
Business-type activities—Certain services that the City provides are paid for from fees that are charged to 
customers.  Water, sewer, garbage collection, civic center, golf course, airport, transit terminal and the 
bridge are activities that are reported in this category. 
 
 
 

 

 
Our analysis of the City’s major funds commences on page 23.  The fund financial statements are 
presented on pages 46 through 65.  These statements present detailed information about the City’s more 
significant funds as opposed to the City as a whole.  Funds are established for various reasons—some are 
required by state law; others, by bond covenants.  Some funds are established by the City Commission to 
assist in managing money that is to be spent for particular purposes.  For example, the Community 
Development Block Grant Fund was established to demonstrate that the money received from the U. S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development was used for purposes established by the federal 
government.  The City has two categories of funds, which can be used for public purpose—governmental 
and proprietary.  Each category uses a different accounting approach. 
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Governmental funds—Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds.  These funds 
focus on the flow of money into and out of the funds and the balance left over at the end of the year that is 
available for future spending.  Governmental funds use a method of accounting called modified accrual.  
The purpose of this method is to measure cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to 
cash.  This approach provides a detailed short-term perspective of the City’s general government 
operations and the basic services it provides.  This view of the City’s operations provides information that 
helps to determine the extent to which financial resources are available to spend in the near future to 
finance City programs.  The relationship between these governmental fund financial statements and the 
governmental activities column shown in the government-wide financial statements is shown in the form 
of a reconciliation presented on the page following each governmental fund financial statement. 
 
Proprietary funds—Services provided to either outside customers or to another unit of the City, where a 
fee is charged, are generally reported in proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds are reported the same way 
that is used in the government-wide financial statements.  Matter of fact, the City’s enterprise funds (a 
component of proprietary funds) are substantially the same as the business-type activities column of the 
government-wide financial statements but provide more detail including cash flows.  The other 
component of proprietary funds is internal service funds.  These funds are used to report services that are 
provided for other City funds—such as the Fleet and Materials Management Fund, which reports 
maintenance activities for all City vehicles. 
 

 

 
The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the Firemen’s Pension Fund.  This activity is reported in separate 
Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets on pages 64 and 65.  These 
activities are not included with the City’s other government-wide financial information since the City 
cannot use these assets to finance its programs or operations.  The City’s is responsible for ensuring that 
these funds are used for their intended purpose. 
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The City’s Condensed Statement of Net Assets is presented in the table below.  As previously indicated, 
last year’s numbers are not available for comparison to the current year but will be reported next year. 

 
 

Net Assets 
(in Millions) 

 
  Total 

Governmental Business-type Primary 
Activities Activities Government 

2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 

 

      
Current and other assets $127 N/A $102 N/A $229 N/A 
Capital assets 111 N/A 143 N/A 254 N/A 
  Total assets 238 N/A 245 N/A 483 N/A 
Long-term debt outstanding 36 N/A 44 N/A 80 N/A 
Other liabilities 10 N/A 8 N/A 18 N/A 
  Total liabilities 46 N/A 52 N/A 98 N/A 
Net assets:       
  Invested in capital assets,       
    Net of debt 86 N/A 132 N/A 218 N/A 
  Restricted 35 N/A 50 N/A 85 N/A 
  Unrestricted  71 N/A 11 N/A 82 N/A 
Total net assets $192 N/A $193 N/A $385 N/A 
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The table on the following page presents more detail on revenues and expenses. 
 

Changes in Net Assets 
(in Millions) 

 
   Total 
 Governmental Business-type Primary 
 Activities Activities Government 
 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 
Revenues       
Program revenues:       
  Charges for services $5 N/A $43 N/A $48 N/A 
  Federal grants 8 N/A 3 N/A 11 N/A 
  State grants - N/A - N/A - N/A 
General revenues:       
  Property taxes 19 N/A - N/A 19 N/A 
  Sales tax 40 N/A - N/A 40 N/A 
  Other taxes 8 N/A - N/A 8 N/A 
  Federal entitlements - N/A - N/A - N/A 
  Other general revenues 9 N/A 7 N/A 16 N/A 
    Total revenues 89 N/A 53 N/A 142 N/A 
Program expenses       
  General government 13 N/A - N/A 13 N/A 
  Public safety 34 N/A - N/A 34 N/A 
  Highways and streets 10 N/A - N/A 10 N/A 
  Health and welfare 5 N/A - N/A 5 N/A 
  Culture and recreation 11 N/A - N/A 11 N/A 
  Interest on long-term debt 2 N/A Incl N/A 2 N/A 
  Water - N/A 9 N/A 9 N/A 
  Sewer - N/A 7 N/A 7 N/A 
  Sanitation - N/A 8 N/A 8 N/A 
  Golf  - N/A 1 N/A 1 N/A 
  Transit terminal - N/A 1 N/A 1 N/A 
  Civic center - N/A 1 N/A 1 N/A 
  Airport - N/A 4 N/A 4 N/A 
  Bridge - N/A 6 N/A 6 N/A 
    Total expenses 75 N/A 37 N/A 112 N/A 
      Excess (deficiency)       
        Before special items       
        And transfers 14 N/A 16 N/A 30 N/A 
 
Transfers 

 
7 

 
N/A (7) 

 
N/A 

 
- 

 
N/A 

Increase (decrease)       
  In net assets $21 N/A $9 N/A $30 N/A 
 
Total revenues generated from both governmental and business-type activities this year amounted to 
$142M.  Expenses came in at $112M, leaving $30 as an increase to net assets.  
 

 
Total revenues generated from governmental activities this year amounted to $89M.  Expenses came in at 
$75M, leaving $14M as an increase to net assets before transfers. An additional net $7M in transfers from 
business-type activities was provided, resulting in an all-inclusive increase to net assets amounting to 
$21M. 
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The cost of all governmental activities this year was $75M.  However, as shown on the Statement of 
Activities on pages 44-45, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through 
taxes and other general revenues was $62M.  The other $13M to finance these programs was paid by 
those who directly benefited from them ($5M) and by other governments that subsidized certain programs 
with grants ($8M). 
 
The table below presents the cost of each of the City’s five largest programs as well as each program’s net 
cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities).  The net cost shows the financial burden that 
was placed on the City’s taxpayers by each of these functions. 
 
 

Governmental Activities 
(in Millions) 

 
   
 Total Cost Net Cost 
 Of Services Of Services 
 2002 2001 2002 2001 
     
Police $23 N/A 16 N/A 
General government 13 N/A 11 N/A 
Highways and streets 10 N/A 10 N/A 
Fire 9 N/A 9 N/A 
Health and Welfare 5 N/A 3 N/A 
  Total $60 N/A $49 N/A 

 
 

 
Total revenues generated from business-type activities this year amounted to $53M.  Expenses came in at 
$37M, leaving $16M as an increase to net assets before transfers, from which $7M in transfers were made 
to governmental activities, resulting in an all-inclusive increase to net assets amounting to $9M.  
 
More details will be provided about governmental and business-type activities’ operations later in this 
discussion and analysis. 
 
 

 
 
As a result of this year’s operations, governmental funds (as reflected in the balance sheet on page 46) 
increased combined fund balance to $97M, an increase of $12M over last year. The increase came about 
largely from the Capital Improvement Fund, which resulted primarily from significant unspent transfers-
in from the General Fund for future projects.  
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The following table presents a summary of general fund, special revenue funds, debt service fund and 
capital projects funds revenues and  transfers-in for the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2001. 
 
 

 
 

Revenues & Transfers-
In 

 
 

2002 
Amount 

 
 

% of 
Total 

 
 

2001 
Amount 

 
Amount of 
Increase 

(Decrease) 

 
% 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

 
Taxes 

 
$65,760,216 

 
60.51% 

 
$63,041,158 

 
$2,719,058  

 
4.31% 

 
Licenses & permits 

 
872,751 

 
0.80% 

 
824,608 

 
48,143 

 
5.84% 

 
Intergovernmental 

 
5,954,380 

 
5.48% 

 
8,576,131 

 
-2,621,751 

 
-30.57% 

 
Charges for services  

 
2,830,128 

 
2.60% 

 
2,699,727 

 
130,401 

 
4.83% 

 
Fines and Forfeitures 

 
2,070,902 

 
1.91% 

 
2,338,137 

 
-267,235 

 
-11.43% 

  Investment Income 
 

3,648,354 
 

3.36% 
 

5,861,970 
 

-2,213,616 
 

-37.76% 
 
Miscellaneous 

 
5,229,689 

 
4.81% 

 
16,275,600 

 
-11,045,911 

 
-67.87% 

 
Transfers-in 

 
22,313,291 

 
20.53% 

 
21,674,700 

 
638,591 

 
2.95% 

 
Total 

 
$108,679,711 

 
100.00% 

 
$121,292,031 

 
-$12,612,320 

 
-10.40% 

 
 

Taxes 
 
The most significant increase in taxes this year is attributable to sales tax, which increased $2.2M or 6% 
over prior year—despite the impact of 9-11 felt at the national level as well as many Texas cities.  It was 
followed by property tax, which posted a $1.4M increase. These increases were offset by franchise taxes, 
which dropped $632K—primarily due to the unusually high increase in the price of natural gas last year, 
which is used in the generation of electricity, the increase in price of which, in turn, is passed on to 
consumers—therefore, increasing franchise taxes, which are determined as a percentage of gross revenues 
of the electric company.  Also, last year was the final year of the Downtown Improvement District, which 
collected $196K in that final year.  Finally, hotel occupancy tax declined $71K or 2.4% from last year. 
 
Sales Tax – 2c 
Sales tax revenues continued its compounding growth trend, attaining an all time high of $39M. During 
the year, only one month reported a decrease.  The remaining eleven months reported increases of 
between 1% and 16%. 
 
Sales Tax – 1/2c Reported in the Development Corp 
This portion of the sales tax, amounting to $9.8M, increased $552K over last year. It is accounted for in 
the Development Corporation of McAllen, Inc. (Development Corp) Fund, a special revenue fund.  

 
Sales Tax – 1-1/2c Reported in the General Fund 
The balance of sales tax collections, which experienced an increase of $17M, is reported in the General 
Fund.  
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Ad Valorem (Property) Tax 
Overall, property tax collections, including the general citywide property tax offset by the special 
downtown property improvement tax, increased $1.2M or 7% over last year. 
 
General Property Tax 
The general citywide property tax including collections of the current levy, that of prior years’, 
agricultural rollback taxes, and penalty and interest increased $1.4M. 
 
Current General Property Tax Collections 
The most significant line item contributing to this increase is attributable to collection of current year 
taxes, which increase amounted to $1.1M.   
 
Growth in Taxable Assessed Value 
Although the overall tax rate remained unchanged for this fiscal year, taxable assessed values, as adjusted 
for changes throughout each fiscal year, increased by $187M or 5.6%% over last year.  Of that amount, 
$139M represented new improvements, leaving $48M attributable to a 1% increase in property existing in 
the prior year, which resulted from the Appraisal District’s revaluation. 
 
Collection Rate 
This year’s collection rate of current property taxes on the current adjusted tax levy amounted to 93% a 
decline of 2% from last year. 
 
Shifting of I&S Tax Rate to M&O Rate—Related Effects on Revenues in General Fund 
The I&S portion of the tax rate, which is accounted for in the Debt Service Fund, fell from 6.59c in fiscal 
year 2000-01 to 5.95c in fiscal year 2001-02—a decline of .64c due to declining general obligation debt 
service requirements and growth in property values. Therefore, the current tax revenues in the Debt 
Service Fund experienced a $75K decrease.  The resulting M&O portion of the tax rate, which is 
accounted for in the General Fund, increased from 35.54c in fiscal year 2000-01 to 36.18c in fiscal year 
2001-02. 
 
Downtown Improvement District Property Tax 
The decrease attributable to a property improvement district, known as the Downtown Improvement 
District, amounted to $196K—due to the district not being renewed beyond last year.    
  
Hotel Taxes 
Hotel taxes finished the year $71K under last year—a 2.4% decline. 
 
Other Taxes 
This year reported franchise taxes as a whole decreased $632K from the prior year. As previously stated, 
the decrease resulted primarily as a consequence of the unusually high prices for natural gas last year, 
which returned to normal this year. 
 

Intergovernmental 
 
The decrease in intergovernmental revenues is reflective of the decrease in grant activity, of which $1.5M 
represents a decline in reimbursements under the Community Development Block Grant Program with 
the balance of $1.2M due to decreases primarily in grants from the U.S. Department of Justice. 
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Investment Income 
 
Investment income, before adjusting investments to fair value, were down from prior year, generally due 
to a decline in yields.  Interest earnings in the governmental fund types amounted to $3.8M this year 
compared to $4.5M last year—a decrease of $736K. In addition, due to the GASB Statement No. 31 
requirement to mark to market, the City recorded an unrealized loss amounting to $99K, compared to an 
unrealized gain of $1.4M last year—resulting in a net decrease in value between the years of $1.5.  
 

Miscellaneous 
 
All other revenues, not otherwise classified, are included in this category.   Most of the decrease relates to 
one-time adjustments reclassifying interfund loans as well as non-recurring revenues reported in the 
previous year.  Of the $11M reported decrease from last year, $6M represents one-time adjustments in the 
prior year that increased revenues as a result of reclassifying three interfund loans from deferred revenues 
to reserved fund balance.  Of the remaining $5M, oil and gas royalties declined by $2.4M due to this 
year’s return to historically-normal gas prices.  Also, last year’s revenues included a recovery related to 
the preceding year COPS grant program as well as a sale of property. 
 

Transfers-In 
 
In addition to the normal transfers to the General Fund from the Bridge Fund for the City’s share of net 
surplus revenue generated from that fund and the Airport Fund to recognize General Fund services used, 
the substantial portion of the increase in transfers-in is due to transfers into the Capital Improvement Fund 
to supplement funding for capital projects.  The most significant was a transfer-in from the General Fund, 
amounting to $12.9M, representing an estimation of surplus fund balance in the General Fund. In 
addition, the Airport Fund transferred to the Debt Service Fund the debt service payments for airport-
related general obligation bonds, amounting to $1.7M. 

 
 

 
The following table presents a summary of general fund, special revenue funds, debt service fund and 
capital projects funds expenditures, transfers-out and other financing uses for the years ended September 
30, 2002 and 2001. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 - 27 -



 
 
 

Expenditures  & Transfers-Out 

 
 
 

2002 
Amount 

 
 

Percent 
of 

Total 

 
 
 

2001 
Amount 

 
 

Amount of 
Increase 

(Decrease) 

 
 

Percent of 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
 
General government 

 
$13,167,773 

 
13.60% 

 
$14,091,828 

 
-$924,055 

 
-6.56% 

 
Public safety 

 
36,070,171 

 
37.26% 

 
35,741,264 

 
328,907 

 
.92% 

 
Highways & streets 

 
7,130,013 

 
7.36% 

 
7,166,954 

 
-36,941 

 
-.52% 

 
Health & welfare 

 
5,023,136 

 
5.19% 

 
5,108,889 

 
-85,753 

 
-1.68% 

 
Culture & recreation 

 
10,273,642 

 
10.61% 

 
9,900,452 

 
373,190 

 
3.77% 

 
Capital Outlay 

 
5,192,130 

 
5.36% 

 
2,974,890 

 
2,217,240 

 
74.53% 

 
Debt service:  

 
   

 
 

  
 
  Principal 

 
2,725,000 

 
2.82% 

 
2,640,000 

 
85,000 

 
3.22% 

 
  Interest & fiscal charges 

 
1,759,168 

 
1.81% 

 
1,910,666 

 
-151,498 

 
-7.93% 

 
Transfers-out and other financing 
uses 

 
 

15,476,699 

 
 

15.99% 

 
 

16,228,885 

 
 

-752,186 

 
 

-4.63% 
 
Total 

 
$96,817,732 

 
100.00% 

 
$95,763,828 

 
$1,053,904 

 
1.10% 

 
 
 
 

Taken as a whole, governmental fund expenditures experienced a marginal increase over last year.  
General government actually reported a decrease of $924K.  This is primarily due to the reporting 
treatment given to workers’ compensation insurance.  Last year it was reported at the fund level within 
the general government category.  Beginning this fiscal year, it is reported at the department level.  The 
amount of the decrease was offset to some degree with less significant increases among the various 
departments, comprising the general government category.  The only significant increase reported was for 
capital outlay—of which a significant amount was for street projects.  The decline in transfers-out is 
substantially due to a non-recurring transfer last year from the Development Corp to assist in funding the 
first year’s operating and maintenance costs of approved capital projects, the branch libraries and 
recreation centers. 
 
 

 
Combined fund balance for the governmental fund types increased $12M, from a balance of $85M in the 
prior year to $97M as of the current fiscal yearend.  Fund balances, by major fund as well as the Debt 
Service Fund, are discussed below. 

 
General Fund 

 
Due to the strong performance from property tax and sales tax revenues as well as keeping expenditures 
as a whole under control, a planned decrease in fund balance was minimized to only $1M—despite 
transferring $13M to the Capital Improvement Fund for funding future capital projects.  As of September 
30, 2002, fund balance amounts to $36M.  Of that amount, $1.4M is reserved for an interfund advance to 
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the Sanitation Fund, as well as $245K reserved for encumbrances—leaving $35M unreserved and 
therefore currently available for future spending.  During fiscal year 1997-98, the City adopted, by 
resolution, a financial policy requiring, minimum of 140 days of operating expenses in fund balance. 
Based upon next year’s operating budget, exclusive of capital outlay and transfers-out, fund balance 
represents 208 days, which is 68 days in excess of the minimum requirement.  
 

Development Corp Fund 
 
The fund balance of the Development Corp Fund increased from $22M in the prior year to $25M—an 
increase of $3M. 
 

Capital Improvement Fund 
 
The fund balance of the Capital Improvement Fund increased $9M—from $16M in the prior year to 
$25M—resulting from the substantial transfer from the General Fund. 
 

Debt Service Fund 
 
The fund balance of the Debt Service Fund increased from $5M in the prior year to $7M—an increase of 
$2M.  Of this amount, $4M is reserved for interfund advances to the Airport Fund for the current and 
prior years’ debt service requirements on general obligation bonds, which are airport-related and which 
the Airport recorded a transfer to this fund, but was unable to effect. Despite this reservation, the balance 
currently available at year-end amounted to $3M, which is in excess of the general obligation bonds’ debt 
service requirements for the next fiscal year. 
 
 

 
The City’s enterprise operations consist of the McAllen Public Utility (Water and Sewer Funds), 
Sanitation Fund, Palm View Golf Course, Transit Terminal Fund, McAllen International Civic Center 
Fund, McAllen International Airport Fund and the McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund.  In the 
aggregate, the proprietary funds reported an $8M increase to net assets—from $184M in the prior year to 
$192M, as rounded. 
 

McAllen Public Utilities (MPU) – Water and Sewer Funds 
 
General Comments 
This year’s results, both in the Water Fund and the Sewer Fund, exceeded prior year and substantially 
attained or exceeded the budget.  Despite the absence of a rate increase, revenues were up largely due to 
the performance of water/sewer sales, which were impacted by consumption and growth in the customer 
base. 
 
Consumption 
Consumption increased this year by 500M gallons, representing an 8% increase over the previous year.   
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These consumption-related graphs indicate that the trend, in absolute terms, is up, which we attribute to 
growth in the customer base.  However, from year to year, the change is significantly influenced by 
rainfall.  Last year’s decrease in consumption was largely due to significant rainfall during the year.  A 
total of 22.38 inches of rain was measured that year compared to only 12.91 inches in the immediately 
preceding year.  This year the trend was reversed—rainfall amounted to only 13.78 inches, which resulted 
in a spike to this year’s consumption level. 
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Rates 
During this fiscal year, the water commodity rate remained at $1.30 per 1,000 gallons plus a monthly base 
rate of  $3.50—with the exception of Sharyland customers, whose rates were $6.00 and $1.35 
respectively.  The monthly minimum base rate for sewer customers remained the same at $9.00, as did the 
sewer commodity rate of $.75 per 1,000 gallons.  Rates have remained the same for the last three years. 
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Growth in Customer Base 
The number of water accounts this year grew by 1,523 or 5%, increasing the customer base to 34,103. 
The number of sewer accounts grew by 1,427 or 5%, increasing its customer base to 30,398. 
 
The impact of the increase in consumption and growth of the customer base on the increase in both water 
and sewer sales over the prior year and budget, are discussed later in this letter under each fund 
respectively. 
 

Water Fund 
 
Operating revenues increased by $900K over last year—from $10.4M to $11.3M.  Water sales, which 
makes up 94% of all revenues, increased $833K and $328K over last year and the budget, respectively, 
for the reasons indicated in the following table: 
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Water Sales 
Actual Increase (Decrease) Over Prior Year/Budget 

         Inc (Dec) 
          Prior Year 

           Inc (Dec) 
          Budget 

 
 

Reasons Amount % Amount %
Monthly Minimum Billing Related     
  Increase (Decrease) in Customer Base  $   54,220   .55% $  329 -% 
  Increase (Decrease) in Monthly Minimum Rate - -%     -   -% 
Increase in Commodity Rate - -% - -% 
Increase in Consumption 708,396 7.26% 257,456 2.51% 
Increase in Regional Water Usage          70,206       .72%       70,206 .68.% 
Total $ 832,822 8.53% $327,991 3.19% 

 
 
As indicated in the above table, the 8% increase in water sales over the prior year was principally due the 
increase in consumption although the increase in customer base as well as regional water sales played a 
part as well.  Other less significant operating revenues performed well as benchmarked against last year 
and budget.  Operating expenses as a whole experienced an $820K increase, however, were well under 
budgetary control.  Almost without exception, all departments were under budget. Operating income 
amounted to $2.8M, which is comparable with prior year.  Interest income experienced a sharp decline 
and was the determining factor in income before operating transfers decreasing $722 from last year to 
$3.6M.  The Sewer Fund provided a $4M transfer, increasing the change in net assets to $7.6M. 
 
As a result of this year’s operations, working capital increased to $9.4M, which represents 560 days of 
operating expenses exclusive of depreciation—far in excess of MPUB’s 120-day policy. 
 
Net revenues generated a bond coverage ratio of 3.36x Water Fund-related debt service. 
 

 
Sewer Fund 

 
Operating revenues increased by $700K over last year—from $7.5M to $8.2M.  Sewer sales, which 
makes up 93% of all revenues, increased $573K and $180K over last year and the budget, respectively, 
due to the reasons indicated in the following table: 
 
 
 

Sewer Fund – Sewer Sales 
Actual Increase (Decrease) Over Prior Year/Budget 

 
Inc (Dec) 

Prior Year 
Inc (Dec) 
Budget 

 
 

Reasons Amount % Amount %
Monthly Minimum Billing Related     
  Increase (Decrease) in Customer Base $121,356 1.67% $31,203 0.41% 
  Increase in Monthly Minimum Rate - -% - -% 
Increase in Commodity Rate - -% - -% 
Increase in Consumption 363,721  5.00% 21,334) .28% 
Calpine/Duke Reuse Charges  87,783   1.20% 127,119  1.65% 
Total $572,860   7.87% $179,656 2.34% 

 
 
As the previous table indicates, this year’s sewer sales increased over prior year most significantly due to 
an increase in consumption followed by growth in the customer base and Calpine/Duke effluent reuse 
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charges.   During this fiscal year, MPU delivered 1.3B gallons of effluent water to the Hidalgo Energy 
Center (formerly the Duke Energy Power Plant).  Unlike the Water Fund, interest earnings were able to 
maintain last year’s level due to a $5M due from the Water Fund last year being repaid as well as 
transferring $4 in bond proceeds to the Water Fund in order to more accurately allocate the proceeds, 
based upon revised plans to utilize them.  Operating expense grew by 5%, however, were well under 
budgetary control.  Without exception, all departments were under budget.  Income before transfers were 
comparable to last year.  The $4M transfer to the Water Fund resulted in a $1M decrease in net assets.   
 
Working capital at year-end amounted to $7M, which represents 406 days of operating expenses 
exclusive of depreciation—far in excess of MPUB’s 120-day policy. 
 
Net revenues generated a bond coverage ratio of 6.93x Sewer Fund-related debt service. 

 
Sanitation Fund 

 
This year’s operating revenues, representing charges for services, increased $900K or 11% over prior 
year, which is attributed a $1 per month rate increase on all classes of customers as well as an increase in 
the customer base.  Recycling revenue as well as roll-off container revenue contributed as well.  As a 
whole, operating expenses increased $900K, which resulted primarily from an increase in staffing as well 
as increased landfill cost due to increased volume—leaving an operating income of $480K—comparable 
to last year.  Considering the effect of non-operating revenues and the $550K transfer to the Capital 
Improvement Fund for remediation of the Old Public Works site, net assets increased by $192K. Working 
capital as of year-end amounted to $759K. 
 

McAllen International Civic Center Fund 
 
Operating revenues as well as expenses are almost identical to prior year levels, resulting in operating loss 
amounting to $500K. The decrease in net operating revenues before transfers is due to a sharp decline in 
interest earnings.  Funding is provided by a transfer from a portion of hotel occupancy taxes, which 
decreased marginally from last year—resulting in an increase to net assets of $2.4M. Within the restricted 
asset portion of the Statement of Net Assets, almost $24M has been accumulated to assist in funding the 
new convention center along with the Development Corp Fund. Working capital at year-end amounted to 
$1.6M. 

 
McAllen International Airport Fund 

 
Although there has been a decline in air travel throughout the nation following the terrorist attacks of 9-
11, operating revenues were within 5% of last year’s levels.  Operating expenses increased $218K or 5% 
largely due to increased security measures taken. As a result operating income decreased almost $400K 
from last year.  Considering other income, most of which related to the passenger facility charge and 
grant reimbursements from the FAA, the net loss before transfers for the current year amounted to $4M. 
Transfers-out to the City amounted to $2.8M—of which $1.7M was booked as an advance due to the 
Debt Service Fund for reimbursement of debt service requirements on the current year’s airport-related 
general obligation debt with the balance to the General Fund to reimburse for public safety personnel 
assigned to the Airport. As a result, a decrease in net assets of $237K is reported.  The balance of the 
advance to the Debt Service Fund has increased to $3.5M. Working capital has decreased to $311K as 
well.  The City plans to provide for the repayment of the advance from the Debt Service Fund by 
considering increased fees to the airlines and/or paid parking.  
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McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund 
 
Despite the impact on crossings immediately following the terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001, the 
level of car and pedestrian activity for the year increased 2% over last year, as indicated below: 
 
 

 
Category FY 01-02 FY 00-01 

Inc
(Dec) 

% Inc 
(Dec) 

Cars 6,098,562 5,989,198 109,364 2% 
Trucks 29,111 39,378 -10,267 -26% 
Buses 25,840 27,442 -1,602 -6% 
Pedestrians 13,538,807 13,296,020 242,787 2% 
     

 
 
The increase in net assets from operating income for FY 01-02 was $8.1M compared to $8.8M in FY 00-
01.  The decrease was principally due to an increase in development costs related to the new Anzalduas 
Bridge Project (“New Bridge”). 
 
Operating revenues increased by $106K or 1%, as toll rates remained the same as last year, while car 
crossings increased 2% offset by a 26% decrease in truck traffic.  Over the last several years, the Bridge 
has been redirecting truck traffic to the neighboring international bridge in Pharr, Texas in order to 
alleviate congestion in downtown Reynosa, Tamaulipas, Mexico, which borders the bridge port of entry 
as well as avoid shipments of hazardous materials. 
 
Operating expenses increased $774K or 43%.  The increase was primarily for development costs relating 
the new Anzalduas Bridge Project.  Once, the financing for the New Bridge is complete, these costs will 
be recoverable from the bond proceeds. 
 
Net non-operating expenses rose $285K due to a decline in interest income, resulting from a decline in 
yields as well as a net decrease in fair value of investments. 
 
Although income before transfers decreased, the transfer to the City of McAllen increased—due to the 
fact that these transfers are based on the prior year net surplus revenues. 
 
As a result of the above, the change in net assets was a $301K decrease. 
 
Net Assets, and its components, over time serve as a meaningful measure of the Bridge’s financial 
position.  The Bridge’s assets exceed liabilities by $19M at September 30, 2002. 
 
A condensed summary of the Bridge’s net assets at September 30 is shown below: 
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 FY 01-02 FY 00-01 
   
ASSETS:   
Current assets $1,605,645 $573,338 
Restricted assets 13,811,208 12,870,775 
Capital assets 6,187,997 6,391,174 
Other assets 706,777 625,333 
  Total assets $22,311,627 $20,460,620 
   
LIABILITIES:   
Current liabilities $808,868 $783,820 
Payable from restricted assets 294,136 286,086 
Long-term liabilities 2,200,339 81,074 
  Total liabilities $3,303,343 $1,150,980 
   
NET ASSETS:   
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $6,187,997 6,220,931 
Restricted 11,492,919 12,347,169 
Unrestricted 1,327,368 741,540 
  Total net assets $19,008,284 $19,309,640 

 
 
Overall net assets decreased from last year as a result of the change reported in the Statement of Activity.  
Within its components, unrestricted net assets increased primarily due to shifting assets, previously 
reported as restricted, pursuant to bond covenants under the old issue, which has been paid off, as well as 
the amount built up in the capital improvement account, to current assets.  This was done to shore up 
working capital from its deficit position last year.  
 
The Bridge charges tolls on southbound crossings into Mexico for various categories of customers as 
indicated below: 
 
 

Category FY 01-02 FY 00-01 
Pedestrians $0.25 $0.25 
Cars $1.50 $1.50 
Trucks (Depending on # of Axels) $4.00-$10.00 $4.00-$10.00 
Buses (Depending on # of Axels) $4.00-$6.00 $4.00-$6.00 
Motorcycles $1.00 $1.00 
Extra Axel $2.00 $2.00 

 
 
 
Toll rates for the current year remained unchanged from last year.  However, subsequent to this fiscal 
year, the Bridge Board and City Commission approved increasing the car toll rate to $1.75, effective 
January 1, 2003—a rate competitive with those in the area. 
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The following chart illustrates the relative contribution of each category of revenue to total operating 
revenues: 
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The following chart shows the major cost centers and each’s percentage contribution to total operating 
expenses for the current fiscal year. 
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The following table summarizes the major sources and uses of cash for the current and last fiscal year: 
 
 
 FY 01-02 FY 00-01 
Cash flow from Operating Activities $8,480,949 $9,124,957 
Cash flow used in Investing Activities (1,669,553) (653,202) 
Cash flow from (used in) Capital & Related Financing Activities 1,907,039 (330,616) 
Cash flow – transfers of Net Surplus Revenue to Cities (8,730,268) (8,341,869) 
Net increase (decrease) in Cash (11,833) (200,730) 
Cash – Beginning of Year 188,508 389,238 
Cash – End of Year $176,675 $188,508 
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At the end of this fiscal year, the Bridge had $6M in capital assets, the detail of which is shown below: 
 
 
 

 FY 01-02 FY 00-01 
Land $573,798 $573,798 
Bridge, equipment and improvements 3,690,767 3,685,711 
Buildings and improvements 6,374,693 6,305,483 
  Total capital assets 10,639,258 10,564,992 
Accumulated depreciation (4,451,261) (4,173,818) 
  Total capital assets - net $6,187,997 $6,391,174 

 
 
This year there were no major additions to capital assets. 
 
At the end of this fiscal year, the Bridge had $2.3M in revenue bonds outstanding, resulting from the bond 
issue during the year.  The proceeds will be used for various improvements to the existing port facilities. 
 

 
Palm View Golf Course Fund 

 
Although the number of rounds played have declined for all courses—both locally and nationally, 
operating revenues were able to post a 3% increase over prior year.  Responding to the drop in rounds, 
operating expenditures were cut by 4%. As a result of operations and other income, the year was 
completed with a decrease in net assets of $26K—a $150K improvement over last year.  Working capital 
at year-end amounted to $329K. 
 
 

Transit Terminal Fund 
 
In its first full year of operation, a decrease in net assets of $190K was generated. Working capital at 
year-end amounted to $126K. 

 

 
These funds were established to finance and account for services, materials and supplies furnished to the 
various departments of the City, and on a limited basis, to other local governmental agencies.  These 
services are provided on a cost reimbursement basis.  The City also accounts for its liability insurance, 
employee health and life insurance, its risk management activities as well as its replacement of General 
Fund rolling stock through these funds. 
 

 Fleet Materials Management Fund 
 
This fund is comprised of two departments; Materials Management and Garage.  This fund generated an 
increase in net assets of $62K. Working capital at year-end amounted to $409K. 
 
 

Employee Benefits Fund 
 
The Employee Benefits Fund was established to account for employee health insurance premiums, as well 
as benefits paid on claims submitted.  The revenues for these activities are provided by employee and City 
contributions as well as interest earnings.  This year due to a decline in claims experience, increase in 
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rates and recovery of last year claims exceeding the specific stop-loss, net assets were made whole of 
working capital.  

General Insurance Fund 
 
This fund was established to account for the property and casualty premiums and claims paid on workers’ 
compensation cases. As part of a comprehensive plan, resources are being accumulated in this fund to 
meet potential losses.  This year this activity generated an increase to net assets of $752K. Due to the 
accumulation of many years with favorable results, working capital is $3.7M.   
 
 

General Depreciation Fund 
 
This fund was established to serve as a replacement fund to finance General Fund rolling stock.  It was 
established in a prior fiscal year by a transfer-in from the Employee Benefits Fund in the amount of 
$1.5M.  Toward the end of the year it was supplemented with an additional $2M transfer from the 
General Fund due to its surplus revenue condition. The fund is sustained by charging a rental to the 
appropriate General Fund department for rolling stock purchased for its use equal to the cost plus 10% for 
anticipated inflation—pro-rated over the estimated life of each asset.  The net increase resulting from 
rental activities amounted to $675K, increasing net assets to $4.5M. This year the General Depreciation 
fund purchased rolling stock amounting to $1.1M. Working capital at year-end amounted to $4.4M. 
 
 

 
During the year the City Commission amended the budget several times.  One category of adjustments 
related to requests not considered during the normal budgetary process.  However, the more significant 
increases were projects identified depending on revenue performance.  Despite increasing budgeted 
expenditures and transfers-out by $5.6M, actual expenditures came under budget by $3M.  
 

 

 
 
 
At the end of the fiscal year, the City had $255M in capital assets. 
 
 

Capital Assets at Year-end 
(Net of Depreciation, in Millions) 

 
 

   
Total 

 Governmental Business-type Primary 
 Activities Activities Government 
 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 
Land $18 $17 $13 $13 $31 $30 
Buildings and improvements 15 15 114 104 129 119 
Equipment 11 11 6 6 17 17 
Infrastructure 59 59 - - 59 59 
Construction in progress 8 5 11 8 19 13 
Totals $111 $107 $144 $131 $255 $238 
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This year’s major additions included the following projects (in millions):   
 
 

  
Construction-in process – Police Station $3 
 Street improvements 3 
Water and sewer improvement projects 14 
Airport improvement projects 4 
  Total $24 

 

 
At the end of the fiscal year, the City had $74M in bonds outstanding—as shown in the following table: 
 
 

Outstanding Debt at Year-end 
(in Millions) 

 
 

   Total 
 Governmental Business-type Primary 
 Activities Activities Government 
 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 
General obligation bonds $10 $12 $- $- $10 $12 
  (backed by the City)       
Revenue bonds (backed       
  By specific tax and fee       
  Revenues 22 23 42 41 64 $64 
Totals $32 $35 $42 $41 $74 $76 

 
 
 

 
During the budget process for fiscal year 2002-03 the elected and appointed officials considered many 
factors including the forces driving the economy—among which were job growth, growth in new 
housing, bank deposits, retail sales growth, the unemployment rate, and inflation.  As a result of the 
deliberations, property tax rates were left unchanged.  Within the governmental funds, revenues are 
budgeted to increase by 6%.  The increase is expected to come largely from sale of property.  Total 
revenues were budgeted at $5.5M over last year’s actual of $86M. Transfers-in decreased by another 
$11M—due to a decrease in transfers from the General Fund to the Capital Improvement Fund.  
Expenditures on the other hand, were budgeted with a $18M increase, which primarily represents 
spending down fund balance in the Capital Improvement Fund.  
 
Within the business-type activities, we expect that fiscal year 2002-03 results will remain stable with last 
year as no provision was made for any rate increases. 
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This financial report is designed to inform the citizens, taxpayers and customers of the City of McAllen as 
well as its investors and creditors about the City’s finances and to provide accountability for the public 
support that it receives.  If your have any questions about the report or need additional financial 
information, contact the Finance Director’s Office at the City of McAllen, 1300 Houston, McAllen, Texas 
78505. 



 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 41 - 



Exhibit 1-A-1

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Assets
Cash 1,770,295$                 1,146,073$                 2,916,368$                 
Certificates of deposit 59,824,259                 12,556,593                 72,380,852                 
Investments 39,252,499                 6,437,475                   45,689,974                 
Receivables, net 14,807,930                 3,821,185                   18,629,115                 
Internal balances 9,122,419                   (9,122,419)                  -                                  
Inventories -                                  386,639                      386,639                      
Notes receivable 1,551,711                   -                                  1,551,711                   
Restricted assets -                                  83,432,252                 83,432,252                 
Capital assets, net 111,231,359               143,788,250               255,019,609               
Other assets -                                  2,681,218                   2,681,218                   

  Total assets 237,560,472$             245,127,266$             482,687,738$             

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6,544,907$                 7,124,810$                 13,669,717$               
Deferred revenues 1,135,185                   1,562,245                   2,697,430                   
Other 1,880,873                   -                                  1,880,873                   

Non-current liabilities:
  Due within one year 2,825,000                   1,765,000                   4,590,000                   
  Due in more than one year 33,404,721                 41,850,979                 75,255,700                 

  Total liabilities 45,790,686                 52,303,034                 98,093,720                 

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 86,076,359                 131,884,763               217,961,122               
Restricted for:
  Capital projects 25,728,451                 43,241,730                 68,970,181                 
  Debt service 7,005,836                   825,837                      7,831,673                   
  Other purposes 2,171,802                   5,488,240                   7,660,042                   
Unrestricted 70,787,338                 11,383,662                 82,171,000                 
  Total net assets 191,769,786               192,824,232               384,594,018               

Total liabilities and net assets 237,560,472$             245,127,266$             482,687,738$             

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2002
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Exhibit 1-A-2

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities:
  General government  12,906,438$       1,014,266$        593,211$            -$                      (11,298,961)$      -$                       (11,298,961)$     
  Public safety 34,384,019        2,894,411          3,636,993          952,229             (26,900,386)       -                        (26,900,386)       
  Highways and streets 10,137,676        381,288             -                        73,746               (9,682,642)         -                        (9,682,642)         
  Health and welfare 5,142,952          57,481               -                        2,407,901          (2,677,570)         -                        (2,677,570)         
  Culture and recreation 10,644,143        685,938             -                        111,456             (9,846,749)         -                        (9,846,749)         
  Interest on long-term debt 1,737,096          -                        -                        -                        (1,737,096)         -                        (1,737,096)         
    Total governmental activities  74,952,324         5,033,384           4,230,204           3,545,332          (62,143,404)        -                         (62,143,404)       

Business-type activities:
  Water services 9,604,181          11,319,094        -                        -                        -                        1,714,913          1,714,913          
  Sewer services 7,199,937          8,166,020          -                        -                        -                        966,083             966,083             
  Sanitation services 8,012,050          8,607,277          -                        -                        -                        595,227             595,227             
  Golf course services 1,136,123          721,571             -                        -                        -                        (414,552)            (414,552)            
  Civic center services 960,076             476,109             -                        -                        -                        (483,967)            (483,967)            
  Airport services 3,834,761          2,450,128          -                        3,148,247          -                        1,763,614          1,763,614          
  Transit services 555,102             203,798             -                        -                        -                        (351,304)            (351,304)            
  Bridge services 5,643,188          10,681,943        -                        -                        5,038,755          5,038,755          
    Total business-type activities 36,945,418        42,625,940        -                        3,148,247          -                        8,828,769          8,828,769          
Total government  111,897,742       47,659,324         4,230,204           6,693,579          (62,143,404)       8,828,769          (53,314,635)       

General revenues:
  Taxes:
    Property taxes, levied for general purposes 15,936,574         -                        15,936,574         
    Property taxes, levied for debt service 2,511,435          -                        2,511,435          
    Hotel occupancy tax 2,841,902          -                        2,841,902          
    Sales tax 39,293,407         -                        39,293,407         
    Franchise taxes 5,496,448          -                        5,496,448          
  Unrestricted investment earnings 4,482,653          4,264,602          8,747,255          
  Contributions 794,158             356,404             1,150,562          
  Miscellaneous 4,651,195          1,959,375          6,610,570          
Transfers 6,836,592          (6,836,592)         -                        
      Total general revenues, special items, and transfers 82,844,364         (256,211)            82,588,153         
        Change in net assets 20,700,960         8,572,558          29,273,518         
Net assets--beginning 171,068,826       184,251,674       355,320,500       

 Net assets--ending 191,769,786$      192,824,232$      384,594,018$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Program Revenues
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Exhibit 1-B-1
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

September 30, 2002

Other Total
Development Capital Governmental Governmental

General Corp Improvement Funds Funds
Assets

Cash  268,150$           185,673$          224,850$         1,019,964$        1,698,637$        
Certificates of deposit 6,169,670         17,665,942       23,148,514      5,395,159         52,379,285        
Investments 29,189,942       3,032,339         2,111,088        1,294,339         35,627,708        

 
Receivables, net:  
   Taxes 2,949,428         1,643,862         -                        897,187            5,490,477          
   Accounts 6,374,869         -                        -                        -                        6,374,869          
   Accrued interest 405,708            22,772              18,640              15,630              462,750             
   Other 826,912            -                        -                        939,061            1,765,973          
  Due from other funds 238,010            -                        -                        -                        238,010             
  Due from other governments 8,319                -                        -                        214,862            223,181             
Interfund loan 1,400,000         3,800,000         352,716            3,456,819         9,009,535          
Notes receivable -                        -                        1,551,711        -                        1,551,711          

     Total assets  47,831,008$     26,350,588$    27,407,519$    13,233,021$     114,822,136$    

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
   Accounts payable  1,456,848$        448,911$          281,207$         145,631$           2,332,597$        
   Bank overdraft -                        -                        -                        9                       9                         
   Accrued liabilities 1,653,144         438,284            67,273              1,268                2,159,969          
   Due to other funds -                        -                        -                        273,469            273,469             
   Deferred revenues 7,127,295         902,425            1,904,427        1,753,969         11,688,116        
   Other 1,167,319         -                        -                        713,554            1,880,873          

     Total liabilities 11,404,606       1,789,620         2,252,907        2,887,900         18,335,033        

Fund balance:
   Reserved for encumbrances 243,763            -                        -                        -                        243,763             
   Reserved for interfund loan 1,400,000         3,800,000         352,716            3,456,819         9,009,535          
   Unreserved, designated for economic development -                        1,212,155         -                        -                        1,212,155          
   Unreserved, reported in non-major funds
      Special revenue funds -                        -                        -                        3,227,091         3,227,091          
      Capital projects funds -                        -                        -                        356,545            356,545             
   Unreserved, undesignated 34,782,639       19,548,813       24,801,896      3,304,666         82,438,014        

     Total  fund balance 36,426,402       24,560,968       25,154,612      10,345,121       96,487,103        

     Total liabilities and
       fund balance  47,831,008$     26,350,588$    27,407,519$    13,233,021$     114,822,136$    

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 1-B-2

Fund Balances--total governmental funds  96,487,103$        

107,833,857        

10,552,931          

13,333,402          

(36,437,507)        

Net assets of governmental activities  191,769,786$      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of the Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2002

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as fleet 
management and insurance, to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of certain internal service 
funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets (Exhibit 1-A-1) are 
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not 
reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and therefore are 
deferred in the funds.
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Exhibit 1-B-3

Other Total
Development Capital Governmental Governmental

General Corp Improvement Funds Funds
Revenues:
  Taxes 50,594,796$    9,812,083$      -$                     5,353,337$       65,760,216$            
  Licenses and permits 872,751           -                       -                       -                       872,751                   
  Intergovernmental 416,855           -                       -                       5,537,525         5,954,380                
  Charges for services 2,830,128        -                       -                       -                       2,830,128                
  Fines and forfeitures 1,431,302        -                       -                       639,600            2,070,902                
  Interest 2,221,717        709,428           625,081           191,248            3,747,474                
  Net decrease in the fair value of investments (43,252)            (22,460)            (17,293)            (16,115)            (99,120)                   
  Other 3,623,860        139,297           757,055           709,477            5,229,689                

    Total revenues 61,948,157      10,638,348      1,364,843        12,415,072       86,366,420              

Expenditures:
  Current:
    General government 11,065,080      468,018           60,988             1,573,687         13,167,773              
    Public safety 28,968,883      2,806,050        -                       4,295,238         36,070,171              
    Highways and streets 6,494,561        569,060           -                       66,392              7,130,013                
    Health and welfare 782,188           1,825,691        -                       2,415,257         5,023,136                
    Culture and recreation 9,990,593        171,594           -                       111,455            10,273,642              
  Capital outlay -                       -                       5,192,130        -                       5,192,130                
  Debt service:
    Principal retirements -                       885,000           -                       1,840,000         2,725,000                
    Interest and fiscal charges -                       1,099,295        -                       659,873            1,759,168                

      Total expenditures 57,301,305      7,824,708        5,253,118        10,961,902       81,341,033              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 4,646,852        2,813,640        (3,888,275)       1,453,170         5,025,387                

Other financing sources (uses):
  Operating transfers in 7,156,443        -                       13,450,000      1,706,848         22,313,291              
  Operating transfers (out) (12,900,000)     (93,000)            (400,000)          (2,083,699)       (15,476,699)            

      Net other financing sources (uses) (5,743,557)       (93,000)            13,050,000      (376,851)          6,836,592                

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
  sources over expenditures and other uses (1,096,705)       2,720,640        9,161,725        1,076,319         11,861,979              

Fund balances at beginning of year 37,523,107      21,840,328      15,992,887      9,268,802         84,625,124              

Fund balances at end of year 36,426,402$    24,560,968$    25,154,612$    10,345,121$     96,487,103$            

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2002
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Exhibit 1-B-4

Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds 11,861,979$     

4,277,825         

(673,599)           

414,655            

2,725,000         

(37,718)             

2,132,818         

Change in net assets of governmental activities 20,700,960$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment 
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial 
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as flee
management and insurance, to individual funds.  The net revenue (expense) of certain internal 
service funds is reported with governmental activities.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Statement of "Revenues

to the Statement of Activities
September 30, 2002

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not 
reported as revenues in the funds.

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit 1-A-2 ) are 
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of activities 
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation 
expense.  This is the amount by which capital outlays ($10,847,176) exceeded depreciation, net of  
depreciation ($6,569,351) in the current period.

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of assets is reported, whereas in the 
governmental, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources.  Thus, the change in net 
assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of the assets sold.
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Exhibit 1-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
  Taxes:
   Ad valorem 15,270,887$     15,270,887$    15,662,099$    391,212$          
   Sales 27,125,000      27,125,000     29,436,249     2,311,249         
   Franchise 4,655,000        4,655,000       5,496,448       841,448            

      Total taxes 47,050,887      47,050,887     50,594,796     3,543,909         

Licenses and permits:
  Business licenses and permits 22,000             22,000            30,436            8,436                
  Occupational 51,300             51,300            67,387            16,087              
  Non-business licenses and permits 659,000           659,000          774,928          115,928            

      Total licenses and permits 732,300           732,300          872,751          140,451            

Intergovernmental revenues:
  State shared revenues 250,000           250,000          416,855          166,855            

      Total intergovernmenal revenues 250,000           250,000          416,855          166,855            

Charges for services:
  General governmental 1,282,600        1,282,600       1,277,750       (4,850)               
  Public safety 131,500           133,978          180,310          46,332              
  Highways and streets 221,000           221,000          378,287          157,287            
  Health 294,500           294,500          349,143          54,643              
  Culture and recreation 365,900           365,900          644,638          278,738            

      Total charges for services 2,295,500        2,297,978       2,830,128       532,150            

Fines and forfeitures:
  Corporations court 1,400,000        1,400,000       1,232,187       (167,813)           
  Other fines 175,500           175,500          199,115          23,615              

      Total fines and forfeitures 1,575,500        1,575,500       1,431,302       (144,198)           

Interest 1,800,000        1,800,000       2,221,717       421,717            

Net increase in fair value of investments -                      -                      (43,252)           (43,252)             

Other:
  Royalties 3,900,000        3,900,000       2,589,150       (1,310,850)        
  Rents and concessions 40,000             40,000            62,156            22,156              
  Sale of property 5,000               5,000              56                   (4,944)               
  Reimbursements 17,000             17,000            130,996          113,996            
  Other 36,000             136,386          841,502          705,116            

      Total other revenues 3,998,000        4,098,386       3,623,860       (474,526)           

      Total revenues 57,702,187      57,805,051     61,948,157     4,143,106         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
Continued

Budgeted Amounts

- 50 -



Exhibit -1-C Continued
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Expenditures:
  General government:
   City commission 277,311$          277,311$         137,128$         140,183$          
   Special service 541,500           1,041,500       1,038,594       2,906                
   City manager 459,067           477,805          485,716          (7,911)               
   City secretary 371,891           381,363          446,306          (64,943)             
   Audit office 108,425           112,421          127,878          (15,457)             
   Municipal court 784,617           890,598          727,353          163,245            
   Finance 856,335           874,752          746,298          128,454            
   Tax Office 627,331           633,718          719,207          (85,489)             
   Purchasing and contracting 261,335           289,106          287,557          1,549                
   Legal 516,202           532,737          545,845          (13,108)             
   Grant administration 68,839             70,552            73,620            (3,068)               
   Right of way 163,302           163,884          137,925          25,959              
   Personnel 367,505           374,807          418,778          (43,971)             
   Risk management 1,862,348        1,862,348       865,341          997,007            
   Planning 674,009           690,911          599,989          90,922              
   Management information system 880,340           872,961          681,099          191,862            
   Information department 287,078           293,178          279,217          13,961              
   City hall 540,262           542,470          595,793          (53,323)             
   Building maintenance 308,065           313,995          275,370          38,625              
   Non-department activities 1,957,893        1,957,893       1,876,066       81,827              

      Total general government 11,913,655      12,654,310     11,065,080     1,589,230         

Public safety:
   Police 18,403,291      18,808,906     17,784,010     1,024,896         
   Animal control 155,640           155,640          154,964          676                   
   Fire 7,953,220        8,349,206       8,576,383       (227,177)           
   Traffic safety 1,543,259        1,557,655       1,529,488       28,167              
   Donwntown services 451,551           458,460          444,342          14,118              
   Inspection 485,242           494,003          479,696          14,307              

      Total public safety 28,992,203      29,823,870     28,968,883     854,987            

Highways and streets:
   Engineering services 1,545,629        1,590,777       1,335,029       255,748            
   Street cleaning 294,710           297,963          327,210          (29,247)             
   Street maintenance 2,774,707        2,799,627       2,649,778       149,849            
    Sidewalk construction 400,000           400,000          361,790          38,210              
   Drainage 680,695           689,956          684,246          5,710                
   Street lighting 1,558,000        1,558,000       1,136,508       421,492            

      Total highways and streets 7,253,741        7,336,323       6,494,561       841,762            

Health and welfare:
   Health 503,627           512,770          495,052          17,718              
   Graffitti Cleaning 132,669           134,283          139,225          (4,942)               
   Other agencies 152,500           152,500          147,911          4,589                

      Total health and welfare 788,796           799,553          782,188          17,365              

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Continued

Budgeted Amounts
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Exhibit -1-C Concluded

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Culture and recreation:
   Library-main 2,405,043$       2,505,766$      2,098,904$      406,862$          
   Library-Lark 428,627           425,878          311,956          113,922            
   Library-Palmview 425,410           410,910          262,225          148,685            
   Parks and recreation administration 510,643           519,764          469,925          49,839              
   Parks 2,889,012        2,940,104       2,961,986       (21,882)             
   Recreation 636,822           640,703          806,273          (165,570)           
   Recreation center-Lark 333,645           335,211          363,235          (28,024)             
   Recreation center-Palmview 340,870           345,128          383,365          (38,237)             
   Quinta Mazatlan renovations 226,359           226,359          5,363              220,996            
   Pools 566,187           574,796          759,128          (184,332)           
   Senior Citizens Center 262,354           267,323          276,733          (9,410)               
   Other agencies 476,500           476,500          481,500          (5,000)               
   Museums 610,000           810,000          810,000          -                       

      Total culture and recreation 10,111,472      10,478,442     9,990,593       487,849            

      Total expenditures 59,059,867      61,092,498     57,301,305     3,791,193         
        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
         over expenditures (1,357,680)      (3,287,447)      4,646,852       7,934,299         

Other financing sources (uses)
    Operating transfers in 7,171,811        7,171,811       7,156,443       (15,368)             
    Operating transfers out (8,400,000)      (12,900,000)    (12,900,000)    -                       

        Net other financing sources (uses) (1,228,189)      (5,728,189)      (5,743,557)      (15,368)             

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
         other sources over expenditures
         and other uses (2,585,869)      (9,015,636)      (1,096,705)      7,918,931         

Fund balance at beginning of year 37,523,107      37,523,107     37,523,107     -                       

Fund balance at end of year 34,937,238$      28,507,471$     36,426,402$     7,918,931$       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Budgeted Amounts
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Exhibit 1-D
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
  Taxes:
    Sales tax 9,041,667$      9,041,667$      9,812,083$       770,416$         
    Interest 550,000          550,000          709,428            159,428           
    Net decrease in the fair value of investments -                     -                      (22,460)            (22,460)           
    Other 100,000          100,000          139,297            39,297             

      Total revenues 9,691,667       9,691,667       10,638,348      946,681           

Expenditures:
Current:
  General government 3,559,408       3,559,408       468,018            3,091,390        
  Public safety 3,320,527 3,320,527 2,806,050 514,477           
  Highways and streets 7,557,223       8,421,923       569,060            7,852,863        
  Health and welfare 2,540,945       2,540,945       1,825,691        715,254           
  Culture and recreation 1,338,873       1,338,873       171,594            1,167,279        
    Debt service:
      Principal 885,000          885,000          885,000            -                      
      Interest and fiscal charges 1,099,295       1,099,295       1,099,295        -                      

Total expenditures 20,301,271     21,165,971     7,824,708        13,341,263      

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
         over expenditures (10,609,604)   (11,474,304)    2,813,640        14,287,944      

Other financing sources (uses)
    Operating transfers out (93,000)          (93,000)           (93,000)            -                      

        Net other financing sources (uses) (93,000)          (93,000)           (93,000)            -                      

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
         other sources over expenditures
         and other uses (10,702,604)   (11,567,304)    2,720,640        14,287,944      

Fund balance at beginning of year 21,840,328     21,840,328     21,840,328      -                      

Fund balance at end of year 11,137,724$     10,273,024$     24,560,968$      14,287,944$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Budgeted Amounts
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McAllen
International

Water Sewer Sanitation Civic Center

Assets

Current assets:
Cash 307,372$              170,694$             34,141$             20,329$              
Certificates of deposi 6,817,539            4,186,278           100,085            1,002,461          
Investments 1,528,528            2,192,454           232,093            521,388             
Receivables, net -                           -                           -                         -                         
  Accounts 1,360,623            944,487              982,351            1                         
  Accrued interest 29,392                 21,936                -                         9,152                 
  Other -                           54,627                -                         -                         
Due from other funds -                           -                           -                         60,435               
Due from other governments -                           -                           -                         -                         
Inventories, at cost 30,945                 -                           -                         -                         

   Total current assets 10,074,399          7,570,476           1,348,670         1,613,766          

Restricted assets
  Cash 33,959                 29,755                21,984              3,720                 
  Certificates of deposi 9,270,782            6,145,791           2,083,518         17,400,385        
  Certificates of deposit-reserved for distributio -                           -                           -                         -                         
  Money market savings 20,303,569          2,445,945           -                         -                         
  Investments 1,807,809            2,446,465           119,554            6,026,727          
  Accrued interest 14,935                 11,428                -                         93,878               
  Due from other funds -                           -                           -                         90,652               
  Other -                           -                           -                         12                      

   Total restricted assets 31,431,054          11,079,384         2,225,056         23,615,374        

Fixed assets 66,981,891          50,584,765         11,526,423       9,060,408          
  Less accumulated depreciation (23,273,248)        (23,681,269)        (6,722,349)        (1,995,715)         

   Net fixed assets 43,708,643          26,903,496         4,804,074         7,064,693          

Other asssets
  Loans receivable 110,807               110,807              -                         -                         
  Other assets, net 1,592,394            160,433              -                         -                         

   Total other assets 1,703,201            271,240              -                         -                         

   Total assets  86,917,297$          45,824,596$          8,377,800$         32,293,833$         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this stateme

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2002

Business Type Activities
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Governmental
Activities

McAllen McAllen Other Internal
International International Proprietary Service

Airport Toll Bridge Funds Total Funds

2,326$                     175,960$                162,110$               872,932$                   344,799$                 
200,000                   -                             250,230                12,556,593             7,444,974                
347,740                   1,429,684               185,588                6,437,475                3,624,791                

-                               -                             -                            
232,346                   -                             -                            3,519,808                168,681                   

5,491                       -                             6,136                    72,107                     36,945                     
-                               -                             -                            54,627                     233,937                   
-                               -                             -                            60,435                     -                              

174,643                   -                             -                            174,643                   -                              
-                               -                             -                            30,945                     355,694                   

962,546                   1,605,644               604,064                23,779,565             12,209,821              

920                          715                         -                            91,053                     -                              
1,035,876               2,452,560               -                            38,388,912             -                              

-                               5,488,240               -                            5,488,240                -                              
-                               -                             -                            22,749,514             -                              

264,349                   5,800,502               -                            16,465,406             -                              
3,660                       69,192                    -                            193,093                   -                              

-                               -                             -                            90,652                     -                              
56,022                     -                             -                            56,034                     -                              

1,360,827               13,811,209            -                            83,522,904             -                              

61,935,660             10,639,258            12,468,149          223,196,554           5,989,890                
(17,084,147)            (4,451,261)             (2,399,600)           (79,607,589)            (2,393,103)              

44,851,513             6,187,997               10,068,549          143,588,965           3,596,787                

-                               -                             -                            221,614                   -                              
-                               706,777                  -                            2,459,604                -                              

-                               706,777                  -                            2,681,218                -                              

47,174,886$            22,311,627$           10,672,613$           253,572,652$            15,806,608$            

Business Type Activities
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McAllen
International

Water Sewer Sanitation Civic Center

Operating revenues:
  Charges for services 11,319,094$        8,166,020$          8,607,277$        7,812$                
  Rentals -                           -                           -                         468,297             
  Other -                           -                           -                         -                         

     Total operating revenues 11,319,094          8,166,020           8,607,277         476,109             

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefit 2,910,305            1,813,388           2,913,319         457,031             
  Supplies and materials 1,592,546            422,908              134,882            23,546               
  Contractual and other services 1,480,817            1,791,351           2,938,111         347,132             
  Repairs and maintenance 393,637               298,196              1,352,333         22,824               
  Depreciation and amortization 1,775,426            1,909,897           754,502            125,295             
  Self insurance claims -                           -                           -                         -                         
  Other 405,684               308,182              34,748              -                         

     Total operating expenses 8,558,415            6,543,922           8,127,895         975,828             

     Operating income (loss) 2,760,679            1,622,098           479,382            (499,719)            

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
  Interest income 1,663,291            1,274,218           69,532              1,011,791          
  Net decrease in the fair value of investment (48,662)                2,210                  -                         (110,441)            
  Interest expense (1,436,021)          (692,573)             -                         -                         
  Other 662,276               288,872              193,367            2,890                 

     Net non-operating revenues (expenses 840,884               872,727              262,899            904,240             

     Income (loss) before contributions and transfer 3,601,563            2,494,825           742,281            404,521             
Capital contributions -                           299,722              -                         -                         
Transfers-in (out) 4,000,000            (4,000,000)          (550,000)           2,029,930          
  Change in net assets 7,601,563            (1,205,453)          192,281            2,434,451          

Total net assets--beginning 47,357,448          32,469,324         5,543,394         29,743,807        

Total net assets--ending  54,959,011$          31,263,871$          5,735,675$         32,178,258$        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this stateme

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Business Type Activities
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Exhibit 1-E-2

Governmental
Activities

McAllen McAllen Other Internal
International International Proprietary Service

Airport Toll Bridge Funds Total Funds

494,294$                9,871,097$            925,369$               39,390,963$             3,486,782$              
1,955,834               700,424                  -                            3,124,555                -                              

-                               110,422                  -                            110,422                   8,732,528                

2,450,128               10,681,943            925,369                42,625,940             12,219,310              

786,138                   1,038,630               878,125                10,796,936             731,239                   
33,049                     67,248                    112,299                2,386,478                9,733                       

850,383                   130,963                  266,489                7,805,246                3,120,468                
246,197                   125,350                  74,441                  2,512,978                21,842                     

1,950,499               301,256                  374,134                7,191,009                998,288                   
-                               -                             -                            -                               5,989,524                
-                               901,957                  -                            1,650,571                14,233                     

3,866,266               2,565,404               1,705,488             32,343,218             10,885,327              

(1,416,138)              8,116,539               (780,119)              10,282,722             1,333,983                

66,001                     381,501                  25,551                  4,491,885                403,159                   
(9,381)                     (66,481)                  -                            (232,755)                 (30,481)                    

-                               (51,204)                  -                            (2,179,798)              730,074                   
3,901,549               (3,050,848)             388,668                2,386,774                -                              

3,958,169               (2,787,032)             414,219                4,466,106                1,102,752                

2,542,031               5,329,507               (365,900)              14,748,828             2,436,735                
-                               -                             56,682                  356,404                   -                              

(2,778,658)              (5,630,863)             93,000                  (6,836,591)              -                              
(236,627)                 (301,356)                (216,218)              8,268,641                2,436,735                

43,218,444             19,309,640            6,539,701             184,181,758           11,270,500              

 42,981,817$            19,008,284$           6,323,483$             192,450,399$            13,707,235$            

Change in net assets 8,268,641                

303,917                   

Change in net assets of business-type activitie 8,572,558$              

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of 
activities (Exhibit 1-A-2) are different because the net revenue (expense) 
of certain internal service fund is reported with business-type activities.

Business Type Activities
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McAllen
International

Water Sewer Sanitation Civic Center

Cash flows from operating activities:
  Receipts from customers 11,115,348$        7,966,188$          8,546,002$        472,789$            
  Payments to suppliers (3,798,675)          (3,214,265)          (4,009,160)        (406,746)            
  Payments to employees (2,880,166)          (1,615,526)          (2,913,319)        (457,031)            
  Internal activity--payments to other fund -                           -                           -                         48,213               
  Claims paid -                           -                           -                         -                         
  Other receipts (payments) 1,836,057            636,170              207,379            5,306                 

  Net cash provided by operating activitie 6,272,564            3,772,567           1,830,902         (337,469)            

Cash flows from noncapital financing
  activities
   Operating transfers in (out) 10,028,369          (10,028,369)        -                         -                         
   Advance from other funds -                           -                           (550,000)           2,029,930          
   Distribution of income to City of Hidalg -                           -                           -                         -                         
   Receipt of capital contribution -                           -                           -                         -                         

    Net cash provided by (used for) noncapita
     financing activities 10,028,369          (10,028,369)        (550,000)           2,029,930          

Cash flows from capital and related
  financing activities:
   Contributed capital -                           -                           -                         -                         
   Payments for capital acquisition (10,368,732)        (3,639,171)          (873,803)           (483,769)            
   Proceeds  received on long term deb -                           -                           -                         -                         
   Principal repayments-bonds (759,200)             (745,800)             -                         -                         
   Principal repayments-defeased -                           -                           -                         -                         
   Interest paid-bonds payable (1,434,846)          (643,113)             -                         -                         

    Net cash provided by (used for) capital and
      related financing activitie (12,562,778)        (5,028,084)          (873,803)           (483,769)            

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, ne (5,307,549)          10,022,513         (553,340)           (2,101,382)         
   Receipt of interest 1,644,021            1,276,021           69,532              901,350             

    Net cash provided by (used for
     investing activities (3,663,528)          11,298,534         (483,808)           (1,200,032)         

    Net increase (decrease) in cash 74,627                 14,648                (76,709)             8,660                 

    Cash at beginning of year 266,704               185,801              132,834            15,389               

    Cash at end of year  341,331$                200,449$               56,125$              24,049$               

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this stateme

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Business Type Activities
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Exhibit 1-E-3

Governmental
Activities

McAllen McAllen Other Internal
International International Proprietary Service

Airport Toll Bridge Funds Total Funds

2,403,917$             10,569,871$          927,006$               42,001,121$            12,248,748$            
(1,481,947)              (1,161,629)             (467,316)              (14,539,738)            (3,232,369)              

(748,686)                 (1,037,715)             (878,125)              (10,530,568)            (731,239)                  
-                               -                             -                            48,213                     -                              
-                               -                             -                            -                               (5,989,524)              

1,221,424               110,422                  188,299                4,205,057                780,438                   

1,394,708               8,480,949               (230,136)              21,184,085             3,076,054                

(2,778,658)              (5,681,543)             93,000                  (8,367,201)              -                              
1,706,848               -                             (100,000)              3,086,778                -                              

-                               (3,048,725)             -                            (3,048,725)              -                              
3,076,292               -                             -                            3,076,292                -                              

2,004,482               (8,730,268)             (7,000)                   (5,252,856)              (1,133,304)              

-                               -                             -                            -                               -                              
(3,758,132)              (74,266)                  (54,362)                (19,252,235)            -                              

-                               2,300,000               -                            2,300,000                -                              
-                               (275,500)                -                            (1,780,500)              -                              
-                               -                             -                            -                               -                              
-                               (43,195)                  -                            (2,121,154)              -                              

(3,758,132)              1,907,039               (54,362)                (20,853,889)            -                              

56,620                     (1,985,372)             365,657                497,147                    (2,349,086)              
294,562                   315,819                  26,542                  4,527,847                403,159                   

351,182                   (1,669,553)             392,199                5,024,994                (1,945,927)              

(7,760)                     (11,833)                  100,701                102,334                   (3,177)                      

11,006                     188,508                  61,409                  861,651                   347,976                   

 3,246$                      176,675$                 162,110$                 963,985$                    344,799$                 

Business Type Activities
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McAllen
International

Water Sewer Sanitation Civic Center

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
  net cash provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss)  2,760,679$            1,622,098$           479,382$           (499,719)$            
Adjustment to reconcile operating income
  (loss) to net cash provided by operating
  activities:
   Depreciation and amortization  1,775,426              1,909,897             754,502             125,295               
   Miscellaneous income (expense) 773,127                 628,864                204,179             3,288                   
    Loss on asset disposal -                             -                             3,200                 -                           
   Accounts receivable (159,810)               (55,424)                 (76,752)              2,018                   
   Accrued interest -                             -                             -                          15,813                 
   Loan receivable -                             -                             -                          -                           
   Other receivables -                             (24,492)                 -                          749                      
   Due from other governments -                             -                             -                          -                           
   Due from other funds -                             -                             -                          48,213                 
   Inventories (5,743)                    -                             -                          -                           
   Other assets, net -                             7,306                    -                          -                           
   Accounts payable 79,755                   (393,628)               459,520             (15,479)                
    Other payables -                             -                             (8,606)                2,235                   
   Accrued expenses 30,139                   197,862                -                          -                           
   Other current liabilities 1,062,927              -                             -                          -                           
   Deferred revenue (43,936)                  (119,916)               15,477               (19,882)                
    Net cash provided by (used for)
      operating activities 6,272,564$            3,772,567$           1,830,902$        (337,469)$            

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business Type Activities

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
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Exhibit 1-E-3 Concluded

Governmental
Activities

McAllen McAllen Other Internal
International International Proprietary Service

Airport Toll Bridge Funds Total Funds

(1,416,138)$            8,116,539$            (780,119)$               10,282,722$              1,333,982$              

1,950,499               301,256                  374,135                   7,191,010                  ` 998,288                   
817,242                   -                              375,069                  2,801,769                  710,851                   

-                               -                              -                              3,200                         -                               
(48,817)                   -                              -                              (338,785)                   21,857                     

1,054                       -                              -                              16,867                       7,581                       
-                               -                              -                              -                                 -                               
-                               -                              12,233                    (11,510)                     71,097                     

459,150                   -                              -                              459,150                     -                               
-                               -                              (200,000)                (151,787)                   -                               
-                               -                              -                              (5,743)                        (19,128)                    

(56,022)                   -                              -                              (48,716)                     -                               
(352,318)                 54,505                    (15,999)                  (183,644)                   202,584                   

-                               9,384                      -                              3,013                         3,638                       
37,452                     -                              1,911                      267,364                     (254,696)                  

-                               915                         -                              1,063,842                  -                               
2,606                       (1,650)                     2,634                      (164,667)                   -                               

1,394,708$             8,480,949$            (230,136)$              21,184,085$             3,076,054$              

Business Type Activities
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Exhibit 1-F-1
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2002

Pension Trust
Fund

Firemen's Relief
and

Retirement Fund

ASSETS
Cash 3,222,670$            
Investments 16,459,588           

    Total current assets 19,682,258$           

LIABILITIES
  Accounts payable 1,544$                   

    Total liabilities 1,544                    

NET ASSETS
Net assets held in trust for pension benefit 19,680,714           

    Total net assets 19,680,714           

    Total liabilities and
      net assets 19,682,258$          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 1-F-2
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FIREMEN'S RELIEF AND RETIREMENT FUND OF MCALLEN, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS

For Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2002

2002 2001

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
   Members 543,790$         503,357$          
   Employer 607,612          560,891            

          Total contributions 1,151,402       1,064,248         

Investment earnings:
    Interest and dividends 904,676          830,906            
    Net depreciation in fair value of investments (917,375)         (3,395,732)       

          Total investment earnings (12,699)           (2,564,826)        

     Less: Investment expense (148,794)         (225,800)          

          Net investment earnings (161,493)         (2,790,626)       

                Total additions (deductions) 989,909          (1,726,378)       

DEDUCTIONS
  Benefits 791,982          552,903            
  Refund of contributions 11,417            94,417              
  Administrative expense 12,940            10,599              

       Total deductions 816,339          657,919            

          Change in net assets 173,570          (2,384,297)       

Net assets--beginning 19,507,144     21,891,441       

Net assets--ending 19,680,714$    19,507,144$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemen
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September30, 2002

At retirement,the benefit is calculatedas if the sum of the employee’saccumulated
contributionswith interestand the employer-financedmonetarycreditswith interest
wereusedto purchasean annuity.

Memberscan retire at ages 60 and abovewith 10 or more yearsof serviceor with
25 yearsof serviceregardlessof age. A memberis vestedafter 10 years. Theplan
provisionsareadoptedby the governingbody of theCity, within theoptionsavailable
in the statestatutesgoverningTMRS, and within the actuarialconstraintsalso in the
statutes.

2. Contributions

The contribution rate for the employeesis 5% of coveredpayroll, and the City
matchingpercentis currently2 to 1, bothasadoptedby the governingbody oftheCity.
Under the state law governing TMRS, the actuary annually determinesthe City
contributionrate. This rateconsistsof thenormalcost contributionrateandthe prior
servicecontributionrate,both ofwhich arecalculatedto be a level percentof payroll
from yearto year. The normal cost contributionrate financesthe currently accruing
monetarycreditsdueto theCity matchingpercent,which are theobligationof theCity
asof an employee’sretirementdate,not at the time the employee’scontributionsare
made. The normal cost contribution rate is the actuarially-determinedpercent of
payroll necessaryto satisfy the obligationof the City to eachemployeeat the time
his/herretirementbecomeseffective. Theprior servicecontributionrateamortizesthe
unfunded(overfunded)actuarialliability (asset)over the remainderof the plan’s 25-

year amortizationperiod. When the City periodically adoptsupdatedservicecredits
and increasesin annuitiesin effect, the increasedunfundedactuarialliability is to be
amortizedoveranew25 yearperiod. Currently,theunfundedactuarialliability is to be
amortizedoverthe25-yearperiod,whichbeganJanuary1997.

Theunit credit actuarialcostmethodis usedfor determiningthe City contributionrate.
Both theemployeesandthe City makecontributionsmonthly. Sincethe City needs
to know its contribution rate in advanceto budgetfor it, there is a one-yeardelay
betweenthe actuarialvaluationthat is thebasisfor therateandthe calendaryearwhen
therategoesinto effect.
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FIREMEN’S RELIEF AND RETIREMENT FUND 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

 
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

09/30/97 $12,733,928 $15,214,170 $2,480,242 83.70% $3,722,417 66.60%
09/30/98 $13,670,926 $18,257,077 $4,586,151 74.90% $4,042,752 113.40%
09/30/00 $18,173,765 $21,576,631 $3,402,806 84.20% $4,263,430 79.80%

 
 
 



 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 

 
 
 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 
 
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for resources allocated to specific 
purposes.  A special revenue fund continues in existence as long as governmental 
resources are allocated to its specific purposes: 
 
The Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund was established to account for the hotel-motel 
occupancy tax levied.  This tax revenue is allocated to the promotion of tourism and 
conventions, promotion of the arts, support of civic center management, and other 
expenditures. 
 
The Miscellaneous Government Grants Fund was established to account for all grant 
programs applicable to the City for which a separate fund is not established. 
 
The Community Development, and Criminal Justice Department Funds were 
established to account for receipt and disbursement of various Federal and State 
Program revenues. 
 
The Park Development Fund was established to account for land acquired for future 
park development. 
 
The Downtown Improvement District Fund was established to account for property tax 
levied in a 30 Block section of the City’s downtown business district.  This tax revenue 
is to be used for the revitalization of the specific business district, including streets, 
sidewalks, landscape and lighting.  During the current year, this fund was eliminated. 
 
Capital Project Fund-Drainage Bond was established to account for all resources used 
for the acquisition and/or construction of capital facilities except those financed by 
proprietary fund types. 
 
The Debt Service Fund   is established by Ordinances authorizing the issuance of 
general obligation bonds.  The fund provided for payment of bond principal, interest, 
paying agent fees, and a debt service reserve as a sinking fund each year.  An ad 
valorem tax rate and tax levy is required to be computed and levied, which will be 
sufficient to produce the money required to pay principal and interest as it comes due 
and provide the interest and sinking fund reserve. 
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Special Revenue Funds

Hotel Miscellaneous
Occupancy Park Community Government 

Tax Development Development Grants

ASSETS
Cash 66$                 12,993$            -$                         828,653$          
Certificates of deposi -                     1,035,951        -                          -                        
Investments 131,062         6,795               -                          -                        
Receivables:
   Taxes 205,095         -                        -                          -                        
   Accrued interest -                     -                        -                          -                        
   Other -                     -                        -                          48,371              
Due from other governments -                     -                        49,917               47,849              
Advances to other funds -                     -                        -                          -                        

      Total assets 336,223$         1,055,739$        49,917$              924,873$           

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 60,435$          450$                 48,640$              7,254$               
Bank overdraft -                     -                        9                         -                        
Accrued liabilitie -                     -                        1,268                  -                        
Due to other funds 151,087         -                        -                          48,389              
Deferred revenues -                     -                        -                          171,187           
Other liabilities -                     -                        -                          703,773           

      Total liabilities 211,522           450                    49,917                930,603             

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for advances -                     -                        -                          -                        
Unrestricted 124,701         1,055,289        -                          (5,730)              

      Total fund balances 124,701         1,055,289        -                          (5,730)              

      Total liabilities and fund balance 336,223$        1,055,739$       49,917$              924,873$          
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Exhibit 2-A

Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects

Total
Downtown Criminal Debt Drainage Nonmajor

Improvement Justice Service Bond Governmental
District Department Total Fund Fund Funds

-$                            153,802$             995,514$             18,212$              6,238$                 1,019,964$              
-                              1,802,119            2,838,070             2,254,199          302,890              5,395,159                
-                              90,991                 228,848               1,018,074          47,417                1,294,339                

-                              -                            205,095               692,092             -                            897,187                   
-                              -                            -                            15,630               -                            15,630                     
-                              890,690               939,061               -                         -                            939,061                   
-                              117,096               214,862               -                         -                            214,862                   
-                              -                            -                            3,456,819          -                            3,456,819                

-$                            3,054,698$          5,421,450$           7,455,026$         356,545$              13,233,021$            

-$                            27,403$               144,182$             1,449$                -$                           145,631$                 
-                              -                            9                           -                         -                            9                              
-                              -                            1,268                   -                         -                            1,268                       
-                              73,993                 273,469               -                         -                            273,469                   
-                              890,690               1,061,877             692,092             -                            1,753,969                
-                              9,781                   713,554               -                         -                            713,554                   

-                              1,001,867            2,194,359             693,541               -                             2,887,900                 

-                              -                            -                            3,456,819          -                            3,456,819                
-                              2,052,831            3,227,091             3,304,666          356,545              6,888,302                

-                              2,052,831            3,227,091             6,761,485          356,545              10,345,121              

-$                            3,054,698$          5,421,450$           7,455,026$        356,545$             13,233,021$           
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Special Revenue Funds

Hotel Miscellaneous
Occupancy Park Community Government 

Tax Development Development Grants

REVENUES
Hotel taxes 2,841,902$     -$                      -$                         -$                       
Property taxes -                     -                        -                          -                        
Intergovernmental -                     -                        2,769,459          1,725,346        
Fines and forfeitures -                     -                        -                          -                        
Interest 3,535             33,992             -                          11,143              
Net decrease in the fair value of investment -                     -                        -                          -                        
Other -                     159,250           447,779           

   Total revenues 2,845,437      193,242           2,769,459          2,184,268        

EXPENDITURES
Current:
     General government 811,972         -                        176,355             585,360           
     Public safety -                     -                        -                          2,163,609        
     Highways and streets -                     -                        66,392               -                        
     Health and welfare -                     -                        2,415,257          -                        
     Culture and recreation -                     -                        111,455             -                        
     Debt service
       Principal -                     -                        -                          -                        
       Interest & fiscal charges -                     -                        -                          -                        

   Total expenditures 811,972         -                        2,769,459          2,748,969        

   Excess of revenues
    over (under) expenditures 2,033,465      193,242           -                          (564,701)          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
   Transfers in -                     -                        -                          -                        
   Transfers out (2,029,931)     -                        -                          (53,768)            

   Net other financing sources (uses) (2,029,931)     -                        -                          (53,768)            

       Net change in fund balances 3,534             193,242           -                          (618,469)          

Fund balances (deficits) at beginning of yea 121,167         862,047           -                          612,739           

Fund balances (deficits) at end of yea 124,701$        1,055,289$       -$                         (5,730)$             
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Exhibit 2-B

Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects

Total
Downtown Criminal Debt Drainage Nonmajor

Improvement Justice Service Bond Governmental
District Department Total Fund Fund Funds

-$                            -$                          2,841,902$           -$                        -$                           2,841,902$              
-                              -                            -                            2,511,435          -                            2,511,435                
-                              1,042,720            5,537,525             -                         -                            5,537,525                
-                              639,600               639,600               -                         -                            639,600                   
-                              870                       49,540                 133,702             8,006                  191,248                   
-                              -                            -                            (16,115)             -                            (16,115)                    

102,448                 -                            709,477               -                         -                            709,477                   

102,448                 1,683,190            9,778,044             2,629,022          8,006                  12,415,072              

-                            1,573,687             -                         -                            1,573,687                
-                              2,131,629            4,295,238             -                         -                            4,295,238                
-                              -                            66,392                 -                         -                            66,392                     
-                              -                            2,415,257             -                         -                            2,415,257                
-                              -                            111,455               -                         -                            111,455                   

-                              -                            -                            1,840,000          -                            1,840,000                
-                              -                            -                            659,873             -                            659,873                   

-                              2,131,629            8,462,029             2,499,873          -                            10,961,902              

102,448                 (448,439)              1,316,015             129,149             8,006                  1,453,170                

-                              -                            -                            1,706,848          -                            1,706,848                
-                              -                            (2,083,699)            -                         -                            (2,083,699)              

-                              -                            (2,083,699)            1,706,848          -                            (376,851)                 

102,448                 (448,439)              (767,684)              1,835,997          8,006                  1,076,319                

(102,448)                2,501,270            3,994,775             4,925,488          348,539              9,268,802                

-$                            2,052,831$          3,227,091$           6,761,485$        356,545$             10,345,121$           
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 

 
 

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
These funds are used to account for City operations that are financed and/or operated in 
a manner similar to private business enterprises.  Included in this category are:  Palm 
View Golf Course and Transit Terminal.  
 
 
The Palm View Golf Course Fund is utilized to account for the operations of the City’s 
golf course. 
 
The Transit Terminal Fund is utilized to account for the operations of the Intermodal 
Transportation System. 
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Exhibit 3-A

Palm View Transit
Golf Course Terminal Total

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash 85,462            76,648             162,110            
Certificates of deposit 250,230          -                      250,230            
Investments 123,937          61,651            185,588            
Receivables, net:
  Other 1,229             4,907              6,136               

   Total current assets 460,858          143,206          604,064            

Capital assets
  Land 187,995          1,684,593       1,872,588          
  Buildings 211,633          3,522,228       3,733,861          
  Improvements other than buildings 6,204,496       -                      6,204,496          
  Machinery and equipment 557,102          100,102          657,204            

      Total capital assets 7,161,226       5,306,923       12,468,149        
        Less accumulated depreciation (2,211,547)     (188,053)         (2,399,600)        

          Net capital assets 4,949,679       5,118,870       10,068,549        

   Total assets 5,410,537$      5,262,076$       10,672,613$      

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2002
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Exhibit 3-A Concluded

Palm View Transit
Golf Course Terminal Total

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 57,609$           6,867$              64,476$           
  Accrued expenses 24,467            10,446            34,913             
  Other 49,645            -                      49,645             

     Total current liabilities 131,721          17,313            149,034            

Other non-current liabilities:
  Advance from other funds 3,800,000       352,716          4,152,716          
  Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 40,295            7,085              47,380             

     Total other non-current liabilities 3,840,295       359,801          4,200,096          

     Total liabilities 3,972,016       377,114          4,349,130          

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,949,679       5,118,870       10,068,549        
Unrestricted (3,511,158)     (233,908)         (3,745,066)        

     Total net assets 1,438,521       4,884,962       6,323,483          

     Total liabilities and net assets 5,410,537$      5,262,076$      10,672,613$      

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2002
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Exhibit 3-B

Palm View Transit
Golf Course Terminal Total

Operating revenues:
  Charges for services 721,571$         203,798$          925,369$          

     Total operating revenues 721,571          203,798          925,369            

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 623,322          254,803          878,125            
  Supplies and materials 90,138            22,161            112,299            
  Contractual and other services 124,385          142,104          266,489            
  Repairs and maintenance 60,439            14,002            74,441             
  Depreciation and amortization 247,844          126,290          374,134            

     Total operating expenses 1,146,128       559,360          1,705,488          

     Operating  loss (424,557)        (355,562)         (780,119)           

Non-operating revenues
  Interest income 20,190            5,361              25,551             
  Other 321,952          66,716            388,668            

     Non-operating revenues 342,142          72,077            414,219            

     Loss before capital contributions and transfers (82,415)          (283,485)         (365,900)           

Capital contributions 56,682            -                      56,682             
Transfers-in -                     93,000            93,000             

       Change in net assets (25,733)          (190,485)         (216,218)           

Total net assets--beginning 1,464,254       5,075,447       6,539,701          

Total net assets--ending 1,438,521$      4,884,962$       6,323,483$        

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
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Exhibit 3-C

Palm View Transit
Golf Course Terminal Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
  Receipts from customers 723,208$         203,798$         927,006$          
  Payments to suppliers (276,444)        (190,872)         (467,316)           
  Payments to employees (623,322)        (254,803)         (878,125)           
  Other receipts 112,409          75,890            188,299            

  Net cash provided by operating activities (64,149)          (165,987)         (230,136)           

Cash flows from noncapital financing
  activities:
   Transfers in -                     93,000            93,000             
   Advance to other funds (100,000)        -                      (100,000)           

    Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
     financing activities (100,000)        93,000            (7,000)              

Cash flows from capital and related
  financing activities:
   Payments for capital acquisitions (44,288)          (10,074)           (54,362)            

     Cash used for capital and 
      related financing activities (44,288)          (10,074)           (54,362)            

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, net 213,312          152,345           365,657            
   Receipt of interest 21,181            5,361              26,542             

    Net cash provided by 
     investing activities 234,493          157,706          392,199            

    Net increase  in cash 26,056            74,645            100,701            

    Cash at beginning of year 59,406            2,003              61,409             

    Cash at end of year 85,462$           76,648$            162,110$          

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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Exhibit 3-C Concluded

Palm View Transit
Golf Course Terminal Total

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to 
  net cash provided by operating activities
Operating  loss (424,557)$        (355,562)$          (780,119)$          
Adjustment to reconcile operating income
  (loss) to net cash provided by operating
  activities:
   Depreciation and amortization 247,844            126,291             374,135             
   Miscellaneous income (expense) 312,409            62,660              375,069            
   Other receivables (997)                 13,230              12,233              
   Due from other funds (200,000)          -                       (200,000)           
   Accounts payable (4,395)              (11,604)             (15,999)             
   Accrued expenses 2,913               (1,002)              1,911                
   Deferred revenue 2,634               -                       2,634                

     Total adjustments 360,408            189,575            549,983            

Net cash used by operating activities (64,149)$          (165,987)$         (230,136)$         

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
 
 
The Internal Service Funds were established to finance and account for services, 
materials, and supplies furnished to the various departments of the City, and on a 
limited basis, to other local governmental agencies. These services are provided on a 
cost reimbursement basis. 
 
The Fleet Materials, Management Fund sales and services are accounted for in two 
Interdepartmental Service Fund departments:  Materials Management and Garage. 
 
The Employee Benefits Fund was established to account for all expenses related to 
health insurance premiums and claims for City employees.  Primary funding sources are 
transfers in from General Fund and Enterprise Funds. 
 
The General Insurance Fund was established to account for all expenses related to 
workmen’s compensation claims and general liability insurance.  Primary funding 
sources are transfers in from General Fund and Enterprise Funds. 
 
The General Depreciation Fund, which was established for the sole purpose of 
replacing fixed assets of the General Fund.  Funding has been provided by a rental 
charge to the appropriate department in the General Fund. 
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2001

Fleet
Materials Employee

Management Benefits

ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash 273,141$         53,628$               
  Certificates of deposit -                     1,611,027             
  Investments -                     128,891                
  Receivables, net:
    Accounts -                     80,774                 
    Accrued interest -                     -                          
    Other -                     233,937                
  Inventories 355,694          -                          

    Total current assets 628,835          2,108,257             

Fixed assets 621,673          -                          
  Less accumulated depreciation (422,388)         -                          

    Net Fixed assets 199,285          -                          

    Total assets 828,120$         2,108,257$           

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 198,220$         120,877$              
  Accrued expenses 21,981            1,005,198             
  Due to other funds -                     -                          

    Total current liabilities 220,201          1,126,075             

Other non-current liabilities:
  Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 33,519            1,841                   
  Deferred revenues 1,107              -                          

    Total other non-current liabilities 34,626            1,841                   

    Total  liabilities 254,827          1,127,916             

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 199,285          -                          
Unrestricted 374,008          980,341                

  Total net assets 573,293          980,341                

    Total liabilities and net assets 828,120$         2,108,257$           
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Exhibit 4-A

General General Totals
Insurance Depreciation 2002 2001

16,016$         2,014$           344,799$         663,827$                 
2,331,339      3,502,608     7,444,974       6,452,317                
2,630,953      864,947        3,624,791       3,056,866                

87,907           -                   168,681          70,417                     
25,963           10,982          36,945            25,714                     

-                    -                   233,937          279,287                   
-                    -                   355,694          315,564                   

5,092,178      4,380,551     12,209,821     10,863,992              

-                    5,368,217     5,989,890       2,727,811                
-                    (1,970,715)    (2,393,103)      (810,979)                  

-                    3,397,502     3,596,787       1,916,832                

5,092,178$    7,778,053$    15,806,608$    12,780,824$            

65,725$         71,811$         456,633$         740,070$                 
557,011         -                   1,584,190       1,434,274                

-                    -                   -                     10,000                     

622,736         71,811          2,040,823       2,184,344                

22,083           -                   57,443            47,551                     
-                    -                   1,107              1,107                       

22,083           -                   58,550            48,658                     

644,819         71,811          2,099,373       2,233,002                

-                    3,397,502     3,596,787       206,116                   
4,447,359      4,308,740     10,110,448     10,341,706              

4,447,359      7,706,242     13,707,235     10,547,822              

5,092,178$    7,778,053$    15,806,608$    12,780,824$            
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

Fleet
Materials Employee

Management Benefits

Operating revenues:
  Charges for services 1,981,359$      -$                        
  Contributions -                     5,662,723             

    Total operating revenues 1,981,359       5,662,723             

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages and
   employee benefits 550,874          67,765                 
  Supplies and materials 8,563              -                          
  Contractual and other services 1,332,070       920,844                
  Repairs and maintenance 21,044            -                          
  Depreciation 33,500            -                          
  Self insurance claims -                     4,235,420             
  Benefit payments -                     -                          
  Other -                     1,509                   

    Total operating expenses 1,946,051       5,225,538             

    Operating income (loss) 35,308            437,185                

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
 Interest income 5,472              42,933                 
 Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments -                     -                          
 Other 21,828            467,093                

    Total non-operating revenues 27,300            510,026                

Change in net assets 62,608            947,211                

Total net assets--beginning 510,685          33,130                 

Total net assets--ending 573,293$         980,341$              
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Exhibit 4-B

General General Totals
Insurance Depreciation 2002 2001

-$                  1,505,423$    3,486,782$      3,834,368$              
3,069,805      -                   8,732,528       7,409,989                

3,069,805      1,505,423     12,219,310     11,244,357              

112,600         -                   731,239          667,489                   
1,170            -                   9,733              9,600                       

867,554         -                   3,120,468       2,566,404                
798               -                   21,842            19,860                     

-                    964,788        998,288          687,980                   
1,754,104      -                   5,989,524       7,486,503                

-                    -                   -                     218,768                   
-                    12,724          14,233            15,368                     

2,736,226      977,512        10,885,327     11,671,972              

333,579         527,911        1,333,983       (427,615)                  

196,326         158,428        403,159          576,540                   
(19,224)         (11,257)         (30,481)          110,851                   
241,153         -                   730,074          462,902                   

418,255         147,171        1,102,752       1,150,293                

751,834         675,082        2,436,735       722,678                   

3,695,525      7,031,160     11,270,500     10,547,822              

4,447,359$    7,706,242$    13,707,235$    11,270,500$            
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Totals for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

Fleet
Materials Employee

Management Benefits

Cash flows from operating activities:
  Receipts from customers 1,981,359$       5,721,991$           
  Payments to suppliers (1,338,929)        (829,098)               
  Payments to employees (550,874)           (67,765)                 
  Internal activity--payments to other funds -                       -                           
  Claims paid -                       (4,235,420)            
  Other receipts (payments) 21,828              536,681                

  Net cash provided by operating activities 113,384            1,126,389             

Cash flows from capital and related
 financing activities:
  Payments for capital disposal/acquisitions (40,672)          -                          

Cash flows from investing
 activities:
   Investment activity, net -                       (1,172,758)            
  Receipt of interest 5,472              42,933                 

    Net cash provided (used) by 
     investing activities 5,472              (1,129,825)            

    Net increase (decrease) in
     cash 78,184              (3,436)                  

Cash at beginning of year 194,957            57,064                  

Cash at end of year 273,141$          53,628$                
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Exhibit 4-C

General General Totals
Insurance Depreciation 2002 2001

3,038,426$    1,506,972$     12,248,748$     11,084,476$            
(1,066,074)    1,732              (3,232,369)        (2,687,660)               

(112,600)       -                     (731,239)           (644,272)                  
-                    -                     -                       (10,000)                    

(1,754,104)    -                     (5,989,524)        (7,805,573)               
221,929         -                     780,438            664,271                   

327,577         1,508,704       3,076,054         601,242                   

-                    (1,092,632)    (1,133,304)      (2,270,880)               

(598,110)       (578,218)         (2,349,086)        777,247                   
196,326         158,428        403,159          576,540                   

(401,784)       (419,790)       (1,945,927)      1,353,787                

(74,207)         (3,718)             (3,177)              (315,851)                  

90,223           5,732              347,976            663,827                   

16,016$         2,014$            344,799$          347,976$                 
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Totals for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

Fleet
Materials Employee

Management Benefits

Operating income (loss) 35,308$           437,185$              

Adjustments to reconcile operating
 income (loss) to net cash provided
  by operating activities:
  Depreciation 33,500            -                          
  Misc. non-operating income 21,828            467,093                
  Loss on assset disposition -                     -                          
  Accounts receivable -                     58,542                 
  Accrued interest receivable -                     726                      
  Other  receivables -                     71,097                 
  Inventories (19,128)          -                          
  Accounts payable 36,810            91,129                 
  Other payables 1,472              108                      
  Accrued expenses 3,594              509                      
  Due to other funds -                     -                          

    Net cash provided  by 
     operating activities 113,384$         1,126,389$           
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Exhibit 4-C Concluded

General General Totals
Insurance Depreciation 2002 2001

333,578$       527,911$       1,333,982$      (427,615)$                

-                    964,788        998,288          687,980                   
221,930         -                   710,851          574,603                   

-                    -                   -                     37,112                     
(36,685)         -                   21,857            (120,121)                  

5,306            1,549            7,581              (18,812)                    
-                    -                   71,097            (25,747)                    
-                    -                   (19,128)          (21,002)                    

60,189           14,456          202,584          (486,021)                  
2,058            -                   3,638              6,253                       

(258,799)       -                   (254,696)         404,612                   
-                    -                   -                     (10,000)                    

327,577$       1,508,704$    3,076,054$      601,242$                 
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Exhibit 5-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

ASSETS
Cash 268,150$             98,483$                   
Certificates of deposit 6,169,670            8,781,179                
Investments 29,189,942          26,800,386             

Receivables, net:
   Ad valorem tax 2,949,428            2,556,523                
   Accounts 6,374,869            6,056,440                
   Accrued interest 405,708                355,285                   
   Other 826,912                907,485                   
Due from other funds 238,010                604,088                   
Due from other governments 8,319                    4,277                       
Advances to other funds 1,400,000            2,150,000                

     Total assets 47,831,008$        48,314,146$           

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
   Accounts payable 1,456,848$          1,462,663$             
   Accrued liabilities 1,653,144            1,472,729                
   Deferred revenues 7,127,295            6,597,289                
   Other 1,167,319            1,258,358                

     Total liabilities 11,404,606          10,791,039             

Fund balances:
   Reserved for encumbrances 243,763                163,348                   
   Reserved for advances 2,150,000            2,150,000                
   Unreserved 34,032,639          35,209,759             

     Total  fund balance 36,426,402          37,523,107             

     Total liabilities and
       fund balance 47,831,008$        48,314,146$           

- 130 -



Exhibit 5-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Revenues:
   Taxes:
     Ad valorem 15,662,099$        14,198,457$           
     Sales 29,436,249          27,779,137             
     Franchise 5,496,448            6,128,118                

       Total taxes 50,594,796          48,105,712             

   Licenses and permits 872,751                824,608                   
   Intergovernmental 416,855                252,930                   
   Charges for services 2,830,128            2,699,727                
   Fines and forefeitures 1,431,302            1,513,057                
   Interest 2,221,717            2,647,014                
   Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments (43,252)                1,156,523                
   Other 3,623,860            8,856,223                

       Total revenues 61,948,157          66,055,794             

Expenditures:
   General government 11,065,080          12,151,981             
   Public safety 28,968,883          25,715,002             
   Highways and streets 6,494,561            5,652,745                
   Health and welfare 782,188                699,314                   
   Culture and recreation 9,990,593            8,580,613                

       Total expenditures 57,301,305          52,799,655             

Excess of revenues over expenditures 4,646,852            13,256,139             

Other financing sources (uses):
   Transfers in 7,156,443            7,154,949                
   Transfers out (12,900,000)         (12,875,562)            
   Other -                            30,428                     

       Net other financing sources (uses) (5,743,557)           (5,690,185)              

Excess (deficiency)  of revenues and other sources
   over expenditures and other uses (1,096,705)           7,565,954                

Fund balance--beginning 37,523,107          29,957,153             

Fund balance--ending 36,426,402$        37,523,107$           
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Actual Positive
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Revenues:
  Taxes:
   Ad valorem 15,270,887$           15,270,887$          15,662,099$        391,212$                    
   Sales 27,125,000             27,125,000           29,436,249         2,311,249                   
   Franchise 4,655,000               4,655,000             5,496,448           841,448                      

      Total taxes 47,050,887             47,050,887           50,594,796         3,543,909                   

Licenses and permits:
  Business licenses and permits 22,000                   22,000                  30,436                8,436                         
  Occupational 51,300                   51,300                  67,387                16,087                        
  Non-business licenses and permits 659,000                  659,000                774,928              115,928                      

      Total licenses and permits 732,300                  732,300                872,751              140,451                      

Intergovernmental revenues:
  State shared revenues 250,000                  250,000                416,855              166,855                      

      Total intergovernmenal revenues 250,000                  250,000                416,855              166,855                      

Charges for services:
  General governmental 1,282,600               1,282,600             1,277,750           (4,850)                        
  Public safety 131,500                  133,978                180,310              46,332                        
  Highways and streets 221,000                  221,000                378,287              157,287                      
  Health 294,500                  294,500                349,143              54,643                        
  Culture and recreation 365,900                  365,900                644,638              278,738                      

      Total charges for services 2,295,500               2,297,978             2,830,128           532,150                      

Fines and forfeitures:
  Corporations court 1,400,000               1,400,000             1,232,187           (167,813)                    
  Other fines 175,500                  175,500                199,115              23,615                        

      Total fines and forfeitures 1,575,500               1,575,500             1,431,302           (144,198)                    

Interest 1,800,000               1,800,000             2,221,717           421,717                      

Net decrease in the fair value of investments -                             -                            (43,252)               (43,252)                       

Other:
  Royalties 3,900,000               3,900,000             2,589,150           (1,310,850)                 
  Rents and concessions 40,000                   40,000                  62,156                22,156                        
  Sale of property 5,000                     5,000                    56                       (4,944)                        
  Reimbursements 17,000                   17,000                  130,996              113,996                      
  Other 36,000                   136,386                841,502              705,116                      

      Total other revenues 3,998,000               4,098,386             3,623,860           (474,526)                    

      Total revenues 57,702,187             57,805,051           61,948,157         4,143,106                   

Continued
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Expenditures:
  General government:
   City commission
    Personal services 49,811$                 49,811$                 79,462$               (29,651)$                    
    Supplies 4,000                     4,000                    3,471                  529                            
    Miscellaneous services 73,500                   73,500                  41,736                31,764                        
    Capital outlay 150,000                  150,000                12,459                137,541                      

      Total city commission 277,311                  277,311                137,128              140,183                      

   Special service
    Miscellaneous services 541,500                  1,041,500             1,019,671           21,829                        
    Capital outlay -                             -                            18,923                (18,923)                       

      Total special service 541,500                  1,041,500             1,038,594           2,906                         

   City manager:
    Personal services 440,667                  459,405                465,372              (5,967)                        
    Supplies 1,500                     1,500                    1,390                  110                            
    Miscellaneous services 16,500                   16,500                  18,714                (2,214)                        
    Maintenance 400                        400                       240                     160                            

      Total city manager 459,067                  477,805                485,716              (7,911)                        

   City secretary:
    Personal services 325,666                  335,138                399,355              (64,217)                       
    Supplies 6,000                     6,000                    4,574                  1,426                         
    Miscellaneous services 36,250                   36,250                  39,399                (3,149)                        
    Maintenance 975                        975                       1,019                  (44)                             
    Capital outlay 3,000                     3,000                    1,959                  1,041                         

      Total city secretary 371,891                  381,363                446,306              (64,943)                       

   Audit office:
    Personal services 98,925                   102,921                117,754              (14,833)                       
    Supplies 1,000                     1,000                    1,619                  (619)                           
    Miscellaneous services 8,500                     8,500                    8,505                  (5)                               

      Total audit office 108,425                  112,421                127,878              (15,457)                       

   Municipal court:
    Personal services 697,642                  731,737                653,338              78,399                        
    Supplies 9,420                     8,420                    8,706                  (286)                           
    Miscellaneous services 64,055                   61,555                  32,696                28,859                        
    Maintenance 19,500                   19,500                  13,502                5,998                         
    Other (18,000)                  (18,000)                 (18,658)               658                            
    Capital outlay 12,000                   87,386                  37,769                49,617                        

      Total municipal court 784,617                  890,598                727,353              163,245                      
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   Finance:
    Personal services 747,435$                765,852$               634,733$             131,119$                    
    Supplies 16,200                   16,200                  16,162                38                              
    Miscellaneous services 79,250                   79,250                  88,319                (9,069)                        
    Maintenance 2,050                     2,050                    494                     1,556                         
    Capital outlay 11,400                   11,400                  6,590                  4,810                         

      Total finance 856,335                  874,752                746,298              128,454                      

   Tax Office:
    Personal services 190,755                  197,142                202,731              (5,589)                        
    Supplies 9,500                     9,500                    4,552                  4,948                         
    Miscellaneous services 424,776                  424,776                509,659              (84,883)                       
    Maintenance 2,000                     2,000                    1,965                  35                              
    Capital outlay 300                        300                       300                     -                                 

      Total Tax Office 627,331                  633,718                719,207              (85,489)                       

   Purchasing and contracting:
    Personal services 243,129                  249,900                253,886              (3,986)                        
    Supplies 7,400                     7,400                    4,747                  2,653                         
    Miscellaneous services 10,806                   10,806                  3,300                  7,506                         
    Capital outlay -                             21,000                  25,624                (4,624)                        

      Total purchasing and contracting 261,335                  289,106                287,557              1,549                         

   Legal:
    Personal services 360,747                  377,282                362,192              15,090                        
    Supplies 3,500                     3,500                    3,645                  (145)                           
    Miscellaneous services 151,955                  147,955                173,589              (25,634)                       
    Capital outlay -                             4,000                    6,419                  (2,419)                        

      Total legal 516,202                  532,737                545,845              (13,108)                       

   Grant administration:
    Personal services 65,339                   67,052                  70,426                (3,374)                        
    Supplies 1,000                     1,000                    1,298                  (298)                           
    Miscellaneous services 2,500                     2,500                    1,896                  604                            

      Total grant administration 68,839                   70,552                  73,620                (3,068)                        

   Right of way:
    Personal services 126,081                  126,663                111,830              14,833                        
    Supplies 1,500                     1,500                    1,941                  (441)                           
    Miscellaneous services 35,721                   35,721                  24,154                11,567                        

      Total right of way 163,302                  163,884                137,925              25,959                        
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   Personnel:
    Personal services 232,505$                239,807$               268,580$             (28,773)$                    
    Supplies 9,000                     9,000                    9,027                  (27)                             
    Miscellaneous services 109,242                  109,242                111,968              (2,726)                        
    Maintenance 10,000                   10,000                  22,238                (12,238)                       
    Capital outlay 6,758                     6,758                    6,965                  (207)                           

      Total personnel 367,505                  374,807                418,778              (43,971)                       

   Non-classified:
    Worker's compensation insurance 997,007                  997,007                -                          997,007                      
    Liability insurance 865,341                  865,341                865,341              -                                 

      Total risk management 1,862,348               1,862,348             865,341              997,007                      

   Planning:
    Personal services 555,647                  572,549                528,143              44,406                        
    Supplies 6,050                     6,050                    8,051                  (2,001)                        
    Miscellaneous services 48,237                   48,237                  46,681                1,556                         
    Maintenance 5,000                     5,000                    4,456                  544                            
    Capital outlay 59,075                   59,075                  12,658                46,417                        

      Total planning 674,009                  690,911                599,989              90,922                        

   Management information system:
    Personal services 458,890                  472,511                415,779              56,732                        
    Supplies 24,600                   24,600                  24,453                147                            
    Miscellaneous services 26,200                   26,200                  29,317                (3,117)                        
    Maintenance 79,850                   79,850                  79,560                290                            
    Capital outlay 290,800                  269,800                131,990              137,810                      

      Total management information system 880,340                  872,961                681,099              191,862                      

   Information department:
    Personal services 223,528                  229,628                217,803              11,825                        
    Supplies 15,500                   15,500                  15,241                259                            
    Miscellaneous services 5,500                     5,500                    5,211                  289                            
    Maintenance 9,750                     9,750                    8,919                  831                            
    Capital outlay 32,800                   32,800                  32,043                757                            

      Total information services 287,078                  293,178                279,217              13,961                        

   City hall:
    Personal services 75,512                   77,720                  75,533                2,187                         
    Supplies 23,100                   23,100                  17,311                5,789                         
    Miscellaneous services 411,650                  411,650                449,841              (38,191)                       
    Maintenance 30,000                   30,000                  34,344                (4,344)                        
    Capital outlay -                             -                            18,764                (18,764)                       

      Total city hall 540,262                  542,470                  595,793                (53,323)                       
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   Building maintenance:
    Personal services 227,051$                232,981$               206,820$             26,161$                      
    Supplies 6,400                     6,400                    8,113                  (1,713)                        
    Miscellaneous services 23,914                   23,914                  26,225                (2,311)                        
    Maintenance 39,550                   39,550                  31,976                7,574                         
    Capital outlay 11,150                   11,150                  2,236                  8,914                         

      Total building maintenance 308,065                  313,995                275,370              38,625                        

   Economic development:
    McAllen Economic Development Corp. 1,197,643               1,197,643             1,197,643           -                                 
    Chambers of Commerce 651,250                  651,250                576,250              75,000                        

      Total economic development 1,848,893               1,848,893             1,773,893           75,000                        

   Non-department activities 109,000                  109,000                102,173              6,827                         

      Total general government 11,913,655             12,654,310           11,065,080         1,589,230                   

Public safety:
   Police:
    Personal services 16,996,956             17,402,571           17,331,290         71,281                        
    Supplies 311,000                  311,000                273,564              37,436                        
    Miscellaneous services 1,158,775               1,158,775             1,166,300           (7,525)                        
    Maintenance 590,000                  590,000                629,428              (39,428)                       
    Other (1,100,000)              (1,100,000)            (1,883,877)          783,877                      
    Capital outlay 446,560                  446,560                267,305              179,255                      

      Total police 18,403,291             18,808,906           17,784,010         1,024,896                   

   Animal control:
    Personal services 128,911                  128,911                126,387              2,524                         
    Supplies 5,000                     5,000                    3,889                  1,111                         
    Miscellaneous services 8,729                     8,729                    7,229                  1,500                         
    Maintenance 13,000                   13,000                  17,459                (4,459)                        

      Total animal control 155,640                  155,640                154,964              676                            

   Fire:
    Personal services 6,970,590               7,364,098             7,518,308           (154,210)                    
    Supplies 172,600                  180,100                186,261              (6,161)                        
    Miscellaneous services 525,505                  518,005                507,131              10,874                        
    Maintenance 232,400                  218,600                301,811              (83,211)                       
    Capital outlay 52,125                   68,403                  62,872                5,531                         

      Total fire 7,953,220               8,349,206             8,576,383           (227,177)                    

   Traffic operations:
    Personal services 638,444                  652,840                650,494              2,346                         
    Supplies 65,200                   65,200                  76,030                (10,830)                       
    Miscellaneous services 352,090                  352,090                339,884              12,206                        
    Maintenance 320,000                  320,000                305,226              14,774                        
    Capital outlay 167,525                  167,525                157,854              9,671                         

      Total traffic safety 1,543,259               1,557,655               1,529,488             28,167                        
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   Downtown services:
    Personal services 355,651$                362,560$               340,854$             21,706$                      
    Supplies 15,000                   15,000                  19,725                (4,725)                        
    Miscellaneous services 40,500                   40,500                  49,833                (9,333)                        
    Maintenance 16,500                   16,500                  17,582                (1,082)                        
    Capital outlay 23,900                   23,900                  16,348                7,552                         

      Total downtown services 451,551                  458,460                444,342              14,118                        

   Inspection:
    Personal services 417,416                  426,177                418,154              8,023                         
    Supplies 12,141                   12,141                  11,542                599                            
    Miscellaneous services 49,691                   49,691                  43,888                5,803                         
    Maintenance 2,938                     2,938                    3,231                  (293)                           
    Capital outlay 3,056                     3,056                    2,881                  175                            

      Total inspection 485,242                  494,003                479,696              14,307                        

      Total public safety 28,992,203             29,823,870           28,968,883         854,987                      

Highways and streets:
   Engineering services:
    Personal services 1,354,439               1,399,587             1,218,650           180,937                      
    Supplies 21,500                   21,500                  22,202                (702)                           
    Miscellaneous services 228,480                  225,880                185,176              40,704                        
    Maintenance 26,100                   26,100                  24,080                2,020                         
    Other (125,000)                 (125,000)               (161,894)             36,894                        
    Capital outlay 40,110                   42,710                  46,815                (4,105)                        

      Total engineering services 1,545,629               1,590,777             1,335,029           255,748                      

   Street cleaning:
    Personal services 155,939                  159,192                147,621              11,571                        
    Supplies 2,800                     2,800                    2,873                  (73)                             
    Miscellaneous services 60,971                   60,971                  60,971                -                                 
    Maintenance 75,000                   75,000                  115,745              (40,745)                       

      Total street cleaning 294,710                  297,963                327,210              (29,247)                       

   Street maintenance:
    Personal services 885,858                  910,778                866,133              44,645                        
    Supplies 31,654                   31,654                  30,475                1,179                         
    Miscellaneous services 217,935                  217,935                221,061              (3,126)                        
    Maintenance 1,615,000               1,615,000             1,486,030           128,970                      
    Capital outlay 24,260                   24,260                  46,079                (21,819)                       

      Total street maintenance 2,774,707               2,799,627             2,649,778           149,849                      

   Street lighting 1,558,000               1,558,000             1,136,508           421,492                      
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   Sidewalk construction:
    Personal services 215,800$                215,800$               204,782$             11,018$                      
    Supplies 474,200                  474,200                134,381              339,819                      
    Maintenance 30,000                   30,000                  22,627                7,373                         
    Other (320,000)                 (320,000)               -                          (320,000)                    

      Total sidewalk construction 400,000                  400,000                361,790              38,210                        

   Drainage:
    Personal services 428,931                  438,192                397,392              40,800                        
    Supplies 22,276                   22,276                  25,349                (3,073)                        
    Miscellaneous services 95,728                   95,728                  94,912                816                            
    Maintenance 116,000                  116,000                149,264              (33,264)                       
    Capital outlay 17,760                   17,760                  17,329                431                            

      Total drainage 680,695                  689,956                684,246              5,710                         

      Total highways and streets 7,253,741               7,336,323             6,494,561           841,762                      

Health and welfare:
   Health:
    Personal services 384,151                  393,294                348,544              44,750                        
    Supplies 20,200                   20,200                  17,295                2,905                         
    Miscellaneous services 92,646                   92,646                  117,632              (24,986)                       
    Maintenance 6,630                     6,630                    11,581                (4,951)                        

      Total health 503,627                  512,770                495,052              17,718                        

  Graffitti Cleaning:
    Personal services 74,428                   76,042                  72,268                3,774                         
    Supplies 21,100                   21,100                  29,135                (8,035)                        
    Miscellaneous services 7,641                     7,641                    7,641                  -                                 
    Maintenance 12,500                   12,500                  15,609                (3,109)                        
    Capital outlay 17,000                   17,000                  14,572                2,428                         

      Total Graffitti Cleaning: 132,669                  134,283                139,225              (4,942)                        

   Other agencies:
    Ambulance 25,000                   25,000                  25,000                -                                 
    Humane Society 125,000                  125,000                120,411              4,589                         
    Other health and welfare agencies 2,500                     2,500                    2,500                  -                                 

      Total other agencies 152,500                  152,500                147,911              4,589                         

      Total health and welfare 788,796                  799,553                782,188              17,365                        

Culture and recreation:
   Parks and recreation administration:
    Personal services 363,143                  372,264                357,620              14,644                        
    Supplies 8,500                     8,500                    10,504                (2,004)                        
    Miscellaneous services 110,000                  110,000                84,506                25,494                        
    Maintenance 5,000                     5,000                    5,699                  (699)                           
    Capital outlay 24,000                   24,000                  11,596                12,404                        

      Total parks and recreation administration 510,643                  519,764                469,925              49,839                        

- 138 -



Exhibit 5-C Continued
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final budget-

Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)

   Parks:
    Personal services 1,895,674$             1,946,766$            1,856,899$          89,867$                      
    Supplies 64,500                   64,500                  92,723                (28,223)                       
    Miscellaneous services 522,198                  522,198                581,765              (59,567)                       
    Maintenance 268,680                  268,680                344,421              (75,741)                       
    Capital outlay 137,960                  137,960                86,178                51,782                        

      Total parks 2,889,012               2,940,104             2,961,986           (21,882)                       

   Recreation:
    Personal services 498,673                  502,554                631,652$             (129,098)                    
    Supplies 45,500                   45,500                  43,634                1,866                         
    Miscellaneous services 184,149                  184,149                217,297              (33,148)                       
    Maintenance 5,000                     5,000                    1,576                  3,424                         
    Other (120,000)                 (120,000)               (100,708)             (19,292)                       
    Capital outlay 23,500                   23,500                  12,822                10,678                        

      Total recreation 636,822                  640,703                806,273              (165,570)                    

   Pools:
    Personal services 389,105                  397,714                592,532              (194,818)                    
    Supplies 30,000                   30,000                  39,076                (9,076)                        
    Miscellaneous services 98,082                   98,082                  105,234              (7,152)                        
    Maintenance 33,000                   33,000                  22,286                10,714                        
    Capital outlay 16,000                   16,000                  -                          16,000                        

      Total pools 566,187                  574,796                759,128              (184,332)                    

   Senior Citizens Center:
    Personal services 186,079                  191,048                180,342              10,706                        
    Supplies 13,200                   13,200                  13,563                (363)                           
    Miscellaneous services 43,075                   43,075                  64,852                (21,777)                       
    Maintenance 20,000                   20,000                  17,976                2,024                         

      Total senior citizens center 262,354                  267,323                276,733              (9,410)                        

   Recreation center-Lark:
    Personal services 196,090                  197,656                242,405              (44,749)                       
    Supplies 19,200                   19,200                  24,704                (5,504)                        
    Miscellaneous services 115,655                  115,655                93,519                22,136                        
    Maintenance 2,700                     2,700                    2,607                  93                              

      Total recreation center-Lark 333,645                  335,211                363,235              (28,024)                       

   Recreation center-Palmview:
    Personal services 198,815                  203,073                253,705              (50,632)                       
    Supplies 19,200                   19,200                  21,819                (2,619)                        
    Miscellaneous services 120,655                  120,655                99,959                20,696                        
    Maintenance 2,200                     2,200                    7,882                  (5,682)                        

      Total recreation center-Palmview 340,870                  345,128                383,365              (38,237)                       

- 139 -



Exhibit 5-C Continued
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final budget-

Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)

   Quinta mazatlan renovations:
    Personal services 81,239$                 81,239$                 -                          81,239$                      
    Supplies 88,620                   88,620                  160                     88,460                        
    Miscellaneous services 15,000                   15,000                  1,134                  13,866                        
    Maintenance 23,000                   23,000                  1,032                  21,968                        
    Capital outlay 18,500                   18,500                  3,037                  15,463                        

      Total quinta mazatlan renovations 226,359                  226,359                5,363                  220,996                      

   Library:
    Personal services 1,707,718               1,754,441             1,481,683$          272,758                      
    Supplies 63,500                   63,500                  47,209                16,291                        
    Miscellaneous services 307,800                  307,800                274,071              33,729                        
    Maintenance 55,100                   84,100                  43,302                40,798                        
    Capital outlay 270,925                  295,925                252,639              43,286                        

      Total library 2,405,043               2,505,766             2,098,904           406,862                      

   Library branch-Lark:
    Personal services 339,637                  351,388                263,610              87,778                        
    Supplies 7,000                     7,000                    3,712                  3,288                         
    Miscellaneous services 26,000                   11,500                  8,699                  2,801                         
    Maintenance 18,200                   18,200                  990                     17,210                        
    Capital outlay 37,790                   37,790                  34,945                2,845                         

      Total library branch-Lark 428,627                  425,878                311,956              113,922                      

   Library branch-Palmview:
    Personal services 337,700                  337,700                211,643              126,057                      
    Supplies 7,000                     7,000                    7,434                  (434)                           
    Miscellaneous services 26,000                   11,500                  8,740                  2,760                         
    Maintenance 16,700                   16,700                  1,058                  15,642                        
    Capital outlay 38,010                   38,010                  33,350                4,660                         

      Total library branch-Palmview 425,410                  410,910                262,225              148,685                      

   Other agencies 476,500                  476,500                481,500              (5,000)                        

   Museums 610,000                  810,000                810,000              -                                 

      Total culture and recreation 10,111,472             10,478,442           9,990,593           487,849                      

      Total expenditures 59,059,867             61,092,498           57,301,305         3,791,193                   
        Excess of revenues
         over expenditures (1,357,680)              (3,287,447)            4,646,852           7,934,299                   

Other financing sources (uses)
    Transfers in 7,171,811               7,171,811             7,156,443           (15,368)                       
    Transfers out (8,400,000)              (12,900,000)          (12,900,000)        -                                 

        Net other financing uses (1,228,189)              (5,728,189)            (5,743,557)          (15,368)                       

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
         other sources over expenditures
         and other uses (2,585,869)              (9,015,636)            (1,096,705)          7,918,931                   

Fund balance--beginning 37,523,107             37,523,107           37,523,107         -                                 

Fund balance--ending 34,937,238$           28,507,471$          36,426,402$        7,918,931$                 
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Exhibit 6-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

ASSETS
Cash 66$                   -$                      
Investments 131,062            185,032             
Accounts receivables 205,095            214,090             
Other -                        14,864               

     Total assets 336,223$          413,986$           

LIABILITIES
   Accounts payable 60,435$            79,719$             
   Bank overdraft -                        13,800               
   Due to other funds 151,087            199,300             

     Total liabilities 211,522            292,819             

FUND BALANCE
Unrestricted 124,701            121,167             

     Total liabilities and fund balance 336,223$          413,986$           
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Exhibit 6-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Revenues:
   Hotel tax 2,841,902$       2,912,692$        
   Interest 3,535                17,784               

       Total revenues 2,845,437         2,930,476          

Expenditures:
  Current:
   General government 811,972            913,798             

       Total expenditures 811,972            913,798             

Excess of revenues over expenditures 2,033,465         2,016,678          

Other financing uses:
    Transfers out (2,029,931)        (2,080,494)        

       Net change in fund balances 3,534                (63,816)             

Fund balance--beginning  121,167            184,983             

Fund balance--ending 124,701$          121,167$           
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Exhibit 6-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
   Hotel tax 2,832,500$      2,832,500$      2,841,902$       9,402$               
   Interest 8,000               8,000               3,535                (4,465)                

      Total revenues 2,840,500        2,840,500        2,845,437         4,937                 

Expenditures:
  Current:
   General government 809,245           809,245           811,972            (2,727)                

      Total expenditures 809,245           809,245           811,972            (2,727)                

        Excess of revenues over expenditures 2,031,255        2,031,255        2,033,465         7,664                 

  Other financing uses:
      Transfers out (2,023,255)       (2,023,255)       (2,029,931)       (6,676)                

        Net change in fund balances 8,000               8,000               3,534                988                    

Fund balance--beginning 121,167           121,167           121,167            -                         

Fund balance--ending 129,167$         129,167$         124,701$          988$                  
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Exhibit 7-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

MISCELLANEOUS GOVERNMENT GRANTS  FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

              

2002 2001

ASSETS
Cash 828,653$          338,991$           
Certificates of deposit -                        424,967             
Loan receivables -                        124,844             
Other receivables 48,371              -                        
Due from other governments 47,849              128,697             

     Total assets 924,873$          1,017,499$        

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 7,254$              91,535$             
Due to other funds 48,389              91,676               
Deferred revenues 171,187            221,549             
Other liabilities 703,773            -                        

     Total liabilities 930,603            404,760             

FUND BALANCES
Unrestricted (5,730)               612,739             

     Total liabilities and fund balance 924,873$          1,017,499$        
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Exhibit 7-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

MISCELLANEOUS GOVERNMENT GRANTS  FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Revenues:
   Intergovernmental 1,725,346$       2,881,623$        
   Interest 11,143              57,578               
   Other 447,779            665,271             

       Total revenues 2,184,268         3,604,472          

Expenditures:
  Current:
    General government 585,360            -                        
    Public safety 2,163,609         3,407,833          
    Culture and recreation -                        103,917             

       Total expenditures 2,748,969         3,511,750          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (564,701)           92,722               

Other financing uses:
  Transfers out (53,768)             -                        

       Net change in fund balance (618,469)           92,722               

Fund balance--beginning 612,739            520,017             

Fund (deficit) balance--ending (5,730)$             612,739$           
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Exhibit 8-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

CRIMINAL JUSTICE DEPARTMENT FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

ASSETS
Cash 153,802$          82,196$             
Certificates of deposit 1,802,119         2,316,556          
Investments 90,991              65,899               
Accrued interest receivable -                        1,009                 
Other receivables 890,690            722,681             
Due from other governments 117,096            177,490             

     Total assets 3,054,698$       3,365,831$        

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 27,403$            24,235$             
Due to other funds 73,993              117,345             
Deferred revenues 890,690            722,681             
Other liabilities 9,781                300                    

     Total liabilities 1,001,867         864,561             

FUND BALANCES
Unrestricted 2,052,831         2,501,270          

     Total liabilities and fund balance 3,054,698$       3,365,831$        
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Exhibit 8-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

CRIMINAL JUSTICE DEPARTMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Revenues:
   Intergovernmental 1,042,720$       1,208,501$        
   Fines and forfeitures 639,600            825,080             
   Interest 870                   5,297                 

       Total revenues 1,683,190         2,038,878          

Expenditures:
  Current:
    Public safety 2,131,629         1,807,693          

       Total expenditures 2,131,629         1,807,693          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (448,439)           231,185             

       Net change in fund balance (448,439)           231,185             

Fund balance--beginning 2,501,270         2,270,085          

Fund balance--ending 2,052,831$       2,501,270$        
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Exhibit 9-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

ASSETS
Cash -$                      -$                      
Due from other governments 49,917              103,400             

     Total assets 49,917$            103,400$           

LIABILITIES
   Accounts payable 48,640$            78,667$             
   Bank overdraft 9                       -                        
   Accued liabilities 1,268                24,733               

     Total liabilities 49,917              103,400             

FUND BALANCE
   Unrestricted -                        -                        

     Total liabilities and fund balance 49,917$            103,400$           
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Exhibit 9-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Revenues:
   Intergovernmental 2,769,459$       4,233,077$        
   Other -                        289,534             

       Total revenues 2,769,459         4,522,611          

Expenditures:
  Current:
    General government 176,355            157,828             
    Highways and streets 66,392              670,915             
    Health and welfare 2,415,257         3,363,779          
    Culture and recreation 111,455            330,089             

       Total expenditures 2,769,459         4,522,611          

       Net change in fund balance -                        -                        

Fund balance--beginning -                        -                        

Fund balance--ending -$                      -$                      
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Exhibit 9-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
   Intergovernmental 4,093,823$      4,093,823$      2,769,459$       (1,324,364)$       

      Total revenues 4,093,823        4,093,823        2,769,459         (1,324,364)         

Expenditures:
  Current:
   General government 250,000 250,000 176,355 73,645               
   Highways and streets 331,828 331,828 66,392 265,436             
   Health and welfare 3,187,706 3,187,706 2,415,257 772,449             
   Culture and recreation 324,289 324,289 111,455 212,834             

      Total expenditures 4,093,823        4,093,823        2,769,459         1,324,364          

        Excess of revenues over expenditures -                       -                       -                       -                         

Fund balance--beginning -                       -                       -                       -                         

Fund balance--ending -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                       
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Exhibit 10-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

ASSETS
Cash 12,993$            4,032$               
Certificates of deposit 1,035,951         849,000             
Investments 6,795                7,512                 
Accrued interest receivable -                        1,503                 

     Total assets 1,055,739$       862,047$           

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 450$                  -$                       

     Total liabilities 450                   -                        

FUND BALANCE
Unrestricted 1,055,289         862,047             

     Total liabilities and fund balance 1,055,739$       862,047$           
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Exhibit 10-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Revenues:
   Other 159,250$          533,755$           
   Interest 33,992              35,950               

       Total revenues 193,242            569,705             

Expenditures:
  Current:
   Capital outaly -                        155,850             

       Total expenditures -                        155,850             

       Net change in fund balance 193,242            413,855             

Fund balance--beginning 862,047            448,192             

Fund balance--ending 1,055,289$       862,047$           
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Exhibit 10-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
   Other 269,999$         269,999$         159,250$          (110,749)$          
   Interest -                       -                       33,992              33,992               

      Total revenues 269,999           269,999           193,242            (76,757)              

Expenditures:
  Current:
   Capital outlay 750,000           750,000           -                       750,000             

      Total expenditures 750,000           750,000           -                       750,000             

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (480,001)          (480,001)          193,242            (826,757)            
            expenditures

Fund balance--beginning 862,047           862,047           862,047            -                         

Fund balance--ending 382,046$         382,046$         1,055,289$       (826,757)$          
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Exhibit 11-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

ASSETS
Cash -$                      2,745$               
Certificates of deposit -                        609,769             
Investments -                        42,622               
Ad valorem tax receivable -                        25,721               
Accrued interest -                        708                    

     Total assets -$                      681,565$           

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$                      5,372$               
Accrued liabilities -                        2,920                 
Deferred revenues -                        25,721               
Advances from other funds -                        750,000             

     Total liabilities -                        784,013             

FUND BALANCE
Deficit fund balance -                        (102,448)           

     Total liabilities and fund balance -$                      681,565$           
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Exhibit 11-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Revenues:
   Property tax -$                      196,053$           
   Interest -                        30,272               
   Other 102,448            -                        

       Total revenues 102,448            226,325             

Expenditures:
  Current:
   General government -                        134,293             

       Total expenditures -                        134,293             

Excess of revenues over expenditures 102,448            92,032               

Other financing  sources :
    Transfers in -                        210,000             

Other financing sources -                        210,000             

       Net change in fund balance 102,448            302,032             

Fund deficit at beginning of year (102,448)           (404,480)           

Fund balance (deficit) at end of year -$                      (102,448)$         
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Exhibit 12-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

ASSETS
Cash 185,673$            111,295$              
Certificates of deposit 17,665,942         13,082,099           
Investments 3,032,339           4,331,864             
Receivables:
  Taxes  1,643,862           1,585,793             
  Accrued interest 22,772                53,291                  
  Advances to other funds 3,800,000           3,900,000             

     Total assets 26,350,588$       23,064,342$         

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 448,911$            45,403$                
Accured liabilities 438,284              287,455                
Deferred revenues 902,425              891,156                

     Total liabilities 1,789,620           1,224,014             

FUND BALANCE
Restricted for economic incentive (MEDC) 1,212,155           1,108,972             
Restricted for advances 3,800,000           3,900,000             
Unrestricted 19,548,813         16,831,356           

     Total fund balance 24,560,968         21,840,328           

     Total liabilities and fund balance 26,350,588$       23,064,342$         
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Exhibit 12-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Revenues:
   Sales tax 9,812,083$         9,259,710$           
   Interest 709,428              1,039,058             
   Net increase (decrease)  in the fair value 
      of investments (22,460)               116,505                
   Other 139,297              4,135,973             

       Total revenues 10,638,348         14,551,246           

Expenditures:
  Current:
   General government 468,018              674,500                
   Public safety 2,806,050           4,810,736             
   Highways and streets 569,060              843,294                
   Health and welfare 1,825,691           1,045,796             
   Culture and recreation 171,594              729,983                
  Debt service:
      Principal 885,000              850,000                
      Interest and fiscal charges 1,099,295           1,136,834             

       Total expenditures 7,824,708           10,091,143           

Excess of revenues over expenditures 2,813,640           4,460,103             

Other financing sources (uses)
   Transfers in -                          529,350                
   Transfers out (93,000)               (1,272,829)           

   Total  other financing sources and uses (93,000)               (743,479)              

       Net change in fund balance 2,720,640           3,716,624             

Fund balance--beginning 21,840,328         18,123,704           

Fund balance--ending 24,560,968$       21,840,328$         
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Exhibit 12-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
   Sales tax 9,041,667$               9,041,667$           9,812,083$               770,416$                   
   Interest 550,000                    550,000                709,428                   159,428                     
   Net decrease in the fair value of investments -                               -                           (22,460)                    (22,460)                      
   Other 100,000                    100,000                139,297                   39,297                       

      Total revenues 9,691,667                 9,691,667             10,638,348               946,681                     

Expenditures:
  Current:
   General government 3,559,408 3,559,408 468,018 3,091,390                  
   Public safety 3,320,527 3,320,527 2,806,050 514,477                     
   Highways and streets 7,557,223 8,421,923 569,060 7,852,863                  
   Health and welfare 2,540,945 2,540,945 1,825,691 715,254                     
   Culture and recreation 1,338,873 1,338,873 171,594 1,167,279                  
  Debt service:
     Principal 885,000 885,000 885,000 -                                
     Interest and fiscal charges 1,099,295 1,099,295 1,099,295 -                                

       Total expenditures 20,301,271               21,165,971           7,824,708                13,341,263                 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (10,609,604)              (11,474,304)          2,813,640                14,287,944                 

Other financing uses
   Transfers out (93,000)                    (93,000)                 (93,000)                    -                                

       Net change in fund balances (10,702,604)              (11,567,304)          2,720,640                14,287,944                 

Fund balance--beginning 21,840,328               21,840,328           21,840,328               -                                

Fund balance--ending 11,137,724$             10,273,024$         24,560,968$             14,287,944$               
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Exhibit 13-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

ASSETS
Cash 18,212$          6,810$            
Certificates of deposit 2,254,199       2,175,485       
Investments 1,018,074       978,124          
Ad valorem tax receivable 692,092          771,395          
Accrued interest 15,630            15,324            
Advance to other funds 3,456,819       1,749,972       

     Total assets 7,455,026$     5,697,110$     

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,449$            227$               
Deferred revenues 692,092          771,395          

     Total liabilities 693,541          771,622          

FUND BALANCES
Restriced for advances 3,456,819       1,749,972       
Restricted for debt service 3,304,666       3,175,516       

     Total fund balance 6,761,485        4,925,488

     Total liabilities and fund balance 7,455,026$     5,697,110$     
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Exhibit 13-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Revenues:
   Ad valorem tax 2,511,435$     2,566,991$     
   Interest 133,702          218,918          
   Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments (16,115)           37,249            

       Total revenues 2,629,022       2,823,158       

Expenditures:
   Principal retirement 1,840,000       1,790,000       
   Interest and fiscal charges 659,873          773,832          

       Total expenditures 2,499,873       2,563,832       

Excess of revenues over expenditures 129,149          259,326          

Other financing sources:
   Transfer in 1,706,848       1,749,972       

       Excess of revenues and other sources 1,835,997       2,009,298       

Fund balance at beginning of year 4,925,488       2,916,190       

Fund balance at end of year 6,761,485$     4,925,488$     
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Exhibit 13-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
   Ad valorem tax 2,505,873$         2,505,873$           2,511,435$          5,562$               
   Interest 125,000              125,000                133,702               8,702                 
   Net decrease in the fair value of investments -                          -                           (16,115)               (16,115)              

      Total revenues 2,630,873           2,630,873             2,629,022            (1,851)                

Expenditures:
  Principal retirement 1,840,000 1,840,000 1,840,000 -                         
  Interest and fiscal charges 665,873 665,873 659,873 6,000

      Total expenditures 2,505,873           2,505,873             2,499,873            6,000                 

        Excess of revenues over expenditures 125,000              125,000                129,149               4,149                 

Other financing sources:
   Transfers in -                          -                           1,706,848            1,706,848          

       Excess of revenues and other sources 125,000              125,000                1,835,997            1,710,997          

Fund balance at beginning of year 4,925,488           4,925,488             4,925,488            -                         

Fund balance at end of year 5,050,488$         5,050,488$           6,761,485$          1,710,997$        
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Exhibit 14-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

ASSETS
Cash 224,850$             4,872$                  
Certificates of deposit 23,148,514          9,771,737             
Investments 2,111,088            6,288,492             
Accrued interest 18,640                 131,370                
Loan receivables 1,551,711            1,500,000             
Interfund loan 352,716               352,716                

     Total assets 27,407,519$        18,049,187$         

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 281,207$             155,126$              
Accrued liabilities 67,273                 48,458                  
Deferred revenues 1,904,427            1,852,716             

     Total liabilities 2,252,907            2,056,300             

FUND BALANCE
Unrestricted 25,154,612          15,992,887           

     Total fund balance 25,154,612          15,992,887           

     Total liabilities and fund balance 27,407,519$        18,049,187$         
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Exhibit 14-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Revenues:
   Interest 625,081$             414,256$              
   Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
        of investments (17,293)                67,958                  
   Other 757,055               1,764,416             

       Total revenues 1,364,843            2,246,630             

Expenditures:
   General government 60,988                 59,428                  
   Capital outlay 5,192,130            2,974,890             

       Total expenditures 5,253,118            3,034,318             

Excess of revenues over expenditures (3,888,275)           (787,688)               

Other financing sources (uses):
   Transfers in 13,450,000          12,030,429           
   Transfers out (400,000)              -                            

13,050,000          12,030,429           

       Excess of revenues and other sources 9,161,725            11,242,741           

Fund balance at beginning of year 15,992,887          4,750,146             

Fund balance at end of year 25,154,612$        15,992,887$         
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Exhibit 14-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
   Interest 320,000$           320,000$           625,081$              305,081$              
   Net decrease in the fair value 
       of investments -                         -                         (17,293)                 (17,293)                 
   Other 2,163,880          2,163,880          757,054                (1,406,826)            

      Total revenues 2,483,880          2,483,880          1,364,842             (1,119,038)            

Expenditures:
   General government 2,046,690          2,046,690          899,104                1,147,586             
   Public safety 607,900             607,900             284,280                323,620                
   Highways and streets 13,171,138        13,171,138        3,319,366             9,851,772             
   Health and welfare -                         4,500,000          137,665                4,362,335             
   Culture and recreation 5,348,020          5,614,946          612,702                5,002,244             

      Total expenditures 21,173,748        25,940,674        5,253,117             20,687,557           

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
        over expenditures (18,689,868)       (23,456,794)       (3,888,275)            19,568,519           

Other financing sources (uses):
   Transfers in 8,950,000          13,450,000        13,450,000           -                            
   Transfers out (400,000)            (400,000)            (400,000)               -                            

    Net other financing sources (uses) 8,550,000          13,050,000        13,050,000           -                            

     Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
     other sources over expenditures 
     and other uses (10,139,868)       (10,406,794)       9,161,725             19,568,519           

Fund balance at beginning of year 15,992,887        15,992,887        15,992,887           -                            

Fund balance at end of year 5,853,019$        5,586,093$        25,154,612$         19,568,519$         
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Exhibit 15-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DRAINAGE BOND FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

ASSETS
Cash 6,238$            5,527$            
Investments 350,308          343,012          

     Total assets 356,546$        348,539$        

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$                    -$                    
Deferred revenues -                      -                      

     Total liabilities -                      -                      

FUND BALANCE
Unrestricted 356,546          348,539          

     Total fund balance 356,546 348,539

     Total liabilities and fund balance 356,546$        348,539$        
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Exhibit 15-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DRAINAGE BOND FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Revenues:
   Interest 8,007$            17,608$          

       Total revenues 8,007              17,608            

Expenditures:
   General government -                      -                      
   Highways and streets -                      -                      
   Culture and recreation -                      -                      
   Capital outlay -                      -                      

       Total expenditures -                      -                      

Excess of revenues over expenditures 8,007              17,608            

Other financing sources:
   Operating transfer in -                      -                      

       Excess of revenues and other sources 8,007              17,608            

Fund balance at beginning of year 348,539          330,931          

Fund balance at end of year 356,546$        348,539$        
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Exhibit 15-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DRAINAGE BOND FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
   Interest -$                   -$                   8,007$              8,007$                

      Total revenues -                      -                      8,007                8,007                  

Expenditures:
   Highways and streets 346,389          346,389          -                        -                          

      Total expenditures 346,389          346,389          -                        -                          

        Excess of revenues over expenditures (346,389)        (346,389)        8,007                8,007                  

Fund balance at beginning of year 348,539          348,539          348,539            -                          

Fund balance at end of year 2,150$            2,150$            356,546$          8,007$                
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Exhibit 16-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash   307,372$        222,208$        
  Certificates of deposit 6,817,539      3,504,374        
  Investments 1,528,528      2,196,531        
  Receivables, net:
    Accounts  1,360,623      1,200,813        
    Accrued interest 29,392           21,709            
    Due from other funds -                      402,369          
  Inventories, at cost 30,945           25,202            

      Total current assets 10,074,399    7,573,206        

Restricted assets:
  Cash 33,959           44,496            
  Certificates of deposit 9,270,782      14,542,857      
  Money market savings 20,303,569    9,906,813        
  Investments 1,807,809      4,270,103        
  Accrued interest 14,935           51,938            
  Due from other funds -                      5,626,000        

      Total restricted assets 31,431,054    34,442,207      

Capital assets
  Land 2,115,109 2,115,109
  Buildings and systems 17,948,991 13,523,669
  Improvements other than buildings 35,562,607 35,501,870
  Machinery and equipment 2,125,043 1,802,459
  Construction in progress 9,230,141 3,670,058

    Total capital assets 66,981,891 56,613,165
      Less accumulated depreciation (23,273,248)   (21,628,841)     

      Net capital assets 43,708,643    34,984,324      

Other assets
  Loans receivable 110,807         110,807          
  Other assets, net 1,592,394      1,697,836        

      Total other assets 1,703,201      1,808,643        

      Total assets 86,917,297$   78,808,380$    

Continued
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   Exhibit 16-A, Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 579,110$        260,649$        
  Accrued expenses 117,832         87,693            
  Other 5,802              5,802               

      Total current liabilities 702,744         354,144          

Liabilities (payable from restricted assets)
  Accrued expenses 1,215,514      831,650          
  Due to other funds -                      -                       
  Current portion of revenue bonds 629,850         759,200          
  Customer deposits 1,477,129      1,278,007        

      Total liabilities (payable from
       restricted assets) 3,322,493      2,868,857        

Other non-current liabilities:
  Revenue bonds, net of current portion
  and discount 27,022,400    27,652,250      
  Deferred revenues 144,097         188,033          
  Arbitrage payable 605,613         238,706          
  Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 160,939         148,942          

      Total other non-current liabilities 27,933,049    28,227,931      

      Total liabilities 31,958,286    31,450,932      

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related deb 39,252,962    27,685,998      
Restricted for improvements 4,534,093      10,710,553      
Unrestricted 11,171,956    8,960,897        

      Total net assets 54,959,011    47,357,448      

      Total liabilities and net assets 86,917,297$   78,808,380$    
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Exhibit 16-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND ASSETS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Operating revenues - charges for services 11,319,094$   10,417,323$    

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 2,910,305      2,587,999        
  Supplies and materials 1,592,546      1,443,087        
  Contractual and other services 1,480,817      1,522,673        
  Repairs and maintenance 393,637         299,675          
  Other 405,684           248,555           
  Depreciation and amortization 1,775,426      1,636,103        

      Total operating expenses 8,558,415      7,738,092        

       Operating income 2,760,679      2,679,231        

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
  Interest income 1,663,291      2,566,954        
  Net increase in fair value of investment (48,662)          280,264          
  Interest expense (1,436,021)     (1,559,373)       
  Other 662,276         356,225          

      Net non-operating revenues 840,884         1,644,070        

         Income before contributions and
          and transfers 3,601,563      4,323,301        

Capital contributions -                      124,942          
Transfer in 4,000,000      -                       

      Changes in net assets 7,601,563      4,448,243        

Total net assets--beginning 47,357,448    42,909,205      

Total net assets--ending 54,959,011$   47,357,448$    
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Exhibit 16-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities:
   Receipt from customers and users 11,115,348$    10,233,437$    
   Payments to suppliers (3,798,675)       (3,243,490)       
   Payments to employees (2,880,166)       (2,575,542)       
   Internal activity-payments to other funds -                        -                        
   Other receipts 1,836,057        1,083,534        

     Net cash povided (used) by  operating 
      activities 6,272,564        5,497,939        

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
   Operating transfers in (out) 10,028,369      (6,028,369)       
     Cash provided by non-capital financing
      activities 10,028,369      (6,028,369)       

Cash flows from capital and related financing
 activities:
   Purchases of capital assets (10,368,732)     (6,071,312)       
   Principal paid on capital debt (759,200)          (678,900)          
   Interest paid on capital debt (1,434,846)       (1,577,327)       

     Net cash used by capital and
      related financing activities (12,562,778)     (8,327,539)       

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, net (5,307,549)       5,759,739        
   Receipt of interest 1,644,021        2,923,544        

     Net cash provided (used) by 
       investing activities (3,663,528)       8,683,283        

     Net increase (decrease) in cash 74,627             (174,686)          

Cash at beginning of year 266,704           441,390           

Cash at end of year 341,331$         266,704$         

Continued
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Exhibit 16-C Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Reconciliation of cash per statements of cash flows
     to the statements of net assets:
   Unrestricted cash 307,372$         222,208$         
   Restricted cash 33,959             44,496             

341,331$         266,704$         

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
     provided (used) by operating activities:

   Operating income 2,760,679$      2,679,231$      
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
       net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
         Depreciation expense 1,775,426        1,636,102        
         Miscellaneous income (expense) 773,127           666,987           
         (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (159,810)          (166,614)          
         Loan receivable -                        15,214             
         Loss on asset disposal -                        235,801           
         (Increase)  in due from other funds -                        -                        
         (Increase) decrease in inventories (5,743)              (12,447)            
         Accrued expenses 30,139             12,457             
         Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 79,755             282,947           
         Due to other funds -                        -                        
         Other current liabilities 1,062,927        165,533           
         Deferred revenue (43,936)            (17,272)            

             Total adjustments 3,511,885        2,818,708        

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 6,272,564$      5,497,939$      
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Exhibit 16-D
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Operating revenues:
  Water sales:
   Residential customers 6,340,852$     6,340,852$     6,513,631$       172,779$       
   Commercial accounts 3,455,216       3,455,216       3,514,962         59,746           
   Industrial customers 471,728          471,728          496,988            25,260           

      Total water sales 10,267,796     10,267,796     10,525,581       257,785         

  Service charges:
   Tap fees 380,000          380,000          470,775            90,775           
   Connect fees 65,000            65,000            93,870              28,870           
   Reconnect fees 55,000            55,000            157,562            102,562         
   Other -                      -                      71,306              71,306           

      Total service charges 500,000          500,000          793,513            222,207         

      Total operating revenues 10,767,796     10,767,796     11,319,094       551,298         

Non-operating revenues:
   Interest 1,349,000       1,349,000       1,663,291         314,291         
   Net increase in fair value of investments -                      -                      (48,662)             (48,662)          
   Other 588,000          588,000          662,276            74,276           

      Total non-operating revenues 1,937,000       1,937,000       2,276,905         339,905         

      Total revenues 12,704,796     12,704,796     13,595,999       891,203         

Expenses:
  Water plant:
   Salaries 698,870          718,725          703,050            15,675           
   Supplies and raw water purchases 1,620,500       1,620,500       1,490,880         129,620         
   Other services 1,102,300       1,102,300       809,508            292,792         
   Maintenance 162,500          162,500          164,528            (2,028)            

3,584,170       3,604,025       3,167,966         436,059         

Water lab:
   Salaries 165,442          169,383          156,584            12,799           
   Supplies 49,000            49,000            38,604              10,396           
   Other services 20,800            20,800            16,302              4,498             
   Maintenance 13,800            13,800            6,463                7,337             

249,042          252,983          217,953            35,030           

Continued
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Exhibit 16-D, Continued.
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

  Transmission and distribution:
   Salaries 941,303$        967,141$        900,300            41,003$         
   Supplies 21,300            21,300            21,872              (572)               
   Other services 20,200            20,200            13,674              6,526             
   Maintenance 158,300          158,300          189,241            (30,941)          

1,141,103       1,166,941       1,125,087         16,016           

Water meters:
   Salaries 336,872          349,148          348,744            404                
   Supplies 15,300            15,300            11,881              3,419             
   Other services 14,900            14,900            8,876                6,024             
   Maintenance 49,000            49,000            29,468              19,532           

416,072          428,348          398,969            29,379           
  Utility billing:
   Salaries 447,738          459,512          409,952            49,560           
   Supplies 36,000            36,000            26,145              9,855             
   Other services 190,000          190,000          191,948            (1,948)            
   Maintenance 2,500              2,500              2,899                (399)               

676,238          688,012          630,944            57,068           

  Administrative and general:
   Salaries 246,842          276,658          324,002            (47,344)          
   Supplies 2,500              2,500              3,164                (664)               
   Other services 471,800          471,800          440,509            31,291           
   Maintenance 500                 500                 1,038                (538)               

721,642          751,458          768,713            (17,255)          

  Non-departmental expenses:
   Employee benefits 103,500          -                      -                        -                     
   Liability insurance 67,673            67,673            67,673              -                     
   Interest and fiscal charges 1,901,856       1,901,856       1,436,021         465,835         
   Bond principal requirements 759,200          759,200          759,200            -                     
   Other -                      -                      405,684            (405,684)        
   Capital improvement - total capital outlay 16,852,789     32,286,759     10,199,994       22,086,765    

19,685,018     35,015,488     12,868,572       22,146,916    

     Total expenses 26,473,285     41,907,255     19,178,204       22,703,213    
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Exhibit 16-D, Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over expenses
  (Budget Basis) before transfers (13,768,489)    (29,202,459)    (5,582,205)        23,594,416    

Transfers in -                      4,000,000       4,000,000         4,000,000      

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over expenses
  (Budget Basis) (13,768,489)$  (25,202,459)$  (1,582,205)        27,594,416$  

GAAP basis adjustments:
   Depreciation expense, not budgeted (1,775,426)        

  Capital outlay - amounts budgeted
   as expenses per budget basis,
   capitalized per GAAP Basis 10,199,994       

  Principal payments on revenue bonds-
   budgeted as expenses per budget
   basis, treated as a reduction of
   bonds payable per GAAP Basis 759,200            

            Net income-GAAP basis 7,601,563$       
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Current
Debt Customer

Service Deposits Depreciation

Cash, certificates of deposit, and
  investments at September 30, 2001 508,873$        1,278,007$   2,651,607$       

Cash receipts:
  Transfers in 2,089,877        -                  592,190           
  Operating activities -                     504,954       -                       
  Valuation allowance -                     -                  (10,486)            
  Interest received (1,393)            -                  104,602           

     Total cash receipts 2,088,484        504,954       686,306           

     Total cash available 2,597,357        1,782,961    3,337,913        

Cash disbursements:
  Refunds -                     305,832       -                       
  Capital acquisition -                      -                    700,528             
  Revenue Bond principal 759,200          -                  -                       
  Interest and fiscal charges 1,436,021        -                  -                       

     Total cash disbursements 2,195,221        305,832       700,528           

Cash, certificates of deposit, investments, and
  accrued interest at September 30, 2002 402,136$        1,477,129$   2,637,385$       

Cash, certificates of deposit, and
  investments at September 30, 2002
  is comprised of the following:
   Cash -$                   -$                 22,153$             
   Certificates of deposit -                      1,477,129      1,571,620          
   Money market savings -                      -                    -                        
   Investments (net) 402,136          -                  1,034,292        
   Accrued Interest -                     -                  9,320                

402,136$        1,477,129$   2,637,385$       

(1) Amount includes due from other funds totaling $5,626,000.
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Exhibit 16-E

Water
Capital Water Bond '99 &

Improvement Bond '96 Bond '00 Total

3,264,596$       -$                    21,113,124$      28,816,207$       

823,499            -                     9,626,000         (1) 13,131,566        
-                       -                     -                       504,954            

(31,271)             -                     -                       (41,757)             
140,245            -                     1,089,296         1,332,750         

932,473            -                     10,715,296       14,927,513        

4,197,069         -                     31,828,420       43,743,720        

-                       -                     -                       305,832            
479,234            -                     8,631,851          9,811,613           

-                       -                     -                       759,200            
-                       -                     -                       1,436,021         

479,234            -                     8,631,851         12,312,666        

3,717,835$       -$                    23,196,569$      31,431,054$       

11,527$            -$                    279$                 33,959$             
3,356,645         -                     2,865,388          9,270,782           

-                       -                     20,303,569        20,303,569          
344,048            -                     27,333              1,807,809         

5,615                -                     -                       14,935              

3,717,835$       -$                    23,196,569$      31,431,054$       

(1)
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Exhibit 17-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash 170,694$        180,693$         
  Certificates of deposit 4,186,278      2,183,955      
  Investments 2,192,454      2,714,639      
  Receivables, net:
    Accounts 944,487         889,063          
    Accrued interest 21,936           17,585            
    Other 54,627           30,135            

      Total current assets 7,570,476      6,016,070      

Restricted assets:
  Cash 29,755           5,108              
  Certificates of deposit 6,145,791      9,353,656      
  Certificates of deposit-escrow
  Money market savings 2,445,945      11,371,013    
  Investments 2,446,465      1,816,183      
  Accrued interest 11,428           17,581            

      Total restricted assets 11,079,384    22,563,541    

Capital assets
  Land 734,993         734,993          
  Buildings and systems 7,902,728      4,016,967      
  Improvements other than building 37,485,453    35,153,567    
  Machinery and equipmen 3,972,445      3,477,686      
  Construction in progress 489,146         3,609,904      

    Total capital assets 50,584,765    46,993,117    
      Less accumulated depreciation (23,681,269)  (21,768,446)   

      Net capital assets 26,903,496    25,224,671    

Other assets
  Loans receivable 110,807         110,807          
  Other assets, net 160,433         190,090          

      Total other assets 271,240         300,897          

      Total assets 45,824,596$   54,105,179$   
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     Exhibit 17-A, Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
  Accounts payable 444,592$        140,134$         
  Accrued expenses 76,116           59,579            
  Due to other funds -                    402,369          

      Total current liabilities 520,708         602,082          

Liabilities(payable from restricted assets):
  Accounts payable 27,677             725,763           
  Accrued expenses 176,808           146,130           
  Current portion of revenue bonds 955,150           745,800           
  Due to other funds -                      5,626,000        

      Total liabilities (payable from restricted assets) 1,159,635        7,243,693        

Other non-current liabilites:
  Revenue bonds, net of current portion and discount 11,277,600      12,232,750      
  Deferred revenues 1,255,084        1,375,000        
  Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 123,704           108,983           
  Arbitrage payable 223,994           73,347             

      Total other non-current liabilities 12,880,382      13,790,080      

      Total liabilities 14,560,725      21,635,855      

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of deb 20,354,463    29,712,970    
Restricted for improvements 4,490,116      -                      
Unrestricted 6,419,292      2,756,354      

      Total net assets 31,263,871    32,469,324    

      Total liabilities and net asset 45,824,596$   54,105,179$   
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Exhibit 17-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Operating revenues - charges for services 8,166,020$     7,475,330$     

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 1,813,388      1,639,489      
  Supplies and materials 422,908         391,236          
  Contractual and other services 1,791,351      1,952,125      
  Repairs and maintenance 298,196         327,741          
  Other 308,182         118,152          
  Depreciation 1,909,897      1,686,025      

      Total operating expenses 6,543,922      6,114,768      

      Operating income 1,622,098      1,360,562      

Non-operating revenues
  Interest income 1,274,218      1,310,560      
  Net increase in the fair value of investment 2,210             183,854          
  Interest expense (692,573)       (680,989)         
  Other 288,872         (49,901)           

      Non-operating revenues 872,727         763,524          

      Income before contributions and transfers 2,494,825        2,124,086        

Capital contributions 299,722           100,752            
Transfers out (4,000,000)      -                       

      Change in net assets (1,205,453)      2,224,838        

Total net assets--beginning 32,469,324      30,244,486      

Total net assets--ending 31,263,871$   32,469,324$   

- 185 -



Exhibit 17-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities:
   Receipt from customers and users 7,966,188$      7,366,484$      
   Payments to suppliers (3,214,265)      (2,201,867)       
   Payments to employees (1,615,526)      (1,692,727)       
   Internal activity-payments to other funds -                      -                       
   Other receipts (payments) 636,170           221,259           

     Net cash povided  by operating 
      activities 3,772,567        3,693,149        

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
   Transfer to other funds (10,028,369)    6,028,369        

     Cash used by non-capital financing
      activities (10,028,369)    6,028,369        

Cash flows from capital and related financing
 activities:
   Purchases of capital assets (3,639,171)      (4,009,751)       
   Principal paid on capital debt (745,800)         (696,100)          
   Interest paid on capital debt (643,113)         (680,989)          

     Net cash used by capital and
      related financing activities (5,028,084)      (5,386,840)       

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, net 10,022,513      (6,020,910)       
   Receipt of interest 1,276,021        1,528,173        

     Net cash provided used) by 
       investing activities 11,298,534      (4,492,737)       

     Net increase (decrease) in cash 14,648             (158,059)          

Cash at beginning of year 185,801           343,860           

Cash at end of year 200,449$         185,801$         
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Exhibit 17-C Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Reconciliation of cash per statements of cash flows
     to the statements of net assets:
   Unrestricted cash 170,694$         5,108$             
   Restricted cash 29,755             180,693           

200,449$         185,801$         

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
     provided (used) by operating activities:

   Operating income 1,622,098$      1,360,562$      
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
       net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
         Depreciation expense 1,909,897        1,686,025        
         Miscellaneous income (expense) 628,864           50,851             
         Loss on asset disposal 158,879           
         (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (55,424)           (108,846)          
         (Increase) decrease in other receivable (24,492)           18,667             
         (Increase) decrease in loan receivable -                      15,213             
         (Increase)  in due  to other funds -                      -                       
          Other assets net 7,306               (22,351)            
         Accrued expenses 197,862           (53,238)            
         Due to other funds -                      -                       
         Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (393,628)         587,387           
         Deferred revenue (119,916)         -                       

             Total adjustments 2,150,469        2,332,587        

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 3,772,567$      3,693,149$      

- 187 -



Exhibit 17-D
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Operating revenues:
  Service charges:
   Sewer service charges 7,673,162$      7,673,162$      7,852,818$      179,656$       
   Industrial surcharges 108,948           108,948           313,202           204,254         

      Total operating revenues 7,782,110        7,782,110        8,166,020        383,910         

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest income 687,100           687,100           1,274,218        587,118         
  Net increase in fair value of investments -                      -                      2,210               2,210             
  Other services 147,106           147,106           588,594           441,488         

      Total non-operating revenues 834,206           834,206           1,865,022        1,030,816      

      Total revenues 8,616,316        8,616,316        10,031,042      1,414,726      

Expenses:
  Sewer plant and stations:
   Salaries 925,762           955,303           946,300           9,003             
   Supplies 175,000           175,000           141,960           33,040           
   Other services 1,409,700        1,409,700        951,341           458,359         
   Maintenance 169,100           169,100           156,310           12,790           

2,679,562        2,709,103        2,195,911        513,192         

  Sewer collection:
   Salaries 589,195           606,580           596,216           10,364           
   Supplies 325,500           325,500           259,841           65,659           
   Other services 266,900           266,900           175,486           91,414           
   Maintenance 168,000           168,000           122,091           45,909           

1,349,595        1,366,980        1,153,634        213,346         

  Sewer lab:
   Salaries 148,429           151,824           152,597           (773)               
   Supplies 21,461             21,461             19,788             1,673             
   Other services 3,200               3,200               2,373               827                
   Maintenance 20,200             20,200             19,094             1,106             

193,290           196,685           193,852           2,833             

Continued
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Exhibit 17-D, Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

  Administrative and general:
   Salaries 155,524$         165,903$         118,275$         47,628           
   Supplies 1,400               1,400               1,319               81                  
   Other services 708,700           708,700           916,082           (207,382)        
   Maintenance 2,000               2,000               700                  1,300             

867,624           878,003           1,036,376        (158,373)        

  Non-department expenses:
   Employee benefits 60,700             -                      -                       -                     
   Liability insurance 54,252             54,252             54,252             -                     
   Interest and fiscal charges 793,113           793,113           692,573           100,540         
   Bond principal 745,800           745,800           745,800           -                     
   Capital improvement 16,651,987      7,117,058        3,237,400        3,879,658      

18,305,852      8,710,223        4,730,025        3,980,198      

      Total expenses 23,395,923      13,860,994      9,309,798        4,551,196      

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
   expenses (Budget Basis)before transfers (14,779,607)    (5,244,678)      721,244           5,965,922      

Transfers out -                      (4,000,000)      (4,000,000)       -                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
   expenses (Budget Basis) (14,779,607)$  (9,244,678)$    (3,278,756)       5,965,922$    

GAAP basis adjustments:
   Depreciation expense, not budgeted (1,909,897)       

  Capital outlay - amounts budgeted
   as expenses per budget basis, 3,237,400        
   capitalized per GAAP Basis

  Principal payments on revenue bonds-
   budgeted as expenses per budget
   basis, treated as a reduction of
   bonds payable per GAAP Basis 745,800           

            Net loss-GAAP basis (1,205,453)$     
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Current
Debt

Service Depreciation

Cash, certificates of deposit, and
  investments at September 30, 2001  360,508$           3,783,878$              

Cash receipts:
  Transfers from operating cash 1,506,829         904,827                   
  Valuation allowance -                        (2,873)                      
  Interest received (805)                  152,101                   

1,506,024         1,054,055                

     Total cash available 1,866,532         4,837,933                

Cash disbursements:
  Interfund transfers, net -                        -                               
  Principal payments 745,800            -                               
  Interest and fiscal charges (net) 643,661            -                               
  Capital acqusitions -                        724,968                   

     Total cash disbursements 1,389,461         724,968                   

Cash, certificates of deposit, and
  investments at September 30, 2002 477,071$         4,112,965$              

Cash, certificates of deposit, and
  investments at September 30, 2002
  is comprised of the following:
   Cash  -$                       23,689$                   
   Certificates of deposit -                        2,452,126                
   Investments (net) 477,071            1,625,722                
   Accrued Interest -                        11,428                     

477,071$         4,112,965$              
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Exhibit 17-E

Capital Sewer Sewer
Improvement Bond '96 Bond '99 & '00 Total

 952,306$               667,172$           16,799,677$               22,563,541$           

100,000                -                        -                                 2,511,656               
-                            -                        -                                 (2,873)                     

30,964                  24,574              863,112                     1,069,946               
130,964                24,574              863,112                     4,441,841               

1,083,270             691,746            17,662,789                27,005,382             

-                            -                        9,626,000                  9,626,000               
-                            -                        -                                 745,800                  
-                            -                        -                                 643,661                  

277,640                -                        3,044,818                  4,047,426               

277,640                -                        12,670,818                15,062,887             

 805,630$               691,746$          4,991,971$               11,079,383$          

 4,166$                   78$                    1,821$                        29,754$                  
739,459                650,551            2,303,656                  6,145,792               
62,005                  41,117              2,686,494                  4,892,409               

-                            -                        -                                 11,428                    
 805,630$               691,746$          4,991,971$               11,079,383$          
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Exhibit 18-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash 34,141$         128,260$          
  Certificates of Deposit 100,085        -                      
  Investments 232,093        9,416               
  Accounts receivable, net 982,351        905,599           

     Total current assets 1,348,670      1,043,275        

Restricted assets:
  Cash 21,984          4,574               
  Certificates of deposit 2,083,518      1,923,906        
  Investments 119,554        48,588             

     Total restricted assets 2,225,056      1,977,068        

Capital assets:
 Land 718,348        718,348           
 Buildings and systems 1,788,753      1,713,905        
 Improvements other than buildings 478,234        478,234           
 Machinery and equipment 8,541,088      7,766,134         

  Total capital assets 11,526,423    10,676,621       
    Less accumulated depreciation (6,722,349)    (5,988,648)       

      Net capital assets 4,804,074      4,687,973         

     Total assets 8,377,800$     7,708,316$        

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 475,452$        465,369$          
  Accrued expenses 113,821        122,427           

     Total current liabilities 589,273        587,796           

Liabilities (payable from restricted assets)
  Accounts payable 449,437        -                      

Noncurrent liabilities
  Advances from other funds 1,400,000      1,400,000        
  Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 113,924        103,568           
  Deferred revenues 89,491          74,014             

     Total noncurrent liabilities 1,603,415      1,577,582        

     Total liabilities 2,642,125      2,165,378        

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,804,074      4,687,973        
Restricted for capital projects 1,775,619      1,977,068        
Deficit (844,018)       (1,122,103)       

     Total net assets 5,735,675      5,542,938        

     Total liabilities and net assets 8,377,800$     7,708,316$        
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Exhibit 18-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Operating revenues - charges for services 8,607,277$     7,760,328$        

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 2,913,319      2,598,558        
  Supplies and materials 134,882        116,647           
  Contractual and other services 2,938,111      2,498,022        
  Repairs and maintenance 1,352,333      1,253,939        
  Other 34,748            12,867              
  Depreciation 754,502        731,312           

      Total operating expenses 8,127,895      7,211,345        

      Operating income 479,382        548,983           

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest income 69,532          117,548           
  Other 193,367        83,042             

      Total non-operating revenues 262,899        200,590           

      Income before  transfers 742,281        749,573           

Transfer out (550,000)       -                      

      Changes in net assets 192,281        749,573           

Total net assets--beginning 5,543,394      4,793,821        

Total net assets--ending 5,735,675$      5,543,394$        
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Exhibit 18-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities:
   Receipt from customers and users 8,546,002$      7,685,868$        
   Payments to suppliers (4,009,160)      (3,835,794)        
   Payments to employees (2,913,319)      (2,556,468)        
   Other receipts (payments) 207,379          159,425            
     Net cash povided by (used for) operating 
      activities 1,830,902        1,453,031         

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
   Advances from other funds (550,000)         -                       

     Cash provided by non-capital financing
      activities (550,000)         -                       

Cash flows from capital and related financing
 activities:
   Purchases of capital assets (873,803)         (1,108,241)        

     Net cash provided (used) by capital and
      related financing activities (873,803)         (1,108,241)        

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, net (553,340)         (533,081)           
   Receipt of interest 69,532            116,273            

     Net cash provided by 
       investing activities (483,808)         (416,808)           

     Net increase (decrease) in cash (76,709)           (72,018)             

Cash at beginning of year 132,834          204,852            

Cash at end of year 56,125$          132,834$          
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Exhibit 18 Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Reconciliation of cash per statements of cash flows
     to the statements of net assets:
   Unrestricted cash 34,141$          128,260$          
   Restricted cash 21,984            4,574                

56,125$          132,834$          

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
     provided (used) by operating activities:

   Operating income 479,382$         548,983$          
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
       net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
         Depreciation expense 754,502          731,312            
         Miscellaneous income (expense) 204,179          69,932              
         (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (76,752)           (84,421)             
         Loss on asset disposal 3,200              89,493              
         Accrued expenses (8,606)             42,090              
         Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 459,520          45,681              
         Deferred revenue 15,477            9,961                

             Total adjustments 1,351,520        904,048            

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,830,902$      1,453,031$        
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Exhibit 18-D
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Operating revenues:
  Solidwaste collections 8,275,337$    8,275,337$    7,319,364$    (955,973)$          

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest 83,000           83,000           69,532           (13,468)              
  Other 116,000         116,000         1,481,736      1,365,736          

      Total non-operating revenues 199,000         199,000         1,551,268      1,352,268          

      Total revenues 8,474,337      8,474,337      8,870,632      396,295             

Expenses:
  Facilities administration:
   Salaries 198,027         201,422         175,791         25,631               
   Supplies 8,500             10,556           13,080           (2,524)                
   Other services 509,830         522,774         562,818         (40,044)              
   Maintenance 10,400           10,400           8,576             1,824                 
   Capital outlay 348,300         363,300         82,649           280,651             

1,075,057      1,108,452      842,914         265,538             

  Brush collection:  
   Salaries 820,997         843,553         815,135         28,418               
   Supplies 23,300           27,700           28,261           (561)                   
   Other Services 262,179         262,179         225,115         37,064               
   Maintenance 225,000         225,000         317,010         (92,010)              
   Capital Outlay 50,000           50,000           238,958         (188,958)            

1,381,476      1,408,432      1,624,479      (216,047)            

  Regular collection:
   Salaries 676,598         695,201         705,457         (10,256)              
   Supplies 27,200           30,000           29,070           930                    
   Other Services 700,600         700,600         895,814         (195,214)            
   Maintenance 416,500         518,000         514,786         3,214                 
   Capital outlay 165,300         284,100         462,037         (177,937)            

1,986,198      2,227,901      2,607,164      (379,263)            

Continued
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Exhibit 18-D, Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

  Commercial box collection:
   Salaries 592,946$       607,121$       617,916$       (10,795)$            
   Supplies 39,200           40,700           37,261           3,439                 
   Other services 951,907         957,907         1,169,015      (211,108)            
   Maintenance 380,000         400,000         420,688         (20,688)              
   Capital outlay 178,000         178,000         -                     178,000             

2,142,053      2,183,728      2,244,880      (61,152)              

  Recycling:
   Salaries 543,526         556,963         512,326         44,637               
   Supplies 21,200           24,700           27,210           (2,510)                
   Other services 44,071           41,571           120,097         (78,526)              
   Maintenance 67,000           65,500           91,273           (25,773)              
   Capital outlay 381,000         96,500           90,159           6,341                 

1,056,797      785,234         841,065         (55,831)              

  Non-department expenses:
   Liability insurance 86,694           86,694           86,694           -                         

      Total expenses 7,728,275      7,800,441      8,247,196      (446,755)            

      Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
         expenses (Budget Basis) before transfers 746,062         673,896         623,436         (50,460)              

      Transfers out (550,000)        (550,000)        (550,000)        -                         

      Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 196,062$       123,896$       73,436$         (50,460)$            
         expenses (Budget Basis) 

GAAP basis adjustments:
  Capital outlay - amounts budgeted as expenses
   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis 873,803         

  Depreciation - not budgeted as an expense per budget basis (754,502)        

      Net income  - GAAP basis 192,737$       
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Exhibit 19-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PALM VIEW GOLF COURSE FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash 85,462$                 59,406$                  
  Certificate of deposits 250,230                560,000                  
  Investments 123,937                27,479                    
  Other receivables 1,229                    1,223                      

      Total current assets 460,858                648,108                  

Capital assets
  Land 187,995 187,995
  Buildings 211,633 211,633
  Improvements other than buildings 6,204,496 6,146,853               
  Machinery and equipment 557,102 512,815                   

      Total capital assets 7,161,226 7,059,296               
        Less accumulated depreciation (2,211,547)                 (1,962,742)              

          Net capital assets 4,949,679             5,096,554               

      Total assets 5,410,537$           5,744,662$             

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 57,609$                 62,002$                  
  Accrued expenses 24,467                  21,554                    
  Due to other funds -                            200,000                  
  Other 49,645                  47,013                    

      Total current liabilities 131,721                330,569                  

Other non-current liabilities:
  Advances from other funds 3,800,000             3,900,000               
  Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 40,295                  49,839                    

      Total other non-current liabilities 3,840,295             3,949,839               

      Total  liabilities 3,972,016             4,280,408               

NET ASSSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related deb 4,949,679             5,096,554               
Deficit (3,511,158)                 (3,632,300)              

      Total net assets 1,438,521             1,464,254               

      Total liabilities and net assets 5,410,537$           5,744,662$             
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Exhibit 19-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PALM VIEW GOLF COURSE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Operating revenues - charges for services 721,571$               703,803$                

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 623,322                645,536                  
  Supplies and materials 90,138                  62,771                    
  Contractual and other services 124,385                168,262                  
  Repairs and maintenance 60,439                  63,019                    
  Depreciation 247,844                249,478                  

      Total operating expenses 1,146,128             1,189,066               

      Operating loss (424,557)              (485,263)                 

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest income 20,190                  37,899                    
  Other 321,952                251,333                  

      Total non-operating revenues 342,142                289,232                  

      Loss before contributions (82,415)                (196,031)                 

Capital contributions 56,682                  -                              

      Change in net assets (25,733)                (196,031)                 

  Total net assets--beginning 1,464,254             1,660,285               

  Total net assets--ending 1,438,521$            1,464,254$              
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Exhibit  19C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PALM VIEW GOLF COURSE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities:
   Receipt from customers and users 723,208$                708,893$                 
   Payments to suppliers (276,444)                (333,458)                  
   Payments to employees (623,322)                (646,234)                  
   Other receipts 112,409                  281,532                   

     Net cash povided (used) by operating 
      activities (64,149)                  10,733                     

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
   Advances from other funds (100,000)                (100,000)                  

     Cash provided by non-capital financing
      activities (100,000)                (100,000)                  

Cash flows from capital and related financing
 activities:
   Purchases of capital assets (44,288)                  (111,081)                  

     Net cash used by capital and
      related financing activities (44,288)                  (111,081)                  

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, net 213,312                  164,269                   
   Receipt of interest 21,181                    36,908                     

     Net cash provided by 
       investing activities 234,493                  201,177                   

     Net increase in cash 26,056                    829                          

Cash at beginning of year 59,406                    58,577                     

Cash at end of year 85,462$                  59,406$                   

Continued
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Exhibit  19C concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PALM VIEW GOLF COURSE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Reconciliation of cash per statements of cash flows
     to the statements of net assets:
   Unrestricted cash -$                            -$                             
   Restricted cash 85,462                    59,406                     

85,462$                  59,406$                   

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
     provided (used) by operating activities:

   Operating income (424,557)$              (485,263)$                
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
       net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
         Depreciation expense 247,844                  249,478                   
         Miscellaneous income 312,409                  261,928                   
         Loss on asset disposal -                              19,578                     
         (Increase) decrease in other receivable (997)                        26                             
         (Increase)  in due to other funds (200,000)                -                               
         Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (4,395)                    (39,406)                    
         Accured expenses 2,913                      (698)                         
         Deferred revenue 2,634                      5,090                       

             Total adjustments 360,408                  495,996                   

Net cash provided  (used) by operating activities (64,149)$                10,733$                   
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Exhibit 19-D
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PALM VIEW GOLF COURSE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Operating revenues:
  Green fees 619,009$         619,009$         540,595$         (78,414)$             
  Membership sales 154,752           154,752           110,928           (43,824)               
  Cart rental 280,608           280,608           260,244           (20,364)               
  Rentals and other sales 61,128             61,129             70,048             8,919                  

      Total operating revenues 1,115,497        1,115,498        981,815           (133,683)             

Non-operating revenues:
  Other 12,000             12,000             61,708             49,708                
  Interest 11,000             11,000             20,190             9,190                  

      Total non-operating revenues 23,000             23,000             81,898             58,898                

      Total revenues 1,138,497        1,138,498        1,063,713        (74,785)               

Expenses:
  Golf course:
   Salaries 664,816           673,661           603,673           69,988                
   Supplies 110,992           110,992           90,138             20,854                
   Other services 246,716           246,716           124,385           122,331               
   Maintenance 63,100             63,100             60,439             2,661                  
   Capital outlay 7,500               7,500               4,500               3,000                  

1,093,124        1,101,969        883,135           218,834               
  Non-department:
   Liability insurance 19,649             19,649             19,649             -                          

      Total expenses 1,112,773        1,121,618        902,784           218,834               

Continued
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Exhibit 19-D, Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PALM VIEW GOLF COURSE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses
 (Budget Basis) 25,724$           16,880$           160,929           144,049$             

GAAP basis adjustments:
  Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses
   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis 4,500               

  Depreciation - not budgeted as an
   expense per budget basis (247,844)         

      Net loss - GAAP basis (82,415)$         
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Exhibit 20-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
TRANSIT TERMINAL FUND

BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

ASSETS 2002 2001
Current assets:
  Cash 76,648$                2,003$                  
  Certificate of deposits -                           180,000                
  Investments 61,651                 33,996                  
  Other receivables 4,907                   18,137                  

      Total current assets 143,206               234,136                

Capital assets
  Land 1,684,593            1,684,593             
  Buildings 3,522,228            3,522,228             
  Machinery and equipment 100,102               90,028                  

      Total capital assets 5,306,923            5,296,849             

  Less accumulated depreciation (188,053)              (61,762)                 

      Net capital assets 5,118,870            5,235,087             

      Total assets 5,262,076$            5,469,223$            

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 6,867$                  18,471$                
  Accrued expenses 10,446                 11,448                  

      Total current liabilities 17,313                 29,919                  

Other non-current liabilities:
  Advances from other funds 352,716               352,716                
  Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 7,085                   11,141                  

      Total other non-current liabilities 359,801               363,857                

      Total  liabilities 377,114               393,776                

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5,118,870            5,235,087             
Deficit (233,908)              (159,640)               

      Total net assets 4,884,962            5,075,447             

      Total liabilities and net assets 5,262,076$            5,469,223$            
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Exhibit 20-B

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
TRANSIT TERMINAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Operating revenues-charges for services 203,798$              114,640$              

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 254,803               200,432                
  Supplies and materials 22,161                 28,004                  
  Contractual and other services 142,104               154,912                
  Repairs and maintenance 14,002                 12,500                  
  Depreciation 126,290               62,435                  

      Total operating expenses 559,360               458,283                

      Operating loss (355,562)              (343,643)               

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
  Interest income 5,361                   36,190                  
  Reimbursements 84,853                 341,070                
  Other (18,137)                (1,663)                   

      Total non-operating revenues 72,077                 375,597                

Income (loss) before  transfers
    and capital contributions (283,485)              31,954                  

Transfers in 93,000                 355,784                
Capital contributions -                           74,355                  

      Change in net assets (190,485)              462,093                

Total assets--beginning 5,075,447            4,613,354             

Total assets--ending 4,884,962$            5,075,447$            
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Exhibit 20-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
TRANSIT TERMINAL FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities:
   Receipt from customers and users 203,798$               114,640$               
   Payments to suppliers (190,872)                (575,981)                
   Payments to employees (254,803)                (200,432)                
   Internal activity-payments to other funds (600,000)                
   Other receipts (payments) 75,890                   701,377                 

     Net cash povided by (used for) operating 
      activities (165,987)                (560,396)                

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
   Transfer from other funds 93,000                   355,784                 
   Receipt of capital contribution -                             74,355                   

     Cash provided by non-capital financing
      activities 93,000                   430,139                 

Cash flows from capital and related financing
 activities:
   Purchases of capital assets (10,074)                  (412,386)                

     Net cash used by capital and
      related financing activities (10,074)                  (412,386)                

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, net 152,345                 168,041                 
   Receipt of interest 5,361                     36,190                   

     Net cash provided by 
       investing activities 157,706                 204,231                 

     Net increase (decrease) in cash 74,645                   (338,412)                

Cash at beginning of year 2,003                     340,415                 

Cash at end of year 76,648$                 2,003$                   

Continued
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Exhibit 20-C concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
TRANSIT TERMINAL FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Reconciliation of cash per statements of cash flows
     to the statements of net assets:
   Unrestricted cash 76,648$                 2,003$                   
   Restricted cash -                             -                             

76,648$                 2,003$                   

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
     provided (used) by operating activities:

   Operating loss (355,562)$              (343,643)$              
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
       net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
         Depreciation expense 126,291                 62,435                   
         Miscellaneous income (expense) 62,660                   339,408                 
         Loss on asset disposal -                             4,570                     
         (Increase) decrease in other receivables 13,230                   357,399                 
         (Increase)  in due to other funds -                             (600,000)                
         Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (11,604)                  (255,160)                
         Increase (decrease) in other payables -                             10,312                   
         Accrued expenses (1,002)                    (135,717)                

             Total adjustments 189,575                 (216,753)                

Net cash used by operating activities (165,987)                (560,396)                
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Exhibit 20-D
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
TRANSIT TERMINAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Operating revenues: x x x
  Rentals 143,500$   143,500$   158,937$     15,437$           
  Concessions - Other 38,594       38,594       44,861         6,267               

      Total operating revenues 182,094     182,094     203,798       21,704             

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest income 6,000         6,000         5,361           (639)                 
  Other revenue 98,858       98,858       84,853         (14,005)            

      Total non-operating revenues 104,858     104,858     90,214         (14,644)            

Transfers in 93,000       93,000       93,000         -                       

      Total revenues 379,952     379,952     387,012       7,060               

Expenses:
  Administration:
   Salaries 183,779     190,205     188,145       2,060               
   Employee benefits 65,167       66,077       66,658         (581)                 
   Supplies 22,530       24,130       22,161         1,969               
   Other services 175,153     172,653     142,104       30,549             
   Maintenance 14,710       15,610       14,002         1,608               
   Capital outlay 14,505       14,505       10,074         4,431               

      Total expenses 475,844     483,180     443,144       40,036             

Excess of revenues over  expenses
 (Budget Basis) (95,892)$    (103,228)$  (56,132)        47,096$           

GAAP basis adjustments:

  Capital outlay - amounts budgeted as
   expenses per budget basis, capitalized
   per GAAP basis 10,074         

  Depreciation - not budgeted as an
   expense per budget basis (126,290)      

      Net loss - GAAP basis (172,348)$    
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Exhibit 21-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL CIVIC CENTER FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash 20,329$         11,715$                   
  Certificate of deposits 1,002,461      500,000                    
  Investments 521,388        596,396                    
  Accounts receivable, net 1                   2,030                       
  Accrued interest 9,152            10,037                     
  Due from other funds 60,435          79,720                     

      Total current assets 1,613,766      1,199,898                 

Restricted assets:
  Cash 3,720            3,674                       
  Certificate of deposits 17,400,385    13,380,063               
  Investments 6,026,727      8,373,120                 
  Due from other funds 90,652          119,580                    
  Accrued interest 93,878          108,807                    
  Other 12                 749                          

      Total restricted assets 23,615,374    21,985,993               

Capital assets
  Land 3,583,560      3,583,560                 
  Buildings 1,876,713      1,876,713                 
  Improvements other than buildings 2,421,516      2,421,516                 
  Machinery and equipment 465,361        465,361                    
  Construction in progress 713,258        229,489                    

      Total capital assets 9,060,408      8,576,639                 
          Less accumulated depreciation (1,995,715)    (1,870,421)                

      Net capital assets 7,064,693      6,706,218                 

      Total assets 32,293,833$   29,892,109$             

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 39,845$         65,553$                   
  Accrued expenses 13,890          11,655                     

      Total current liabilities 53,735          77,208                     

Liabilities(payable from restricted assets) 31,431            21,202                      

Other non-current liabilities
  Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 11,972          11,573                     
  Deferred revenue 18,437          38,319                     

      Total non-current liabilities 30,409          49,892                     

      Total liabilities 115,575        148,302                    

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 7,064,693      6,706,218                 
Restricted for civic center expansion 23,583,943    21,964,791               
Unrestricted 1,529,622      1,072,798                 

      Total net assets 32,178,258    29,743,807               

      Total liabilities and net assets 32,293,833$   29,892,109$             
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Exhibit 21-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL CIVIC CENTER FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Operating revenues:
  Charges for services 7,812$           9,552$                     
  Rentals 468,297        438,728                    

      Total operating revenues 476,109        448,280                    

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 457,031        377,998                    
  Supplies and materials 23,546          20,573                     
  Contractual and other services 347,132        362,601                    
  Repairs and maintenance 22,824          31,528                     
  Depreciation 125,295        146,946                    

      Total operating expenses 975,828        939,646                    

      Operating loss (499,719)       (491,366)                   

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
  Interest income 1,011,791        1,242,682                 
  Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
     of investments (110,441)         395,707                    
  Other 2,890              (8,806)                      

      Total non-operating revenues 904,240          1,629,583                 

      Income before  transfers 404,521        1,138,217                 

Transfers in 2,029,930      2,080,494                 

      Changes in net assets 2,434,451      3,218,711                 

Total net assets--beginning 29,743,807    26,525,096               

Total net assets--ending 32,178,258$   29,743,807$             
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Exhibit 21-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL CIVIC CENTER FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Operating revenues:
  Charges for services 7,812$           9,552$                     
  Rentals 468,297        438,728                    

      Total operating revenues 476,109        448,280                    

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 457,031        377,998                    
  Supplies and materials 23,546          20,573                     
  Contractual and other services 347,132        362,601                    
  Repairs and maintenance 22,824          31,528                     
  Depreciation 125,295        146,946                    

      Total operating expenses 975,828        939,646                    

      Operating loss (499,719)       (491,366)                   

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
  Interest income 1,011,791        1,242,682                 
  Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
     of investments (110,441)         395,707                    
  Other 2,890              (8,806)                      

      Total non-operating revenues 904,240          1,629,583                 

      Income before  transfers 404,521        1,138,217                 

Transfers in 2,029,930      2,080,494                 

      Changes in net assets 2,434,451      3,218,711                 

Total net assets--beginning 29,743,807    26,525,096               

Total net assets--ending 32,178,258$   29,743,807$             
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Exhibit 21-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL CIVIC CENTER FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities:
   Receipt from customers and users 472,789$         466,594$                  
   Payments to suppliers (406,746)         (385,364)                   
   Payments to employees (457,031)         (380,139)                   
   Internal activity-payments to other funds 48,213            (82,488)                     
   Other receipts (payments) 5,306              441,786                    

     Net cash povided (used) by  operating 
      activities (337,469)         60,389                      

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
   Transfer from other funds 2,029,930        2,080,494                 

     Cash provided by non-capital financing
      activities 2,029,930        2,080,494                 

Cash flows from capital and related financing
 activities:
   Purchases of capital assets (483,769)         (296,305)                   

     Net cash used by capital and
      related financing activities (483,769)         (296,305)                   

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, net (2,101,382)      (3,169,667)                
   Receipt of interest 901,350          1,242,682                 

     Net cash used by 
       investing activities (1,200,032)      (1,926,985)                

     Net increase (decrease) in cash 8,660              (82,407)                     

Cash at beginning of year 15,389            97,796                      

Cash at end of year 24,049$          15,389$                    
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Exhibit  21-C Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL CIVIC CENTER FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Reconciliation of cash per statements of cash flows
     to the statements of net assets:
   Unrestricted cash 20,329$          11,715$                    
   Restricted cash 3,720              3,674                        

24,049$          15,389$                    

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
     provided (used) by operating activities:

   Operating loss (499,719)$       (491,366)$                 
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
       net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
         Depreciation expense 125,295          146,946                    
         Miscellaneous income (expense) 3,288              386,901                    
         Loss on asset disposal 11,896                      
         (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 2,018              (280)                         
         Accrued interest 15,813            43,004                      
         (Increase) decrease in other receivables 749                 (15)                           
         (Increase)  in due from other funds 48,213            (82,488)                     
         Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (15,479)           29,338                      
         Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 2,235              1,656                        
         Other current liabilities -                      (3,797)                      
         Deferred revenue (19,882)           18,594                      

             Total adjustments 162,250          551,755                    

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (337,469)$       60,389$                    
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Exhibit 21-D
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL CIVIC CENTER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Operating revenues:
  Rentals 449,360$     449,360$     468,297$       18,937$           
  Concessions - Other 12,000         12,000         7,812             (4,188)              

      Total operating revenues 461,360       461,360       476,109         14,749             

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest income 935,000       935,000       1,011,791      76,791             
  Net increase in the fair value of investments -                   -                   (110,441)        (110,441)          
  Other revenue 3,000           3,000           2,890             (110)                 

      Total non-operating revenues 938,000       938,000       904,240         (33,760)            

Transfers in:
  Hotel occupancy tax - for operations 2,023,255    2,023,255    2,029,930      6,675               

      Total transfers in 2,023,255    2,023,255    2,029,930      6,675               

      Total revenues 3,422,615    3,422,615    3,410,279      (12,336)            

Expenses:
  Civic center:
   Salaries 446,973       455,189       421,182         34,007             
   Supplies 34,920         34,920         23,546           11,374             
   Other services 354,524       354,524       347,132         7,392               
   Maintenance 74,478         74,478         22,824           51,654             
   Capital outlay 2,091,000    2,091,000    483,767         1,607,233        

3,001,895    3,010,111    1,298,451      1,711,660        
  Non-department expenses:
   Liability insurance 35,849         35,849         35,849           -                       

      Total expenses 3,037,744    3,045,960    1,334,300      1,711,660        
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 Exhibit 21-D, Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL CIVIC CENTER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Excess of revenues over  expenses
 (Budget Basis) 384,871$     376,655$     2,075,979      1,699,324$      

GAAP basis adjustments:

  Capital outlay - amounts budgeted as
   expenses per budget basis, capitalized
   per GAAP basis 483,767         

  Depreciation - not budgeted as an
   expense per budget basis (125,295)        

      Net income - GAAP basis 2,434,451$    
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Exhibit 22-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

ASSETS 2002 2001
Current assets:
  Cash 2,326$               9,450$                         
  Certificates of deposi 200,000            559,110                     
  Investments 347,740            362,353                     
  Receivables, net
    Accounts receivables 232,346            183,529                     
    Accrued interest 5,491                5,712                          
  Due from other governments 174,643            633,793                     

      Total current assets 962,546            1,753,947                 

Restricted assets
  Cash 920                   1,556                          
  Certificates of deposi 1,035,876         987,135                     
  Investments 264,349            233,929                     
  Accrued interest 3,660                4,493                          
  Other 56,022              -                                 

      Total restricted assets 1,360,827         1,227,113                 

Capital assets
  Land 3,251,781         3,251,781                 
  Buildings 30,890,423       30,890,423               
  Improvements other than building 27,265,557       23,509,111               
  Machinery and equipment 294,025            265,470                     
  Construction in progress 233,874            260,743                     

      Total capital assets 61,935,660       58,177,528               
        Less accumulated depreciation (17,084,147)     (15,133,648)              

      Net capital assets 44,851,513       43,043,880               

      Total assets 47,174,886$      46,024,940$              

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 437,463$           789,781$                    
  Accrued expenses 213,629            176,177                     
  Other 426                   426                             

      Total current liabilities 651,518            966,384                     

Other non-current liabilities
  Accumulated unpaid compensated absence 48,281              56,296                        
  Deferred revenue 36,450              33,844                        
  Advance from other funds 3,456,820         1,749,972                 

      Total other non-current liabilities 3,541,551         1,840,112                 

      Total liabilities 4,193,069         2,806,496                 

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related deb 44,851,513       43,043,880               
Restricted for improvement 1,360,827         1,227,113                 
Deficit (3,230,523)         (1,052,549)                  

      Total net assets 42,981,817       43,218,444               

      Total liabilities and net assets 47,174,886$      46,024,940$              
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Exhibit 22-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Operating revenues:
  Charges for services 494,294$           551,755$                    
   Rentals 1,955,834         2,015,766                 

      Total operating revenues 2,450,128         2,567,521                 

Operating expenses
  Salaries, wages and employee benefit 786,138            706,113                     
  Supplies and materials 33,049              31,895                        
  Contractual and other services 850,383            726,070                     
  Repairs and maintenance 246,197            270,640                     
  Depreciation and amortization 1,950,499         1,913,765                 

      Total operating expenses 3,866,266         3,648,483                 

       Operating loss (1,416,138)       (1,080,962)                

Non-operating revenues
  Intergovernmental 3,076,292         -                                 
  Interest income 66,001              109,696                     
  Net increase(decrease) in the fair value of investment (9,381)               20,940                        
  Other 825,257            841,435                     

      Total non-operating revenues 3,958,169         972,071                     

      Income (loss) before contributions and transfer 2,542,031         (108,891)                    

Capital contributions -                        2,228,654                 
Transfers out (2,778,658)       (2,821,783)                

      Change in net assets (236,627)           (702,020)                    

Total net assets--beginning 43,218,444       43,920,464               

Total net assets--ending 42,981,817$      43,218,444$              
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Exhibit 22-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities:
   Receipt from customers and users 2,403,917$        2,578,081$                
   Payments to suppliers (1,481,947)         (408,898)                    
   Payments to employees (748,686)            (612,221)                    
   Other receipts (payments) 1,221,424          248,492                     

     Net cash povided by  operating 
      activities 1,394,708          1,805,454                  

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
   Transfer to other funds (2,778,658)         (2,821,783)                 
   Advances from other funds 1,706,848          1,749,972
   Receipt of capital contribution 3,076,292          2,228,654                  

     Cash provided by non-capital financing
      activities 2,004,482          1,156,843                  

Cash flows from capital and related financing
 activities:
   Purchases of capital assets (3,758,132)         (2,097,177)                 

     Net cash used by capital and
      related financing activities (3,758,132)         (2,097,177)                 

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, net 56,620               (1,002,823)                 
   Receipt of interest 294,562             109,696                     

     Net cash provided (used) by 
       investing activities 351,182             (893,127)                    

     Net decrease in cash (7,760)                (28,007)                      

Cash at beginning of year 11,006               39,013                       

Cash at end of year 3,246$               11,006$                     
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Exhibit 22-C Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Reconciliation of cash per statements of cash flows
     to the statements of net assets:
   Unrestricted cash 920$                  9,450$                       
   Restricted cash 2,326                 1,556                         

3,246$               11,006$                     

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
     provided (used) by operating activities:

   Operating loss (1,416,138)$       (1,080,962)$               
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
       net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
         Depreciation expense 1,950,499          1,913,765                  
         Miscellaneous income (expense) 817,242             862,374                     
         Loss on asset disposal -                         30,116                       
         (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (48,817)              (2,590)                        
         (Increase) decrease in governmental receivables 459,150             (633,793)                    
         (Increase)  in accrued interest 1,054                 (10,205)                      
         (Increase) decrease in other assets (56,022)              -                                 
         Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (352,318)            614,383                     
         Increase (decrease) in other payable -                         5,324                         
         Increase (decrease) in accured expenses 37,452               93,892                       
         Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues 2,606                 13,150                       

             Total adjustments 2,810,846          2,886,416                  

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,394,708$        1,805,454$                
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Exhibit 22-D
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Operating revenues:
  Charges for services 501,500$       501,500$       494,294$         (7,206)$          
  Rentals 1,880,571      1,880,571      1,955,834        75,263           

      Total operating revenues 2,382,071      2,382,071      2,450,128        68,057           

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest 40,000           40,000           66,001             26,001           
  Net decrease in the fair value of investments -                     -                     (9,381)              (9,381)            
  Other 6,635,581      6,635,581      3,901,549        (2,734,032)     

      Total non-operating revenues 6,675,581      6,675,581      3,958,169        (2,717,412)     

      Total revenues 9,057,652      9,057,652      6,408,297        (2,649,355)     

Expenses:
   Airport:
    Salaries 567,020         588,601         592,113           3,512             
    Employee benefits 193,938         196,992         194,025           (2,967)            
    Supplies 31,150           36,650           33,049             (3,601)            
    Other services 725,922         715,422         850,383           134,961         
    Maintenance 297,100         297,100         246,197           (50,903)          
    Capital outlay 7,039,922      7,044,922      3,758,132        (3,286,790)     

      Total expenses 8,855,052      8,879,687      5,673,899        (3,205,788)     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses
 (Budget Basis)-before transfers 202,600$       177,965$       734,398           (5,855,143)$   

Transfers out (2,781,659)     (2,781,659)     (2,778,658)       3,001             

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses
 (Budget Basis) (2,579,059)$   (2,603,694)$   (2,044,260)       (5,852,142)$   

GAAP basis adjustments:
  Capital outlay - amounts budgeted as
   expenses per budget basis, capitalized
   per GAAP basis 3,758,132        

  Depreciation - not budgeted as an
   expense per budget basis (1,950,499)       

      Net loss - GAAP basis (236,627)$        
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Exhibit 23-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash 175,960$         184,224$         
  Certificate of deposits -                     128,831           
  Investments 1,429,685       258,053           
  Receivables, net:
    Accrued interest -                     2,230               

      Total current assets 1,605,645       573,338           

Restricted assets:
  Cash 715                 4,284               
  Certificates of deposit 3,762,979       2,417,569        
  Certificates of deposit-reserved for distribution 5,488,240       5,746,053        
  Investments 4,490,082       4,635,108        
  Accrued interest 69,192            67,761             

      Total restricted assets 13,811,208     12,870,775      

Capital assets 
  Land 573,798          573,798           
  Toll bridge, equipment, and improvements 3,690,767       3,685,711        
  Buildings and improvements 6,374,693       6,305,483        

      Total capital assets 10,639,258     10,564,992      

       Less accumulated depreciation (4,451,261)     (4,173,818)      

      Net capital assets 6,187,997       6,391,174        

Other assets, net 706,777          625,333           

      Total assets 22,311,627$     20,460,620$    

Continued
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   Exhibit 23-A, Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 69,959$           15,454$           
  Accrued expenses 1,650              33,230             
  Due to other governmental agencies 737,259          735,136           

      Total current liabilities 808,868          783,820           

Liabilities (payable from restricted assets)
  Accounts payable 40,964            -                      
  Due to other funds 64,511            115,190           
  Accrued expenses 8,661              653                  
  Current portion of revenue bonds 180,000          170,243           

      Total liabilities (payable from
       restricted assets) 294,136          286,086           

Noncurrent liabilities:
  Revenue bonds, net of current portion
  and discount 2,120,000       -                      
  Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 61,653            60,738             
  Deferred revenue 18,686              20,336             

      Total  non-current liabilities 2,200,339       81,074             

      Total liabilities 3,303,343       1,150,980        

NET ASSETS
  Invested in capital assets-net of related debt 6,187,997 6,220,931
  Restricted per revenue bond ordinances 817,176          1,035,820        
  Restricted for improvements 5,252,014       5,680,486        
  Restricted for distribution 5,423,729       5,630,863        
  Unrestricted 1,327,368       741,540           

      Total net assets 19,008,284     19,309,640      

      Total liabilities and net assets 22,311,627$     20,460,620$    
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Exhibit 23-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Operating revenues:
  Charges for services 9,871,097$      9,837,787$      
  Rentals 700,424          665,284           
  Other 110,422          72,515             

      Total operating revenues 10,681,943     10,575,586      

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 1,038,630       932,911           
  Supplies and materials 67,248            53,555             
  Contractual and other services 405,560          369,314           
  Repairs and maintenance 125,350          99,191             
  Depreciation and amortization 301,256          336,055           

      Total operating expenses 1,938,044       1,791,026        

       Operating income 8,743,899       8,784,560        

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
  Interest income 381,501          537,661           
  Net increase (decrease)  in fair value of investment (66,481)          245,777           
  Interest expense (51,203)          (126,250)         
  Other (3,678,208)     (3,120,561)      

      Net non-operating revenues (expenses) (3,414,391)     (2,463,373)      

Income before  transfers 5,329,508       6,321,187        

Transfers out (5,630,864)     (5,060,308)      

      Change in net assets (301,356)        1,260,879        

Total net assets-beginning 19,309,640     18,048,761      

Total net assets-ending 19,008,284$     19,309,640$    
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Exhibit 23-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities:
   Receipt from customers and users 10,569,871$     10,582,890$    
   Payments to suppliers (1,161,629)       (561,952)         
   Payments to employees (1,037,715)       (932,911)         
   Other receipts 110,422            36,930             

     Net cash povided by  operating 
      activities 8,480,949         9,124,957        

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
   Distribution of income to City of Hidalgo (3,048,725)       (3,158,408)      
   Operating transfers to City of McAllen (5,681,543)       (5,183,461)      

     Cash used in  non-capital financing
      activities (8,730,268)       (8,341,869)      

Cash flows from capital and related financing
 activities:
   Proceeds from capital debt 2,300,000         -                      
   Purchases of capital assets (74,266)            (153,454)         
   Principal paid on capital debt (175,000)          (165,000)         
   Interest paid on capital debt (43,195)            (12,162)           
   Bond issuance cost (100,500)          -                      

     Net cash provided (used) by capital and
      related financing activities 1,907,039         (330,616)         

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, net (1,985,372)       (1,594,715)      
   Receipt of interest 315,819            941,513           

     Net cash used by 
       investing activities (1,669,553)       (653,202)         

     Net decrease in cash (11,833)            (200,730)         

Cash at beginning of year 188,508            389,238           

Cash at end of year 176,675$          188,508$         
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Exhibit 23-C Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Reconciliation of cash per statements of cash flows
     to the statements of net assets:
   Unrestricted cash 175,960$          184,224$         
   Restricted cash 715                   4,284               

176,675$          188,508$         

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
     provided (used) by operating activities:

   Operating income 8,116,539$       8,784,560$      
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
       net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
         Depreciation expense 301,256            336,055           
         Loss on disposition of capital assets -                       36,930             
         Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 54,505              (51,812)           
         Increase (decrease) in other payables 9,384                1,761               
         Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
           payable 915                   10,159             
         (Increase) in deferred revenues (1,650)              7,304               

             Total adjustments 364,410            340,397           

Net cash provided by operating activities 8,480,949$       9,124,957$      
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Exhibit 23-D
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

 McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Operating revenues:
  Charges for services 9,600,000$    9,600,000$    9,871,097$        271,097$       
  Rentals 647,940         647,940         700,424             52,484           
  Other 84,500           84,500           110,422             25,922           

      Total operating revenues 10,332,440    10,332,440    10,681,943        349,503         

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
  Interest income 449,000         449,000         381,501             (67,499)          
  Net increase in fair value of investments -                     -                     (66,481)              (66,481)          

 
      Total non-operating revenues 449,000         449,000         315,020             (133,980)        

      Total revenues 10,781,440    10,781,440    10,996,963        215,523         

Expenses:
 Administration
   Salaries 171,456         177,454         184,639             (7,185)            
   Supplies 23,000           23,000           24,660               (1,660)            
   Other services 267,500         267,500         201,966             65,534           
   Maintenance 3,200             3,200             2,105                 1,095             
   Capital outlay 116,000         116,000         74,265               41,735           

581,156         587,154         487,635             99,519           
  Operations:
   Salaries 775,456         797,245         853,990             (56,745)          
   Supplies 56,000           56,000           41,688               14,312           
   Other services 217,000         217,000         165,740             51,260           
   Maintenance 120,000         120,000         124,146             (4,146)            

1,168,456      1,190,245      1,185,564          4,681             
  Non-department:
   Liability insurance 37,854           37,854           37,854               -                     
   Interest and fiscal charges 3,938             3,938             51,203               (47,265)          
   Bond Principal requirement 175,000         175,000         175,000             -                     
   Other 4,120,000      4,120,000      3,678,208          441,792         

4,336,792      4,336,792      3,942,265          394,527         

      Total expenses 6,086,404      6,114,191      5,615,464          498,727         
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Exhibit 23-D, Conclud
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

 McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Excess of revenues over expenses
 (Budget Basis)-before transfers 4,695,036$    4,667,249$    5,381,499          714,250$       

Transfers out (5,700,000)     (5,700,000)     (5,630,864)         69,136           

Excess of revenues over expenses
 (Budget Basis) (1,004,964)$   (1,032,751)$   (249,365)            783,386$       

GAAP basis adjustments:
  Capital outlay - amounts budgeted as
   expenses per budget basis, capitalized
   per GAAP basis 74,265               

Principal payment on revenue bonds-
   budgeted as expenses per budget
   basis, treated as a reduction of
   bonds payable per GAAP Basis 175,000             

  Depreciation and amortization - not budgeted as an
   expense per budget basis (301,256)            

      Net loss- GAAP basis (301,356)$          
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                          CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Distribution Current Future
to City of Debt Debt
McAllen Service Service

Cash, certificates of deposit, and
  investments at September 30, 2001 5,746,053$   27,099$       487,500$       

Cash receipts:
  Transfers in 5,444,997     279,776      -                     
  Net bond proceeds -                   -                  -                     
   Net increase in fair value of investments -                   -                  -                     
   Interest received 117,042       33,378        -                     

     Total cash receipts 5,562,039     313,154      -                     

     Total cash available 11,308,092   340,253      487,500        

Cash disbursements:
  Interest and fiscal charges -                   43,199        -                     
  Principal bond payment -                   175,000      -                     
  Operating expenses -                   -                  -                     
  Interfund transfers 5,819,852     22,559        262,500        

     Total cash disbursements 5,819,852     240,758      262,500        

Cash and certificates of deposit and 
  investments at September 30, 2002 5,488,240$   99,495$       225,000$       

Cash, certificates of deposit, and
  investments at September 30, 2002
  is comprised of the following:
   Cash -$                 26$              -$                    
   Certificates of deposit 4,177,820     -                    225,000          
   Investments 1,310,420     99,469          -                      
   Accrued interest -                   -                  -                     

5,488,240$   99,495$       225,000$       
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Exhibit 23-E
-

Bridge
Capital Revenue Anzaldua's

Contingency Improvement Bonds Bridge Total

521,221$        408,416$        -$                   5,680,486$    12,870,775     

-                      366,667          -                    6,091,440       
-                      -                      2,199,500      -                    2,199,500       
-                      -                      (66,481)         (66,481)            

12,961            21,115            19,154           306,333        509,983           

12,961            387,782          2,218,654      239,852        8,734,442       

534,182          796,198          2,218,654      5,920,338     21,605,217     

-                      -                      -                     -                    43,199             
-                      -                      -                     -                    175,000           
-                      -                      14,500           627,360        641,860           

32,840            796,198          -                     -                    6,933,949       

32,840            796,198          14,500           627,360        7,794,008       

501,342$        -$                    2,204,154$    5,292,978$    13,811,209$    

-$                    -$                    501$              188$              715$                 
501,342          -                      2,116,636       920,002          7,940,800         

-                      -                      87,017            4,303,596       5,800,502         
-                      -                      -                     69,192          69,192             

501,342$        -$                    2,204,154$    5,292,978$    13,811,209$    
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Exhibit 24-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FLEET MATERIALS MANAGEMENT FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash 273,141$      194,957$       
  Inventories 355,694       336,566        

      Total current assets 628,835       531,523        

Capital assets
  Buildings 293,433 293,433
  Improvements other than buildings 17,740 17,740
  Machinery and equipment 310,500 269,827

      Total capital assets 621,673       581,000        
        Less accumulated depreciation (422,388)      (388,888)       

      Net capital assets 199,285       192,112        

      Total assets 828,120$      723,635$       

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 198,220$      161,410$       
  Accrued expenses 21,981         18,387           

      Total current liabilities 220,201       179,797        

Other non-current liabilities:
  Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 33,519         32,046           
  Deferred revenues 1,107           1,107             

      Total other non-current liabilities 34,626         33,153           

      Total  liabilities 254,827       212,950        

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of debt 199,285       192,112        
Unresticted 374,008       318,573        

      Total net assets 573,293       510,685        

      Total liabilities and net assets 828,120$      723,635$       
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Exhibit 24-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FLEET MATERIALS MANAGEMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND ASSETS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Operating revenues - charges for services 1,981,359$   1,690,413$    

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 550,874       546,276        
  Supplies and materials 8,563           8,868             
  Contractual and other services 1,332,070    1,068,805     
  Repairs and maintenance 21,044         19,336           
  Depreciation 33,500         34,053           

      Total operating expenses 1,946,051    1,677,338     

      Operating income 35,308         13,075           

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest income 5,472           3,036             
  Other 21,828         10,251           

      Total non-operating revenues 27,300         13,287           

      Changes in net assets 62,608         26,362           

Total net assets--beginning 510,685       484,323        

Total net assets--ending 573,293$      510,685$       
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Exhibit 24-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FLEET MATERIALS MANAGEMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities:
   Receipt from customers and users 1,981,359$    1,690,413$     
   Payments to suppliers (1,338,929)     (1,128,047)      
   Payments to employees (550,874)        (544,817)         
   Other receipts (payments) 21,828           26,184            

     Net cash povided by  operating 
      activities 113,384         43,733            

Cash flows from capital and related financing
 activities:
   Purchases of capital assets (40,672)          (35,982)           

     Cash used by capital and
      related financing activities (40,672)          (35,982)           

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, net -                    -                     
   Receipt of interest 5,472             3,036              

     Net cash provided by 
       investing activities 5,472             3,036              

     Net increase in cash 78,184           10,787            

Cash at beginning of year 194,957         184,170          

Cash at end of year 273,141$       194,957$        
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Exhibit 24-C Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FLEET MATERIALS MANAGEMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Reconciliation of cash per statements of cash flows
     to the statements of net assets:
   Unrestricted cash 273,141$       194,957$        
   Restricted cash -                    -                     

273,141$       194,957$        

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
     provided (used) by operating activities:

   Operating income 35,308$         13,075$          
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
       net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
         Depreciation expense 33,500           34,053            
         Miscellaneous non-operating income 21,828           10,251            
         Loss on asset disposition -                    15,933            
         (Increase) decrease in inventories (19,128)          (21,002)           
         Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 36,810           5,469              
         Increase (decrease) in other payable 1,472             (15,505)           
         Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 3,594             1,459              

             Total adjustments 78,076           30,658            

Net cash provided by operating activities 113,384$       43,733$          
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Exhibit 24-D
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FLEET MATERIALS MANAGEMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
  Operating revenues:
   Garage billings department 1,483,709$       1,483,709$       1,841,906$      358,197$          
   Materials management department 119,000            119,000            139,452           20,452              

      Total operating revenues 1,602,709         1,602,709         1,981,358        378,649            

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest income 2,500                2,500                5,472               2,972                
  Other revenue -                        -                         21,829             21,829              

      Total non-operating revenues 2,500                2,500                27,301             24,801              

      Total revenues 1,605,209         1,605,209         2,008,659        403,450            

Expenses:
  Materials management:
   Salaries 106,816            110,312            113,002           (2,690)               
   Supplies 1,850                1,850                1,875               (25)                    
   Other services -                        1,000                (580)                 1,580                
   Maintenance 4,350                4,350                1,866               2,484                
   Capital outlay 24,500              23,500              18,702             4,798                

137,516            141,012            134,865           6,147                

  Garage:
   Salaries 445,325            456,873            428,482           28,391              
   Supplies 7,000                6,600                6,688               (88)                    
   Other services 2,650                1,075                (13,853)            14,928              
   Maintenance 20,600              14,600              19,178             (4,578)               
   Purchases 1,000,000         1,000,000         1,330,258        (330,258)          
   Capital outlay 26,800              37,075              38,215             (1,140)               

1,502,375         1,516,223         1,808,968        (292,745)          

  Non-department expenses:
   Liability insurance 9,390                9,390                9,390               -                        

      Total expenses 1,649,281         1,666,625         1,953,223        (286,598)          

Continued
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Exhibit 24-D, Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FLEET MATERIALS MANAGEMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues over (under) expenses
 (Budget Basis) (44,072)$          (61,416)$           55,436             116,852$          

GAAP basis adjustments:

  Capital outlay - amounts budgeted as
   expenses per budget basis, capitalized
   per GAAP basis 40,672             

  Depreciation - not budgeted as an
   expense per budget basis (33,500)            

      Net income - GAAP basis 62,608$           
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Exhibit 25-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash 53,628$            57,064$            
  Certificates of deposit 1,611,027        410,000           
  Investments 128,891           157,160           
  Receivables, net:
     Accounts 80,774             139,316           
     Accrued interest -                      726                 
      Other 233,937           305,034           

      Total assets 2,108,257$       1,069,300$       

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 120,877$          29,748$            
  Accrued expenses 1,005,198          1,004,689         

      Total current liabilities 1,126,075        1,034,437        

Other non-current liabilities:
  Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 1,841               1,733              

      Total non-current liabilities 1,841               1,733              

      Total  liabilities 1,127,916        1,036,170        

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 980,341           33,130             

      Total net assets 980,341           33,130             

      Total liabilities and net assets 2,108,257$       1,069,300$       
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Exhibit 25-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Operating revenues - contributions 5,662,723$       4,583,000$       

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 67,765             32,022             
  Contractual and other services 920,844           623,904           
  Self insurance claims 4,235,420        4,778,904        
  Other 1,509               -                      

      Total operating expenses 5,225,538        5,434,830        

      Operating income (loss) 437,185           (851,830)         

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest income 42,933               84,525              
  Net increase in fair value of investments -                        8,482               
  Other 467,093             130,129            

      Total non-operating revenues 510,026           223,136           

Net income (loss) before  transfers out 947,211           (628,694)         

Transfers out -                      (110,755)         

      Changes in net assets 947,211           (739,449)         

Total net assets--beginning 33,130             772,579           

Total net assets--ending 980,341$          33,130$            
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Exhibit 25-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities:
   Receipt from customers and users 5,721,991$        4,445,361$       
   Payments to suppliers (829,098)           (571,629)          
   Payments to employees (67,765)             (30,289)            
   Claims paid (4,235,420)         (5,230,084)       
   Other receipts (payments) 536,681             138,611            

     Net cash povided (used) by operating 
      activities 1,126,389          (1,248,030)       

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
   Transfer to other funds -                        (110,755)          

     Cash used by non-capital financing
      activities -                        (110,755)          

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, net (1,172,758)         1,037,621         
   Receipt of interest 42,933               84,525              

     Net cash provided (used) by 
       investing activities (1,129,825)         1,122,146         

     Net decrease in cash (3,436)               (236,639)          

Cash at beginning of year 57,064               293,703            

Cash at end of year 53,628$             57,064$            
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Exhibit 25-C Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Reconciliation of cash per statements of cash flows
     to the statements of net assets:
   Unrestricted cash 53,628$             57,064$            
   Restricted cash -                        -                       

53,628$             57,064$            

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
     provided (used) by operating activities:

   Operating  income (loss) 437,185$           (851,830)$        
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
       net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
         Miscellaneous non-operating income (expense) 467,093             138,611            
         (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 58,542               (115,638)          
         (Increase) in accrued interest receivable 726                   3,746               
         (Increase) decrease in other receivable 71,097               (25,747)            
         Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 91,129               (451,180)          
         Increase (decrease) in other payable 108                   1,733               
         Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 509                   52,275              

             Total adjustments 689,204             (396,200)          

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,126,389$        (1,248,030)$      
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Exhibit 25-D
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
  Operating revenues-contributions 6,186,201$       6,186,201$      5,662,723$       (523,478)$        

      Total operating revenues 6,186,201         6,186,201        5,662,723         (523,478)          

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest income 2,800                2,800               42,933              40,133             
  Other revenues 70,638              70,638             467,092            396,454           

      Total non-operating revenues 73,438              73,438             510,025            436,587           

      Total revenues 6,259,639         6,259,639        6,172,748         (86,891)            

Expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 64,108              66,554             67,765              (1,211)              
  Supplies 700                   700                  448                   252                  
  Contractual and other services 747,617            747,617           921,904            (174,287)          
  Self insurance claims 5,615,477         5,615,477        4,235,420         1,380,057        
  Capital outlay 1,800                1,800               -                       1,800               

      Total expenses 6,429,702         6,432,148        5,225,537         1,206,611        

Revenues over (under) expenses
 (Budget Basis) (170,063)$        (172,509)$        947,211            1,119,720$      

GAAP basis adjustments -                       

  Net income-GAAP basis 947,211$          
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Exhibit 26-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL INSURANCE FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash 16,016$            90,223$             
  Certificates of deposit 2,331,339         2,219,942          
  Investments 2,630,953         2,144,240          
  Receivables, net:
     Accounts 87,907              51,222               
     Accrued interest 25,963              31,269               

      Total  assets 5,092,178$       4,536,896$        

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 65,725$            5,536$               
  Accrued expenses 557,011            815,810             

      Total current liabilities 622,736            821,346             

Other non-current liabilities:
  Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 22,083              20,025               

      Total non-current liabilities 22,083              20,025               

      Total  liabilities 644,819            841,371             

NET ASSETS
Net assets 4,447,359         3,695,525          

      Total liabilities and net assets 5,092,178$       4,536,896$        
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Exhibit 26-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL INSURANCE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Operating revenues - contributions 3,069,804$       2,792,756$        

Operating expenses:
  Salaries, wages, and employee benefits 112,600            89,191               
  Supplies and materials 1,170               732                    
  Contractual and other services 867,554            873,695             
  Repairs and maintenace 798                  524                    
  Self insurance claims 1,754,104         2,707,599          

      Total operating expenses 2,736,226         3,671,741          

      Operating (loss) income 333,578            (878,985)            

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest income 196,327            254,674             
  Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments (19,224)            77,241               
  Other 241,153            343,701             

      Total non-operating revenues 418,256            675,616             

      Changes in net assets 751,834            (203,369)            

Total net assets--beginning 3,695,525         3,898,894          

Total net assets--ending 4,447,359$       3,695,525$        

- 244 -



Exhibit 26-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL INSURANCE  FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities:
   Receipt from customers and users 3,038,426$       2,775,324$        
   Payments to suppliers (1,066,074)       (972,616)            
   Payments to employees (112,600)          (69,166)              
   Internal activity-payments to other funds -                       (10,000)              
   Claims paid (1,754,104)       (2,356,721)         
   Other receipts (payments) 221,929            420,942             

     Net cash povided (used) by operating 
      activities 327,577            (212,237)            

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, net (598,110)          43,424               
   Receipt of interest 196,326            254,674             

     Net cash provided (used) by
       investing activities (401,784)          298,098             

     Net increase (decrease) in cash (74,207)            85,861               

Cash at beginning of year 90,223              4,362                 

Cash at end of year 16,016$            90,223$             
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Exhibit 26-C Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL INSURANCE  FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Reconciliation of cash per statements of cash flows
     to the statements of net assets:
   Unrestricted cash 16,016$            90,223$             
   Restricted cash -                       -                        

16,016$            90,223$             

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
     provided (used) by operating activities:

   Operating income (loss) 333,578$          (878,985)$          
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
       net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
         Miscellaneous non-operating income 221,930            420,942             
         (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (36,685)            (7,405)                
         (Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 5,306               (10,027)              
         Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 60,189              (97,665)              
         Increase (decrease) in due to other funds -                       (10,000)              
         Increase (decrease) in other payables 2,058               20,025               
         Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses (258,799)          350,878             

             Total adjustments (6,001)              666,748             

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 327,577$          (212,237)$          
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Exhibit 26-D
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL INSURANCE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
  Operating revenues-contributions 3,080,962$      3,080,962$      3,069,804$        (11,158)$          

      Total operating revenues 3,080,962        3,080,962        3,069,804          (11,158)            

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest income 225,000           225,000           196,327             (28,673)            
  Net increase (decrease)in fair value of investm -                       -                       (19,224)              (19,224)            
  Other revenue 100,000           100,000           241,153             141,153           

      Total non-operating revenues 325,000           325,000           418,256             93,256             

      Total revenues 3,405,962        3,405,962        3,488,060          82,098             

Expenses:
  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 106,036           109,653           112,600             (2,947)              
  Supplies and materials 1,000               1,000               1,170                 (170)                 
  Contractual and other services 1,043,279        1,043,279        867,815             175,464           
  Repairs and maintenance 1,632               1,632               798                    834                  
  Self insurance expense 750,000           750,000           1,753,843          (1,003,843)       
  Capital outlay 3,000               3,000               -                         3,000               

      Total expenses 1,904,947        1,908,564        2,736,226          (827,662)          

Revenues over (under) expenses
 (Budget Basis) 1,501,015$      1,497,398$      751,834             (745,564)$        

GAAP basis adjustments -                         

  Net income-GAAP basis 751,834$           
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Exhibit 27-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL DEPRECIATION FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash 2,014$               5,732$               
  Certificates of deposit 3,502,608          2,977,958          
  Investments 864,947             822,636             
  Receivables, net:
     Accrued interest 10,982               12,531               

      Total current assets 4,380,551          3,818,857          

Capital assets
   Machinery and equipment 5,368,217          4,295,449          
      Less accumulated depreciation (1,970,715)         (1,025,791)         

      Net capital assets 3,397,502          3,269,658          

      Total assets 7,778,053$        7,088,515$        

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 71,811$             57,355$             

      Total current liabilities 71,811               57,355               

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,397,502          3,269,658          
Unrestricted 4,308,740          3,761,502          

      Total net assets 7,706,242 7,031,160

      Total liabilities and fund equity 7,778,053$        7,088,515$        
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Exhibit 27-B
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL DEPRECIATION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Operating revenues - charges for services 1,505,423$        2,143,955$        

Operating expenses: 
  Other 12,724               15,368               
  Depreciation 964,788             653,927             

      Total operating expenses 977,512           669,295           

      Operating income 527,911             1,474,660          

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
  Interest income 158,428             234,305             
  Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments (11,257)              25,128               
  Other -                        (21,179)              

      Total non-operating revenues 147,171             238,254             

      Changes in net assets 675,082             1,712,914          

Total net assets--beginning 7,031,160          5,318,246          

Total net assets--ending 7,706,242$        7,031,160$        
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Exhibit 27-C
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL DEPRECIATION FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities:
   Receipt from customers and users 1,506,972$        2,136,223$        
   Payments to suppliers 1,732                 (15,368)              
   Other receipts -                        78,534               

     Net cash povided by  operating 
      activities 1,508,704          2,199,389          

Cash flows from capital and related financing
 activities:
   Purchases of capital assets (1,092,632)         (2,234,898)         

     Net cash used by capital and
      related financing activities (1,092,632)         (2,234,898)         

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Investment activity, net (578,218)            (303,798)            
   Receipt of interest 158,428             234,305             

     Net cash used by 
       investing activities (419,790)            (69,493)              

     Net decrease in cash (3,718)                (105,002)            

Cash at beginning of year 5,732                 110,734             

Cash at end of year 2,014$               5,732$               
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Exhibit 27-C Concluded
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL DEPRECIATION FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Reconciliation of cash per statements of cash flows
     to the statements of net assets:
   Unrestricted cash 2,014$               5,732$               
   Restricted cash -                        -                        

2,014$               5,732$               

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
     provided (used) by operating activities:

   Operating income 527,911$           1,474,660$        
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
       net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
         Depreciation expense 964,788             653,927             
         Miscellaneous non-operating income -                        4,799                 
         (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable -                        21,179               
         (Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 1,549                 (12,531)              
         Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 14,456               57,355               

             Total adjustments 980,793             724,729             

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,508,704$        2,199,389$        
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Exhibit 27-D
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL DEPRECIATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
  Operating revenues-charges for services 1,505,423$         1,505,423$        1,505,423$        -$                     

      Total operating revenues 1,505,423           1,505,423          1,505,423          -                       

Non-operating revenues:
  Interest income -                          -                        158,428             158,428           
  Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments -                          -                        (11,257)             (11,257)            

      Total non-operating revenues -                          -                        147,171             147,171           

      Total revenues 1,505,423           1,505,423          1,652,594          147,171           

Expenses:
  Contractual and other services -                          -                         12,724               12,724             
  Capital outlay 1,272,300           1,272,300          1,092,632          (179,668)          

      Total  expenses 1,272,300           1,272,300          1,105,356          (166,944)          

Revenues over (under) expenses
 (Budget Basis) 233,123              233,123             547,238             314,115           

GAAP basis adjustment:
  Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses per
    budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis 1,092,632          

  Depreciation-not budgeted as an expenses 
     per budget basis (964,788)           

  Net income-GAAP basis 675,082$           
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN    
THE OPERATION OF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
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Exhibit 28-A
CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
 COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE (1)

September 30, 2002
With Comparative Amounts for September 30, 2001

2002 2001

Governmental funds capital assets

  Land 17,779,073$     17,365,859$      
  Buildings and improvement 41,870,672      30,918,055        
  Furniture and equipmen 24,927,469      33,254,497        
  Infrastructure 99,475,599      95,592,569        
  Construction in progress 8,100,499        4,907,099          

     Total general fixed assets 192,153,312$   182,038,079$    

Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source

General fund revenues 25,965,745$     24,245,568$      
Capital projects 67,290,038      62,993,118        
Community developmen 15,341,226      15,212,987        
Special revenue 52,240,017      49,081,565        
Contributions from developer 19,390,483      18,596,327        
Donations and transfers 11,925,803      11,908,514        

     Total investment in general fixed asset 192,153,312$   182,038,079$    

  (1) This schedule presents only the captial asset balances related to governmental funds.
       Accordingly, the capital assets reported in the internal service funds are excluded from the
       above amounts.  Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as
       governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

SINGLE AUDIT 
SECTION 

 
 
This section contains information regarding grant activity which was audited under the 
guidelines of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the United States of Management and 
Budget’s Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local Governments and Non-Profit 
Organizations. 
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS OF SEC 

RULE 15 (c) 2-12 
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On Debt Service Requirements 
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
     ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY

ALL SERIES
             
             
             
       ESTIMATED    PRINCIPAL  
 YEAR  PRINCIPAL  INTEREST FEES  TOTAL  BALANCE  
            
          10,565,000$         
            
 2003  1,900,000              554,084               6,000                  2,460,084            8,665,000             
 2004  1,960,000              445,042               6,000                  2,411,042            6,705,000             
 2005  2,030,000              331,632               6,000                  2,367,632            4,675,000             
 2006  2,100,000              215,588               6,000                  2,321,588            2,575,000             
 2007  1,250,000              102,750               3,000                  1,355,750            1,325,000             
 2008  1,325,000              34,213                 3,000                  1,362,213            -                             
            
   10,565,000$         1,683,309$          30,000$              12,278,309$          
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
ALL SERIES

DEBT SERVICE CURRENT REQUIREMENTS
            
            
            
  OUTSTANDING     ESTIMATED   
 ISSUE 10/1/2002 PRINCIPAL INTEREST  FEES  TOTAL
         
          
          
 1991 2,575,000$               650,000$           148,250$            1,500$                799,750$           
 1991 1,125,000                 275,000             61,062                1,500                  337,562             
 1993 2,360,000                 335,000             109,625              1,500                  446,125             
 1993 4,505,000                 640,000             235,147              1,500                  876,647             
          
  10,565,000$             1,900,000$       554,084$           6,000$                2,460,084$       
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CITY OF McALLEN
1991 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND

SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS

EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE:  6.147%

ESTIMATED
MATURITY PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL

02-01-03 30,531               1,500                 32,031$             
08-01-03 275,000              30,531               305,531             
02-01-04 22,625               1,500                 24,125               
08-01-04 275,000              22,625               297,625             
02-01-05 14,719               1,500                 16,219               
08-01-05 275,000              14,719               289,719             
02-01-06 7,500                 1,500                 9,000                 
08-01-06 300,000              7,500                 307,500             

1,125,000$         150,750$           6,000$               1,281,750$       
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CITY OF McALLEN
1991 GENERAL OBLIGATION  -  AIRPORT

SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS

EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE:  6.356%

ESTIMATED
MATURITY PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL

02-01-03 74,125               1,500                 75,625$             
08-01-03 650,000             74,125               724,125             
02-01-04 54,625               1,500                 56,125               
08-01-04 650,000             54,625               704,625             
02-01-05 35,125               1,500                 36,625               
08-01-05 650,000             35,125               685,125             
02-01-06 15,625               1,500                 17,125               
08-01-06 625,000             15,625               640,625             

2,575,000$       359,000$           6,000$               2,940,000$       

- 331 -



CITY OF McALLEN
1993 GENERAL OBLIGATION - AIRPORT 

SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS

EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE:  5.832%

ESTIMATED
MATURITY PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL

02-01-03 640,000             126,374             1,500                 767,874$           
08-01-03 108,773             108,773             
02-01-04 680,000             108,774             1,500                 790,274             
08-01-04 89,393               89,393               
02-01-05 725,000             89,394               1,500                 815,894             
08-01-05 68,550               68,550               
02-01-06 770,000             68,550               1,500                 840,050             
08-01-06 46,413               46,413               
02-01-07 820,000             46,413               1,500                 867,913             
08-01-07 22,837               22,837               
02-01-08 870,000             22,838               1,500                 894,338             

 4,505,000$        798,309$            9,000$                5,312,309$       
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CITY OF McALLEN
1993 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND

SCHEDULE OR REQUIREMENTS

EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE:  5.293%

ESTIMATED
MATURITY PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL

02-01-03 335,000             59,000               1,500                 395,500$           
08-01-03 50,625               50,625               
02-01-04 355,000             50,625               1,500                 407,125             
08-01-04 41,750               41,750               
02-01-05 380,000             41,750               1,500                 423,250             
08-01-05 32,250               32,250               
02-01-06 405,000             32,250               1,500                 438,750             
08-01-06 22,125               22,125               
02-01-07 430,000             22,125               1,500                 453,625             
08-01-07 11,375               11,375               
02-01-08 455,000             11,375               1,500                 467,875             

 2,360,000$        375,250$            9,000$                2,744,250$       
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Utility, Bridge, and Sales Tax Bonds 

 
 
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds 
Within the Utility System Water and Sewer Funds, restricted cash reserves are 
established for payment of bond principal, interest, and agent fees.  Currently, user fee 
rates are sufficient to produce the money required to pay principal and interest as it 
comes due and provide the interest and sinking fund reserve. 
 
Bridge Revenue Bond 
Within the McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund, a restricted cash reserve is 
established for payment of bond principal, interest, and agent fees.  Long-term 
obligations are secured by the general credit and toll collecting powers of the Toll 
Bridge. 
 
Sales Tax Revenue Bond 
Within the Development Corporation of McAllen Inc. Fund, restricted cash reserves are 
established for payment of bond principal, interest, and agent fees. 
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  OUTSTANDING    ESTIMATED    
 ISSUE 10/1/2002 PRINCIPAL  INTEREST  FEES TOTAL  
          
          
          
          
 1999 10,550,770$           401,850$          510,286$           -$                      912,136$          

2000 8,309,750               228,000            621,186            -                       849,186            
          
  18,860,520$           629,850$          1,131,472$        -$                      1,761,322$       

          
          
           

           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
            
            
            
            

            

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
WATER REVENUE BOND

DEBT SERVICE CURRENT REQUIREMENTS
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  OUTSTANDING    ESTIMATED    
 ISSUE 10/1/2002 PRINCIPAL  INTEREST  FEES TOTAL  
          
          
          
          
 1996 2,050,000$             480,000$           71,965$             -$                      551,965$          
 1999 4,997,700               303,150             384,952             -                       688,102            

2000 5,217,750               172,000            468,614            -                       640,614            

  12,265,450$           955,150$           925,531$           -$                      1,880,681$       

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS REVENUE BONDS

ALL SERIES
DEBT SERVICE CURRENT REQUIREMENTS
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OUTSTANDING ESTIMATED
ISSUE 10/1/2002 PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL

2000 19,325,000$            400,000$          1,089,800$       -$                      1,489,800$       

19,325,000$            400,000$          1,089,800$       -$                      1,489,800$       

WATER DEBT SERVICE FUND

2000 11,015,250$            228,000$          621,186$          -$                      849,186$          

SEWER DEBT SERVICE FUND

2000 8,309,750$              172,000$          468,614$          -$                      640,614$          

NOTE: The proceeds of this combined water and sewer revenue bond issue will finance both water and sewer improvement
projects. The allocation of debt service to each respective debt service fund, which is shown above, reflects the estimated
amount to be spent for improvements related to each fund. The corresponding percentages used in this allocation for water
and sewer are 57% and 43%, respectively.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SERIES 2000 WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

DEBT SERVICE CURRENT REQUIREMENTS

ALLOCATION TO WATER AND SEWER DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (SEE NOTE BELOW)
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EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE:  VARIOUS*

ESTIMATED
MATURITY PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL

02-01-03 400,000                551,650                -                             951,650$               
08-01-03 538,150                -                             538,150                
02-01-04 430,000                538,150                -                             968,150                
08-01-04 523,638                -                             523,638                
02-01-05 460,000                523,638                -                             983,638                
08-01-05 508,113                -                             508,113                
02-01-06 490,000                508,113                -                             998,113                
08-01-06 491,575                -                             491,575                
02-01-07 525,000                491,575                -                             1,016,575              
08-01-07 473,856                -                             473,856                
02-01-08 560,000                473,856                -                             1,033,856              
08-01-08 454,956                -                             454,956                
02-01-09 600,000                454,956                -                             1,054,956              
08-01-09 434,706                -                             434,706                
02-01-10 640,000                434,706                -                             1,074,706              
08-01-10 413,906                -                             413,906                
02-01-11 680,000                413,906                -                             1,093,906              
08-01-11 396,906                -                             396,906                
02-01-12 715,000                396,906                -                             1,111,906              
08-01-12 378,584                -                             378,584                
02-01-13 750,000                378,584                -                             1,128,584              
08-01-13 358,897                -                             358,897                
02-01-14 790,000                358,897                -                             1,148,897              
08-01-14 338,159                -                             338,159                
02-01-15 835,000                338,159                -                             1,173,159              
08-01-15 315,719                -                             315,719                
02-01-16 880,000                315,719                -                             1,195,719              
08-01-16 292,069                -                             292,069                
02-01-17 930,000                292,069                -                             1,222,069              
08-01-17 267,075                -                             267,075                
02-01-18 980,000                267,075                -                             1,247,075              
08-01-18 240,738                -                             240,738                
02-01-19 1,035,000              240,738                -                             1,275,738              
08-01-19 212,275                -                             212,275                
02-01-20 1,095,000              212,275                -                             1,307,275              
08-01-20 182,163                -                             182,163                
02-01-21 1,160,000              182,163                -                             1,342,163              
08-01-21 150,263                -                             150,263                
02-01-22 1,230,000              150,263                -                             1,380,263              
08-01-22 116,438                -                             116,438                
02-01-23 1,300,000              116,438                -                             1,416,438              
08-01-23 79,875                  -                             79,875                  
02-01-24 1,380,000              79,875                  -                             1,459,875              
08-01-24 41,063                  -                             41,063                  
02-01-25 1,460,000              41,063                  -                             1,501,063              

19,325,000$         14,969,894$         -$                          34,294,894$         

* FROM 5.00% TO 6.750%

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
SERIES 2000 WATERWORKS AND SEWER

 SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS
SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS
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ESTIMATED PRINCIPAL 
YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL BALANCE

19,325,000$     

2003 400,000            1,089,800         -                        1,489,800         18,925,000       
2004 430,000            1,061,788         -                        1,491,788         18,495,000       
2005 460,000            1,031,750         -                        1,491,750         18,035,000       
2006 490,000            999,688            -                        1,489,688         17,545,000       
2007 525,000            965,431            -                        1,490,431         17,020,000       
2008 560,000            928,813            -                        1,488,813         16,460,000       
2009 600,000            889,663            -                        1,489,663         15,860,000       
2010 640,000            848,613            -                        1,488,613         15,220,000       
2011 680,000            810,813            -                        1,490,813         14,540,000       
2012 715,000            775,491            -                        1,490,491         13,825,000       
2013 750,000            737,481            -                        1,487,481         13,075,000       
2014 790,000            697,056            -                        1,487,056         12,285,000       
2015 835,000            653,878            -                        1,488,878         11,450,000       
2016 880,000            607,788            -                        1,487,788         10,570,000       
2017 930,000            559,144            -                        1,489,144         9,640,000         
2018 980,000            507,813            -                        1,487,813         8,660,000         
2019 1,035,000         453,013            -                        1,488,013         7,625,000         
2020 1,095,000         394,438            1,489,438         6,530,000         
2021 1,160,000         332,425            1,492,425         5,370,000         
2022 1,230,000         266,700            1,496,700         4,140,000         
2023 1,300,000         196,313            1,496,313         2,840,000         
2024 1,380,000         120,938            1,500,938         1,460,000         
2025 1,460,000         41,063              1,501,063         -                        

19,325,000$     14,969,894$     -$                      34,294,894$     

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
SERIES 2000 WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
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EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE:  VARIOUS*

ESTIMATED
MATURITY PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL

02-01-03 705,000                 457,533                 -                              1,162,533$              
08-01-03 437,705                 -                              437,705                   
02-01-04 745,000                 437,705                 -                              1,182,705                
08-01-04 416,752                 -                              416,752                   
02-01-05 785,000                 416,752                 -                              1,201,752                
08-01-05 394,674                 -                              394,674                   
02-01-06 825,000                 394,674                 -                              1,219,674                
08-01-06 371,471                 -                              371,471                   
02-01-07 875,000                 371,471                 -                              1,246,471                
08-01-07 346,861                 -                              346,861                   
02-01-08 920,000                 346,861                 -                              1,266,861                
08-01-08 321,101                 -                              321,101                   
02-01-09 970,000                 321,101                 -                              1,291,101                
08-01-09 298,670                 -                              298,670                   
02-01-10 1,020,000              298,670                 -                              1,318,670                
08-01-10 275,083                 -                              275,083                   
02-01-11 1,065,000              275,083                 -                              1,340,083                
08-01-11 250,454                 -                              250,454                   
02-01-12 1,115,000              250,454                 -                              1,365,454                
08-01-12 224,670                 -                              224,670                   
02-01-13 1,170,000              224,670                 -                              1,394,670                
08-01-13 197,175                 -                              197,175                   
02-01-14 1,225,000              197,175                 -                              1,422,175                
08-01-14 168,388                 -                              168,388                   
02-01-15 1,285,000              168,388                 -                              1,453,388                
08-01-15 137,869                 -                              137,869                   
02-01-16 1,345,000              137,869                 -                              1,482,869                
08-01-16 105,925                 -                              105,925                   
02-01-17 1,415,000              105,925                 -                              1,520,925                
08-01-17 72,319                   -                              72,319                     
02-01-18 1,485,000              72,319                   -                              1,557,319                
08-01-18 37,050                   -                              37,050                     
02-01-19 1,560,000              37,050                   -                              1,597,050                

18,510,000$          8,569,867$            -$                            27,079,867$            

* FROM 4.70% TO 5.625%

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
SERIES 1999 WATERWORKS AND SEWER

 SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS
SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS
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ESTIMATED PRINCIPAL 
YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL BALANCE

18,510,000$     

2003 705,000               895,238            -                        1,600,238         17,805,000       
2004 745,000               854,457            -                        1,599,457         17,060,000       
2005 785,000               811,426            -                        1,596,426         16,275,000       
2006 825,000               766,145            -                        1,591,145         15,450,000       
2007 875,000               718,332            -                        1,593,332         14,575,000       
2008 920,000               667,962            -                        1,587,962         13,655,000       
2009 970,000               619,771            -                        1,589,771         12,685,000       
2010 1,020,000            573,753            -                        1,593,753         11,665,000       
2011 1,065,000            525,537            -                        1,590,537         10,600,000       
2012 1,115,000            475,124            -                        1,590,124         9,485,000         
2013 1,170,000            421,845            -                        1,591,845         8,315,000         
2014 1,225,000            365,563            -                        1,590,563         7,090,000         
2015 1,285,000            306,257            -                        1,591,257         5,805,000         
2016 1,345,000            243,794            -                        1,588,794         4,460,000         
2017 1,415,000            178,244            -                        1,593,244         3,045,000         
2018 1,485,000            109,369            -                        1,594,369         1,560,000         
2019 1,560,000            37,050              -                        1,597,050         -                    

18,510,000$        8,569,867$       -$                      27,079,867$     

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
SERIES 1999 WATERWORKS & SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
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OUTSTANDING ESTIMATED
ISSUE 10/1/2002 PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL

1999 18,510,000$          705,000$          895,238$          -$                      1,600,238$       

18,510,000$          705,000$          895,238$          -$                      1,600,238$       

WATER DEBT SERVICE FUND

1999 10,550,700$          401,850$          510,286$          -$                      912,136$          

SEWER DEBT SERVICE FUND

1999 7,959,300$            303,150$          384,952$          -$                      688,102$          

NOTE: The proceeds of this combined water and sewer revenue bond issue will finance both water and sewer improvement
projects. The allocation of debt service to each respective debt service fund, which is shown above, reflects the estimated
amount to be spent for improvements related to each fund. The corresponding percentages used in this allocation for water
and sewer are 57% and 43%, respectively.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SERIES 1999 WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

DEBT SERVICE CURRENT REQUIREMENTS

ALLOCATION TO WATER AND SEWER DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (SEE NOTE BELOW)
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EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE:  VARIOUS*

ESTIMATED
MATURITY PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL

02-01-03 480,000            40,542              520,542$          
08-01-03 31,423              -                         31,423              
02-01-04 500,000            31,423              531,423            
08-01-04 21,673              -                         21,673              
02-01-05 525,000            21,673              546,673            
08-01-05 11,173              -                         11,173              
02-01-06 545,000            11,173              556,173            

2,050,000$       169,080$          -$                       2,219,080$       

          

* FROM 2.9% TO 4.100%

CITY OF McALLEN
SERIES 1996-B SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS   

REVENUE BONDS
SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS
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        ESTIMATED    PRINCIPAL   
 YEAR   PRINCIPAL  INTEREST FEES  TOTAL  BALANCE  
             
           2,050,000$        
             
 2003   480,000               71,965               -                          551,965              1,570,000          
 2004   500,000               53,096               -                          553,096              1,070,000          
 2005   525,000               32,846               -                          557,846              545,000              
 2006   545,000               11,173               -                          556,173              -                      
             
    2,050,000$          169,080$           -$                        2,219,080$          

             
             

              

               
               
               
               
               
               
               
               
               
               
               
               
               
               
               
               
               

               
               
               
               
               
               
               

               
               

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
SERIES 1996-B SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

REVENUE BONDS
ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
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  OUTSTANDING    ESTIMATED    
 ISSUE 10/1/2002 PRINCIPAL  INTEREST  FEES TOTAL  
          
          
          
          
 1996 2,050,000$              480,000$           71,965$             -$                       551,965$          
         
  2,050,000$              480,000$           71,965$             -$                       551,965$          

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
SERIES 1996-B SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

REVENUE BONDS
DEBT SERVICE CURRENT REQUIREMENTS
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        ESTIMATED    PRINCIPAL
 YEAR   PRINCIPAL  INTEREST  FEES  TOTAL  BALANCE
             
            2,300,000$       

 2003   180,000              99,878                -                          279,878             2,120,000         
2004 190,000             91,553               -                         281,553            1,930,000         
2005 200,000             82,778               -                         282,778            1,730,000         
2006 210,000             73,553               -                         283,553            1,520,000         
2007 225,000             63,765               -                         288,765            1,295,000         
2008 235,000             53,415               -                         288,415            1,060,000         
2009 245,000             42,615               -                         287,615            815,000             
2010 260,000             31,253               -                         291,253            555,000             
2011 270,000             19,328               -                         289,328            285,000             

 2012   285,000              6,626                  -                          291,626             -                         
             
   2,300,000$        564,761$            -$                        2,864,761$         

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
SERIES 2002 TOLL BRIDGE REVENUE BONDS

ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
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EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE:  VARIOUS*

MATURITY PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL

3/1/03 180,000$          51,964$            -$                      231,964$          
9/1/03 47,914              -                       47,914              
3/1/04 190,000            47,914              -                       237,914            
9/1/04 43,639              -                       43,639              
3/1/05 200,000            43,639              -                       243,639            
9/1/05 39,139              -                       39,139              
3/1/06 210,000            39,139              -                       249,139            
9/1/06 34,414              -                       34,414              
3/1/07 225,000            34,414              -                       259,414            
9/1/07 29,351              -                       29,351              
3/1/08 235,000            29,351              -                       264,351            
9/1/08 24,064              -                       24,064              
3/1/09 245,000            24,064              -                       269,064            
9/1/09 18,551              -                       18,551              
3/1/10 260,000            18,551              -                       278,551            
9/1/10 12,701              -                       12,701              
3/1/11 270,000            12,701              -                       282,701            
9/1/11 6,626               -                       6,626               
3/1/12 285,000            6,626               -                       291,626            

2,300,000$       564,761$          -$                      2,864,761$       

* FROM 4.50% TO 4.65%

CITY OF McALLEN
SERIES 2002 TOLL BRIDGE REVENUE BONDS

SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS
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       ESTIMATED    PRINCIPAL
 YEAR  PRINCIPAL  INTEREST  FEES  TOTAL  BALANCE
            
           21,670,000$        
            
 2003  925,000                   1,060,149                 -                          1,985,149             20,745,000          
 2004  965,000                   1,018,559                 -                          1,983,559             19,780,000          
 2005  1,010,000                974,110                     -                          1,984,110             18,770,000          
 2006  1,055,000                927,395                     -                          1,982,395             17,715,000          
 2007  1,105,000                878,243                     -                          1,983,243             16,610,000          
 2008  1,160,000                825,568                     -                          1,985,568             15,450,000          
 2009  1,215,000                769,148                     -                          1,984,148             14,235,000          
 2010  1,275,000                708,113                     -                          1,983,113             12,960,000          
 2011  1,340,000                642,068                     -                          1,982,068             11,620,000          
 2012  1,410,000                571,590                     -                          1,981,590             10,210,000          
 2013  1,485,000                496,672                     -                          1,981,672             8,725,000            
 2014  1,565,000                416,981                     -                          1,981,981             7,160,000            
 2015  1,650,000                332,588                     -                          1,982,588             5,510,000            
 2016  1,740,000                243,599                     -                          1,983,599             3,770,000            
 2017  1,835,000                149,755                     -                          1,984,755             1,935,000            
 2018  1,935,000                50,793                       -                          1,985,793             -                            
            
   21,670,000$            10,065,331$             -$                        31,735,331$         

            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            

            

            

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
SERIES 1998 SALES TAX REVENUE BOND

ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
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EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE:  VARIOUS*

ESTIMATED
MATURITY PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL

02-15-03 925,000            540,134            -                       1,465,134         
08-15-03 520,015            520,015            
02-15-04 965,000            520,015            -                       1,485,015         
08-15-04 498,544            498,544            
02-15-05 1,010,000         498,544            -                       1,508,544         
08-15-05 475,566            475,566            
02-15-06 1,055,000         475,566            -                       1,530,566         
08-15-06 451,829            451,829            
02-15-07 1,105,000         451,829            -                       1,556,829         
08-15-07 426,414            426,414            
02-15-08 1,160,000         426,414            -                       1,586,414         
08-15-08 399,154            399,154            
02-15-09 1,215,000         399,154            -                       1,614,154         
08-15-09 369,994            369,994            
02-15-10 1,275,000         369,994            -                       1,644,994         
08-15-10 338,119            338,119            
02-15-11 1,340,000         338,119            -                       1,678,119         
08-15-11 303,949            303,949            
02-15-12 1,410,000         303,949            -                       1,713,949         
08-15-12 267,641            267,641            
02-15-13 1,485,000         267,641            -                       1,752,641         
08-15-13 229,031            229,031            
02-15-14 1,565,000         229,031            -                       1,794,031         
08-15-14 187,950            187,950            
02-15-15 1,650,000         187,950            -                       1,837,950         
08-15-15 144,638            144,638            
02-15-16 1,740,000         144,637            -                       1,884,637         
08-15-16 98,962              98,962              
02-15-17 1,835,000         98,962              -                       1,933,962         
08-15-17 50,793              50,793              
02-15-18 1,935,000         50,793              -                       1,985,793         

          
21,670,000$     10,065,331$     -$                      31,735,331$     

* FROM 3.9% TO 5.25 %

CITY OF McALLEN
SERIES 1998 SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS

McALLEN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS
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